# PVTB 10-Q 9/30/2008

# Section 1: 10-Q (PVTB 3RD QUARTER 2008 FORM 10-Q)

#### UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

#### FORM 10-Q

### ☑ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2008 □ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 For transition period from to

Commission File Number: 000–25887

#### PRIVATEBANCORP, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter.)

Delaware

(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

70 W. Madison

Suite 900 Chicago, Illinois (Address of principal executive offices) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number) 60602

36-3681151

(Zip Code)

(312) 683-7100

(Registrant's telephone number, including area code)

Indicate by checkmark whether the Registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the Registrant was required to file such reports) and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes  $\boxtimes$  No  $\square$ 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," and "smaller reporting company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Largeacceleratedfiler  $\boxtimes$ Acceleratedfiler  $\square$ Non-acceleratedfiler $\square$ Smaller reporting company  $\square$  $\square$  $\square$  $\square$  $\square$  $\square$  $\square$  $\square$ 

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes 🗆 No 🗵

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer's classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date.

| Class                | Outstanding as of November 7, 2008 |
|----------------------|------------------------------------|
| Common, no par value | 33,585,678                         |

# PRIVATEBANCORP, INC.

# FORM 10-Q Quarterly Report

#### **Table of Contents**

|                                |   | Page<br>Number |
|--------------------------------|---|----------------|
|                                |   |                |
| Part I – Financial Information |   |                |
| Item 1.                        | Financial Statements (unaudited)                            | 1              |
| Item 2.                        | Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition |                |
|                                | and Results of Operations                                   | 20             |
| Item 3.                        | Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  | 46             |
| Item 4.                        | Controls and Procedures                                     | 48             |
| Part II – Other Information    |   |                |
| Item 1.                        | Legal Proceedings   | 49             |
| Item 1A.                       | Risk Factors  | 49             |
| Item 2.                        | Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds | 52             |
| Item 3.                        | Defaults upon Senior Securities                             | 52             |
| Item 4.                        | Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders         | 52             |
| Item 5.                        | Other Information   | 52             |
| Item 6.                        | Exhibits  | 52             |
| Signatures                     |   | 54             |

#### **Part I – Financial Information**

#### Item 1. Financial Statements

#### PRIVATEBANCORP, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION (Amounts in thousands, except per share data)

| (mandite)           Cash and due from banks         S         7.3.3.4         S         1.3.220           Available-for-sale securities, at fair value         899,301         526,271           Non-marketable equity investments         18,958         12,249           Loans held for sale         6,736         19,358           Loans, net of uncarned discount         7,441,137         4,177,795           Allowance for loan losses         (00,223)         (48,891)           Net loans         7,338,914         4,128,904           Goodwill         95,045         93,341           Premises and equipment, net         29,650         25,600           Accrued interest receivable         32,466         24,144           Bank owned life in surance         45,438         44,129           Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         90,014,63         \$ 99,024           Interest-bearing         164,318         157,761           Soring and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1594,470           Soring and money market deposit accounts         1,52,601         1,107,692           Total deposits         2,247,973         5,502,694  |  | Sej | ptember 30,<br>2008 | De | cember 31,<br>2007 |
|---|--|-----|---------------------|----|--------------------|
| Cash and due from banks         \$ 76,314         \$ 13,319           Federal funds sold and other short-term investments         363,991         13,220           Navilable-for-sale securities, at fair value         899,001         526,271           Non-marketable equity investments         18,958         12,459           Loans held for sale         6,736         19,358           Loans held for sale         7,738,014         41,177,795           Goodwill         7,38,014         41,128,904           Premises and equipment, net         29,605         25,600           Accrued interest receivable         32,466         24,144           Total assets         5         9,011,463         5           Labilities and Stockholders' Equity         104,650         51,448         104,650           Total assets         5         9,011,463         5         4,990,205           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,526,601         1,167,692           Total deposits         2,447,935         542,470         1,526,601         1,167,692           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,526,601         1,167,692           Savings and money market deposit accounts         52,449         500,308         2,92  |  | (1  | inaudited)          |    |                    |
| Federal funds sold and other short-term investments       563,991       13,220         Available-for-sale securities, at fair value       899,301       526,271         Non-marketable equity investments       18,958       12,459         Loans, held for sale       6,736       19,538         Loans held for sale       (10,2,23)       (48,891)         Net loans       7,348,914       4,128,904         Goodwill       95,045       93,341         Premises and equipment, net       29,650       25,600         Accruce interest receivable       32,466       24,144         Bank owned life insurance       45,438       44,129         Other assets       104,650       51,448         Total assets       \$ 9,011,463       \$ 4,990,026         Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity       2       2         Demand deposits       2,407,041       1,524,601         Non-interest-bearing       164,318       157,761         Savings and money market deposit accounts       2,407,041       1,524,601         Note deposits       7,449,493       3,761,138         Fund deposits       7,449,493       3,761,138         Fund deposits       52,449       50,248         Unior subordiated deferrable interes   |  |     |                     |    |                    |
| Available-for-sale securities, at fair value       899.301       556.271         Non-marketable equity investments       18.958       12.459         Loans held for sale       6.736       19.358         Loans, net of unearned discount       7,441.137       4.177.795         Allowance for loan losses       (102.223)       (48.891)         Net loans       7,338.914       4.128.904         Goodwill       55.045       93.341         Premises and equipment, net       29.650       25.600         Accrued interest receivable       32.466       24.144         Bank owned life insurance       45.438       44.129         Other assets       104.650       51.448         Total assets       5       90.011.463       \$ 4.990.026         Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity       2       2.407.641       1.594.172         Demand deposits:       2.407.641       1.594.172       54.2470         Other time deposits accounts       2.407.641       1.594.172         Total deposits       1.526.601       1.167.692         Total deposits       1.526.601       1.167.692         Total deposits       2.407.641       59.194         Total deposits       2.52.194       50.299      <   |  | \$  | )-                  | \$ | - )                |
| Non-marketable equity investments         18,988         12,459           Loans held for sale         6,736         19,358           Loans, held for sale         7,441,137         4,1177,795           Allowance for loan losses         (102,223)         (48,891)           Net loans         7,338,914         4,128,904           Goodwill         95,045         93,341           Premises and equipment, net         29,650         25,600           Accrured interest receivable         32,466         24,144           Bank owned life insurance         45,348         44,129           Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         5 9,011,463         5 4,990,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity         2         2407,644         1,594,176           Demand deposits         2,447,644         1,594,172         5           Non-interest-bearing         \$ 601,653         \$ 290,043         1,167,92           Interest-bearing         \$ 601,653         \$ 290,043         1,167,92           Total deposits         1,526,601         1,167,92         342,470           Nother time deposits         1,526,601         1,167,92         344,70           Punds borrowed         \$ 52,41   |  |     | ,                   |    | ,                  |
| Loans held for sale         6,736         19,338           Loans, net of unearned discount         7,441,137         4,177,795           Allowance for loan losses         (10,2,22)         (48,89)04           Goodwill         95,045         93,341           Fremises and equipment, net         29,650         25,600           Accrued interest receivable         32,466         24,144           Bank owned life insurance         45,438         44,129           Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         104,650         \$1,448           Demand deposits:          104,650         \$4,900,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity          24,07,641         1,590,411           Demand deposits:         2,407,641         1,590,411         159,41,72           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,594,172           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,594,172           Storkerd deposits         2,749,735         542,470           Other time deposits         2,749,735         542,470           Total deposits         2,749,735         542,470           Total deposits         2,749,735         542,470   |  |     |                     |    | , .                |
| Loans, net of uncarned discount         7,441,137         4,177,795           Allowance for loan losses         (102,223)         (48,89)           Goodwill         95,045         93,341           Premises and equipment, net         29,650         25,600           Accrued interest receivable         32,446         24,144           Bank owned life insurance         45,438         44,129           Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         \$ 9,011,463         \$ 4,990,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity         5         601,653         \$ 299,043           Interest-bearing         \$ 601,653         \$ 299,043         164,318         157,761           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1594,172         1590,1146         \$ 51,449           Total deposits         1,256,601         1,167,692         1,167,692         1,167,692         1,167,692           Total deposits         7,449,448         3,71,138         500,11,38         500,103         502,9194         560,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities         52,449         50,298         50,298         50,298         50,298         101,033         4,  |  |     |                     |    |                    |
| Allowance for loan losses       (102,223)       (48,891)         Net loans       7,338,914       4,128,904         Goodwill       95,045       95,341         Premises and equipment, net       29,0650       25,000         Accrued interest receivable       32,466       24,144         Bark owned life insurance       45,438       44,129         Other assets       104,650       51,448         Total assets       601,653       \$ 299,043         Interest-bearing       164,318       157,761         Savings and money market deposits accounts       2,407,641       1,594,172         Total deposits       2,407,641       1,594,172         Total deposits       7,449,948       3,761,138         Endeposits       1,526,601       1,167,692         Total deposits       592,194       560,809         Junior subordinated deferrable interest held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities       592,194       560,809         Junior subordinated deferrable interest issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively       50,000       41,000         Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, re  |  |     | ,                   |    |                    |
| Net loans         7,338,914         4,128,904           Goodwill         95,045         95,341           Premises and equipment, net         29,605         25,600           Accrued interest receivable         32,466         24,144           Bank owned life insurance         45,438         44,129           Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         \$ 9,011,463         \$ 4990,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity         5         601,653         \$ 299,043           Interest-bearing         164,318         157,761         1594,172           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,594,172           Brokered deposits         7,7449,948         3,761,138           Funds borrowed         1,526,601         1,167,692           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities         52,449         50,298           Total labilities         51,449         50,298         7,61,138         101,033           Accrued interest payable         31,959         16,134         4,489,412         560,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securitities         52,449         50,298<  |  |     |                     |    |                    |
| Goodwill $95,045$ $93,341$ Premises and equipment, net $29,650$ $25,600$ Accrued interest receivable $32,466$ $24,144$ Bank owned life insurance $45,438$ $44,129$ Other assets $104,650$ $51,448$ Total assets $9,011,463$ $54,900,205$ Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $90,01,653$ $52,90,043$ Interest-bearing $5601,653$ $299,043$ Interest-bearing $2,407,641$ $1,594,172$ Storker deposits $2,2407,641$ $1,594,172$ Total deposits $7,449,948$ $3,761,138$ Funds borrowed $1,526,601$ $1,167,692$ Total deposits $7,449,948$ $3,761,138$ Funds borrowed $31,959$ $16,134$ Stockholders' Equity $44,894,112$ $50,208$ Total interest payable $31,959$ $16,134$ Other liabilities $52,249$ $50,298$ Total inabilities $31,959$ $16,134$ Stockholders' Equity $9,000$ and $39,000$ shares authorized as of September $30,2008$ and December $31,2007$ , respectively: $34,028$ and $28,439$ shares issued as of September $30,2008$ and December $31,2007$ , respectively: $34,028$ and $28,439$ shares issued as of September $30,2008$ and December $31,2007$ , respectively: $34,028$ and $28,439$ shares issued as of September $30,2008$ and December $31,2007$ , respectively: $34,028$ and $28,439$ shares issued as of September $30,2008$ and December $31,2007$ , respectively: $34,028$ and $28,439$ shares issued as of September $30,2008$ and December $31,2007$ , respectively: $34,028$ and $28,439$ shares issued as of September $30,2008$ and December $31,200$  | Allowance for loan losses  |     |                     |    |                    |
| Premises and equipment, net         29,650         25,600           Accrued interest receivable         32,466         24,144           Bank owned life insurance         45,438         44,129           Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         \$ 9,011,463         \$ 4,990,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equip         5         601,653         \$ 299,043           Interest-bearing         164,61318         157,761         \$ 4,990,205           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,594,172           Brokered deposits         2,407,641         1,594,172           Total deposits         7,449,948         3,761,138           Funds borrowed         15,256,001         1,167,692           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities         2,447,93         10,033           Accrued interest payable         522,194         500,809         500,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities         244,793         101,033           Accrued interest payable         52,149         50,294         500,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held as of September 30, 2008 and Dec   | Net loans  |     | 7,338,914           |    | 4,128,904          |
| Accrued interest receivable         32,466         24,144           Bank owned life insurance         45,438         44,129           Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         \$ 9,011,463         \$ 49,900,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity  |  |     | 95,045              |    | )-                 |
| Bank owned life insurance         45,438         44,129           Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         \$ 9,011,463         \$ 4,990,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity         Demand deposits:         \$ 601,653         \$ 299,043           Interest-bearing         164,318         157,761           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,594,172           Brokered deposits         2,407,641         1,594,172           Brokered deposits         2,407,641         1,526,601           Total deposits         1,526,601         1,167,692           Total deposits         7,449,948         3,761,138           Funds borrowed         592,194         560,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities         244,793         101,033           Accrued interest payable         31,959         16,134         50,298           Total liabilities         8,371,343         4489,412         50,298           Total liabilities         58,070         41,000         502,98           Total liabilities         58,070         44,094         30,000           2007, respectively         200, respectively <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>29,650</td><td></td><td>25,600</td></td<>   |  |     | 29,650              |    | 25,600             |
| Other assets         104,650         51,448           Total assets         \$ 9,011,463         \$ 4,990,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity             Demand deposits:             Non-interest-bearing         \$ 601,653         \$ 299,043           Interest-bearing         164,318         157,761           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1.594,172           Brokered deposits         2,407,641         1.594,172           Total deposits         1,526,601         1,167,692           Total deposits         7,449,948         3,761,138           Funds borrowed         592,194         560,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities         244,793         101,033           Accrued interest payable         31,959         16,134           Other liabilities         52,449         50,298           Total labilities         52,449         50,298           Total labilities         52,449         50,298           Other liabilities         52,449         50,298           Total labilities         52,449         50,298           Otal klabilities         52,449  | Accrued interest receivable  |     | 32,466              |    | 24,144             |
| Total assets         \$ 9,011,463         \$ 4,990,205           Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity   | Bank owned life insurance  |     | 45,438              |    | 44,129             |
| Liabilities and Stockholders' EquityDemand deposits:<br>Non-interest-bearing\$ 601,653\$ 299,043Interest-bearing164,318157,761Savings and money market deposit accounts2,407,6411,594,172Brokered deposits2,749,735542,470Other time deposits2,749,735542,470Other time deposits7,449,9483,761,138Funds borrowed792,194560,809Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt<br>securities244,793101,033Accrued interest payable31,95916,1344489,412Other liabilities52,44950,29850,298Total liabilities52,44950,29850,298Total liabilities52,44950,29850,208Other liabilities52,44950,29858,07041,000Common stock, nithout par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively54,02032,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)74,354311,989Retained earnings39,248126,004426,004474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,004426,00479,279,373Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793500,793  | Other assets   |     | 104,650             |    | 51,448             |
| Demand deposits:         Non-interest-bearing         \$ 601.653         \$ 299.043           Interest-bearing         164.318         157.611           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407.641         1,594,172           Brokered deposits         2,749,735         542,470           Other time deposits         1,526,601         1,167,692           Total deposits         7,449,948         3,761,138           Funds borrowed         592,194         560,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities         244,793         10,033           Accrued interest payable         21,959         16,134         0,134           Other liabilities         52,449         50,298         10,033           Total liabilities         52,449         50,298         10,033           Other liabilities         52,449         50,298         10,133           Total liabilities         52,449         50,298         10,000           Total liabilities         52,449         50,298         10,000           Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 s   | Total assets   | \$  | 9,011,463           | \$ | 4,990,205          |
| Non-interest-bearing         \$ 601,653         \$ 299,043           Interest-bearing         164,318         157,761           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,594,172           Brokered deposits         2,749,735         542,470           Other time deposits         1,526,601         1,167,692           Total deposits         7,449,948         3,761,138           Funds borrowed         592,194         500,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities         244,793         101,033           Accrued interest payable         31,959         16,134         502,298           Total liabilities         52,449         50,298         50,298           Total liabilities         52,449         50,298         50,298           Total liabilities         52,449         50,298         50,298           Total liabilities         58,070         41,000         44,89,412           Stockholders' Equity         58,070         41,000         58,070         41,000           Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively: 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively: 34,028 and 28,439 sh   | Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity   |     |                     |    |                    |
| Interest-bearing         164,318         157,761           Savings and money market deposit accounts         2,407,641         1,594,172           Brokered deposits         2,749,735         542,470           Other time deposits         1,526,601         1,167,692           Total deposits         7,449,948         3,761,138           Funds borrowed         592,194         560,809           Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt         52,449         50,299           securities         244,793         101,033         31,959         16,134           Other liabilities         52,449         50,2249         50,2249         50,298           Total liabilities         52,449         50,2249         50,298         16,134           Other liabilities         52,449         50,2249         50,298         Total liabilities         8,371,343         4,489,412           Stockholders' Equity         Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively         58,070         41,000           Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares is   | Demand deposits:   |     |                     |    |                    |
| Savings and money market deposit accounts2,407,6411,594,172Brokered deposits2,749,735542,470Other time deposits1,526,6011,167,692Total deposits7,449,9483,761,138Funds borrowed592,194560,809Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt<br>securities244,793101,033Accrued interest payable244,793101,033Other liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities52,44950,298Stockholders' Equity8,371,3434,489,412Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31,<br>2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028  | Non-interest-bearing   | \$  | 601,653             | \$ | 299,043            |
| Brokered deposits2,749,735542,470Other time deposits1,526,6011,167,692Total deposits7,449,9483,761,138Funds borrowed592,194560,809Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt<br>securities244,793101,033Accrued interest payable31,95916,134Other liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities52,44950,298Stockholders' Equity8,371,3434,489,412Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31,<br>2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of S | Interest-bearing   |     | 164,318             |    | 157,761            |
| Other time deposits $1,526,601$ $1,167,692$ Total deposits $7,449,948$ $3,761,138$ Funds borrowed $592,194$ $560,809$ Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt<br>securities $244,793$ $101,033$ Accrued interest payable $31,959$ $16,134$ Other liabilities $52,449$ $50,298$ Total liabilities $52,449$ $50,298$ Total liabilities $8,371,343$ $4,489,412$ Stockholders' Equity $8,371,343$ $4,489,412$ Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively $32,147$ $27,225$ Treasury stock $(15,626)$ $(13,559)$ $Additional paid-in-capital$ $474,354$ $311,989$ Additional paid-in-capital $474,354$ $311,989$ $1927$ $7,934$ Total stockholders' equity $640,120$ $500,793$   | Savings and money market deposit accounts  |     | 2,407,641           |    | 1,594,172          |
| Total deposits7,449,9483,761,138Funds borrowed592,194560,809Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt<br>securities244,793101,033Accrued interest payable31,95916,134Other liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities8,371,3434,489,412Stockholders' EquityPreferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)4dditional paid-in-capital474,354311,959Additional paid-in-capital474,354311,95939,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,9347,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793500,793   | Brokered deposits  |     | 2,749,735           |    | 542,470            |
| Funds borrowed592,194560,809Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt<br>securities244,793101,033Accrued interest payable31,95916,134Other liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities8,371,3434,489,412Stockholders' Equity8,371,3434,489,412Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31,<br>2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30,<br>2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30,<br>2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)4dditional paid-in-capital474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,2044ccumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793500,793  | Other time deposits  |     | 1,526,601           |    | 1,167,692          |
| Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt<br>securities244,793101,033Accrued interest payable31,95916,134Other liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities8,371,3434,489,412Stockholders' Equity8,371,3434,489,412Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31,<br>2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30,<br>2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)4dditional paid-in-capital474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,2044ccumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793500,793  | Total deposits   |     | 7,449,948           |    | 3,761,138          |
| securities244,793101,033Accrued interest payable31,95916,134Other liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities8,371,3434,489,412Stockholders' Equity8,371,3434,489,412Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)311,989311,989Retained earnings89,248126,204474,354311,989Retained earnings1,9277,93470,934Total stockholders' equity500,793500,793500,793   | Funds borrowed   | -   | 592,194             | -  | 560,809            |
| securities244,793101,033Accrued interest payable31,95916,134Other liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities8,371,3434,489,412Stockholders' Equity8,371,3434,489,412Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)311,989311,989Retained earnings89,248126,204474,354311,989Retained earnings1,9277,93470,934Total stockholders' equity500,793500,793500,793   | Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt      |     |                     |    |                    |
| Other liabilities52,44950,298Total liabilities8,371,3434,489,412Stockholders' Equity88Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)Additional paid-in-capital474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793   |  |     | 244,793             |    | 101,033            |
| Total liabilities8,371,3434,489,412Stockholders' Equity8Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)(13,559)311,989311,989Retained earnings89,248126,20432,244312,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,9347,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793   | Accrued interest payable   |     | 31,959              |    | 16,134             |
| Stockholders' EquityPreferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31,<br>2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30,<br>2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)Additional paid-in-capital474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793  | Other liabilities  |     | 52,449              |    | 50,298             |
| Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31,<br>2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30,<br>2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)Additional paid-in-capital474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793  | Total liabilities  |     | 8,371,343           | -  | 4,489,412          |
| Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized; 2 and 1 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and December 31,<br>2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30,<br>2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)Additional paid-in-capital474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793  | Stockholders' Equity   |     |                     |    |                    |
| 2007, respectively58,07041,000Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30,<br>2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock32,14727,225(15,626)(13,559)Additional paid-in-capital474,354311,98989,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,9347,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,7931000   |  |     |                     |    |                    |
| Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30,<br>2008 and December 31, 2007, respectively; 34,028 and 28,439 shares issued as of September 30, 2008 and<br>December 31, 2007, respectively32,14727,225Treasury stock(15,626)(13,559)Additional paid-in-capital474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793   |  |     | 58,070              |    | 41,000             |
| December 31, 2007, respectively         32,147         27,225           Treasury stock         (15,626)         (13,559)           Additional paid-in-capital         474,354         311,989           Retained earnings         89,248         126,204           Accumulated other comprehensive income         1,927         7,934           Total stockholders' equity         640,120         500,793  | Common stock, without par value, \$1 stated value; 89,000 and 39,000 shares authorized as of September 30, |     | ,                   |    | ,                  |
| Treasury stock         (15,626)         (13,559)           Additional paid-in-capital         474,354         311,989           Retained earnings         89,248         126,204           Accumulated other comprehensive income         1,927         7,934           Total stockholders' equity         640,120         500,793  |  |     | 32,147              |    | 27.225             |
| Additional paid-in-capital474,354311,989Retained earnings89,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793  |  |     | - , .               |    | • • • =            |
| Retained earnings89,248126,204Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793  |  |     |                     |    |                    |
| Accumulated other comprehensive income1,9277,934Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793  |  |     |                     |    |                    |
| Total stockholders' equity640,120500,793  |  |     |                     |    |                    |
|   |  | _   | ,                   |    | ,                  |
| $\frac{5}{9,011,405} = \frac{4}{9,90,205}$  | Total liabilities and stockholders' equity   | \$  | 9,011,463           | \$ | 4,990,205          |

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

# PRIVATEBANCORP, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (Amounts in thousands, except per share data) (Unaudited)

|  |          | Three Mor<br>Septem |          |        |    | Nine Mon<br>Septem |          |         |
|--|----------|---------------------|----------|--------|----|--------------------|----------|---------|
|  |          | 2008                |          | 2007   |    | 2008               |          | 2007    |
| Interest Income  |          |                     |          |        |    |                    |          |         |
| Loans, including fees  | \$       | 99,408              | \$       | 72,299 | \$ | 259,734            | \$       | 211,917 |
| Federal funds sold and other short-term investments                    |          | 217                 |          | 259    |    | 658                |          | 736     |
| Securities:  |          |                     |          |        |    |                    |          |         |
| Taxable  |          | 8,161               |          | 3,450  |    | 17,903             |          | 10,633  |
| Exempt from federal income taxes                                       |          | 2,027               |          | 2,345  |    | 6,453              |          | 7,037   |
| Total interest income  |          | 109,813             |          | 78,353 |    | 284,748            |          | 230,323 |
| Interest Expense   |          |                     |          |        |    |                    |          |         |
| Deposits:  |          |                     |          |        |    |                    |          |         |
| Interest-bearing demand  |          | 383                 |          | 475    |    | 1,230              |          | 1,508   |
| Savings and money market   |          | 12,785              |          | 17,904 |    | 37,302             |          | 51,633  |
| Brokered and other time  |          | 33,598              |          | 21,732 |    | 89,912             |          | 62,746  |
| Funds borrowed   |          | 4,634               |          | 4,350  |    | 14,141             |          | 13,306  |
| Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that |          |                     |          |        |    |                    |          |         |
| issued guaranteed capital debt securities                              |          | 5,258               |          | 1,604  |    | 9,587              |          | 4,756   |
| Total interest expense   |          | 56,658              |          | 46,065 |    | 152,172            |          | 133,949 |
| Net interest income  |          | 53,155              |          | 32,288 |    | 132,576            |          | 96,374  |
| Provision for loan losses  |          | 30,173              |          | 2,399  |    | 70,329             |          | 6,763   |
| Net interest income after provision for loan losses                    |          | 22,982              |          | 29,889 |    | 62,247             | _        | 89,611  |
| Non-interest Income  |          |                     |          | ,      |    | ,                  |          | ,       |
| The PrivateWealth Group fee revenue                                    |          | 4,059               |          | 4,029  |    | 12,828             |          | 11,878  |
| Mortgage banking income  |          | 776                 |          | 1,157  |    | 3,535              |          | 3,700   |
| Capital markets products income  |          | 3,815               |          |        |    | 6,164              |          |         |
| Treasury management income   |          | 439                 |          | 132    |    | 902                |          | 428     |
| Bank owned life insurance  |          | 439                 |          | 403    |    | 1,308              |          | 1,225   |
| Banking and other services   |          | 2,006               |          | 679    |    | 3,656              |          | 2,491   |
| Net securities gains   |          | 180                 |          | 366    |    | 1,280              |          | 348     |
| Total non-interest income  |          | 11,714              |          | 6,766  |    | 29,673             |          | 20,070  |
| Non-interest Expense   |          |                     |          |        | _  |                    |          |         |
| Salaries and employee benefits   |          | 28,895              |          | 13,083 |    | 88,459             |          | 39,546  |
| Occupancy expense, net   |          | 4,364               |          | 3,336  |    | 12,556             |          | 9,286   |
| Professional services  |          | 3,374               |          | 2,109  |    | 10,684             |          | 5,434   |
| Investment manager expenses  |          | 829                 |          | 857    |    | 2,608              |          | 2,507   |
| Marketing  |          | 2,083               |          | 1,058  |    | 7,614              |          | 3,676   |
| Technology and related costs   |          | 1,554               |          | 1,039  |    | 3,942              |          | 2,924   |
| Postage, telephone, and delivery                                       |          | 575                 |          | 409    |    | 1,663              |          | 1,224   |
| Supplies and printing  |          | 275                 |          | 221    |    | 988                |          | 722     |
| Amortization of intangibles  |          | 241                 |          | 241    |    | 896                |          | 726     |
| Insurance  |          | 2,460               |          | 452    |    | 5,067              |          | 1,166   |
| Other expenses   |          | 2,435               |          | 1,119  |    | 6,745              |          | 3,388   |
| Total non-interest expense   | \$       | 47,085              | \$       | 23,924 | \$ | 141,222            | \$       | 70,599  |
| Minority interest expense  |          | 86                  |          | 100    |    | 256                |          | 285     |
| (Loss) income before income taxes                                      |          | (12,475)            | -        | 12,631 |    | (49,558)           |          | 38,797  |
| Income tax (benefit) provision   |          | (5,211)             |          | 3,466  |    | (20,070)           |          | 11,845  |
| Net (loss) income  | \$       | (7,264)             | \$       | 9,165  | \$ | (29,488)           | \$       | 26,952  |
|  | ψ        |                     | Ψ        | 7,105  | Ψ  |                    | Ψ        | 20,752  |
| Preferred stock dividends  | <u>_</u> | 146                 | <b>•</b> |        | ¢. | 400                | <b>_</b> |         |
| Net (loss) income available to common stockholders                     | \$       | (7,410)             | \$       | 9,165  | \$ | (29,888)           | \$       | 26,952  |
| Basic earnings per share   | \$       |                     | \$       | 0.43   | \$ | (1.04)             | \$       | 1.27    |
| Diluted earnings per share   |          | (0.23)              |          | 0.42   |    | (1.04)             |          | 1.23    |
| Dividends per share  |          | 0.075               |          | 0.075  |    | 0.225              |          | 0.225   |

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

# PRIVATEBANCORP, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (Amounts in thousands, except per share data) (Unaudited)

|  | Preferred<br>Stock |          | Common<br>Stock | I  | Treasury<br>Stock | p  | Additional<br>aid-in-capital |    | Retained<br>Earnings |    | Accumulated<br>Other<br>omprehensive<br>Income | Sto | Total<br>ckholders'<br>Equity |
|--|--------------------|----------|-----------------|----|-------------------|----|------------------------------|----|----------------------|----|--|-----|-------------------------------|
| Balance, January 1,<br>2007                                  | \$                 | \$       | 21,481          | \$ | (5,254)           | \$ | 153,487                      | \$ | 121,539              | \$ | 5,871  | \$  | 297,124                       |
| Comprehensive<br>Income:                                     | ψ                  | ψ        | 21,401          | Ψ  | (3,234)           | Ψ  | 155,+67                      | Ψ  | 121,557              | Ψ  | 5,671  | ψ   | 277,124                       |
| Net income<br>Other  |                    |          |                 |    | —                 |    | _                            |    | 26,952               |    | —  |     | 26,952                        |
| comprehensive<br>loss:<br>Unrealized losses<br>on securities | _                  |          | _               |    | _                 |    | _                            |    | _                    |    | 629  |     | 629                           |
| Total<br>comprehensive<br>income                             |                    |          |                 |    |                   |    |                              |    |                      |    |  |     | 27,581                        |
| Common stock<br>dividends<br>declared \$(0.225               |                    |          |                 |    |                   |    |                              |    | (4.006)              |    |  |     | (4,006)                       |
| per share)<br>Issuance of common                             |                    |          | _               |    | _                 |    | _                            |    | (4,906)              |    | —  |     | (4,906)                       |
| stock<br>Acquisition of                                      |                    |          | 91              |    |                   |    | 1,274                        |    | —                    |    | —  |     | 1,365                         |
| treasury stock<br>Share-based payment                        |                    | -        | 40              |    | (8,221)           |    | 204                          |    | —                    |    | —  |     | (7,977)                       |
| expense  |                    |          | _               |    | _                 |    | 4,943                        |    |                      |    | _  |     | 4,943                         |
| Excess tax benefit on<br>share-based<br>payments             | _                  |          | _               |    | _                 |    | 270                          |    | _                    |    | _  |     | 270                           |
| Balance, September<br>30, 2007                               | \$                 | \$       | 21,612          | \$ | (13,475)          | \$ | 160,178                      | \$ | 143,585              | \$ | 6,500  | \$  | 318,400                       |
| 50, 2007   | φ                  | φ        | 21,012          | ψ  | (13,475)          | ψ  | 100,170                      | φ  | 1+5,505              | ψ  | 0,500  | ψ   | 510,400                       |
| Balance, January 1,<br>2008                                  | \$ 41,000          | \$       | 27,225          | \$ | (13,559)          | \$ | 311,989                      | \$ | 126,204              | \$ | 7,934  | \$  | 500,793                       |
| Comprehensive Loss:<br>Net loss<br>Other                     |                    |          | _               |    | _                 |    | ,<br>                        |    | (29,488)             |    | ,<br>  |     | (29,488)                      |
| comprehensive<br>loss:<br>Unrealized losses                  |                    |          |                 |    |                   |    |                              |    |                      |    |  |     |                               |
| on securities  | —                  |          | —               |    | —                 |    | —                            |    | —                    |    | (6,007)  |     | (6,007)                       |
| Total<br>comprehensive<br>loss                               |                    |          |                 |    |                   |    |                              |    |                      |    |  |     | (35,495)                      |
| Common stock<br>dividends<br>declared \$(0.225               |                    |          |                 |    |                   |    |                              |    |                      |    |  |     | (7.0.0)                       |
| per share)<br>Preferred stock<br>dividends                   |                    | -        |                 |    | _                 |    | _                            |    | (7,068)              |    |  |     | (7,068)                       |
| declared<br>Issuance of preferred                            | 17.070             |          |                 |    | _                 |    | _                            |    | (400)                |    | _  |     | (400)                         |
| stock<br>Issuance of common                                  | 17,070             |          | 4.022           |    | _                 |    | 147.010                      |    | _                    |    | _  |     | 17,070                        |
| stock<br>Acquisition of                                      |                    |          | 4,922           |    |                   |    | 147,219                      |    | _                    |    | _  |     | 152,141                       |
| treasury stock<br>Share-based payment                        |                    |          | _               |    | (2,067)           |    | _                            |    | _                    |    |  |     | (2,067)                       |
| expense<br>Excess tax benefit on                             | _                  | <u>.</u> |                 |    |                   |    | 14,261                       |    | _                    |    | _  |     | 14,261                        |
| share-based  |                    |          |                 |    |                   |    |                              |    |                      |    |  |     |                               |

| payments                 |        |              | <br>         | <br>           | <br>885       | <br>         | <br>        |    | 885     |
|--------------------------|--------|--------------|--------------|----------------|---------------|--------------|-------------|----|---------|
| Balance, Sep<br>30, 2008 | tember | \$<br>58,070 | \$<br>32,147 | \$<br>(15,626) | \$<br>474,354 | \$<br>89,248 | \$<br>1,927 | \$ | 640,120 |
| ,                        |        | ,            | ,            | . , , ,        |               |              | ,           | _  | ,       |

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

#### PRIVATEBANCORP, INC. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Amounts in thousands) (Unaudited)

|   | Nine mo<br>Septe |            |           |
|---|------------------|------------|-----------|
|   | 2008             |            | 2007      |
| Cash flows from operating activities  |                  |            |           |
| Net (loss) income   | \$ (29,488       | ) \$       | 26,952    |
| Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities: |                  |            |           |
| Depreciation and amortization   | 3,602            |            | 2,751     |
| Provision for loan losses   | 70,329           |            | 6,763     |
| Net (gain) on sale of securities  | (1,280           | )          | (348)     |
| Net decrease in loans held for sale   | 12,622           |            | 10,253    |
| Increase (decrease) in deferred loan fees   | 14,188           |            | (1,005)   |
| Share-based payment expense   | 15,293           |            | 4,943     |
| Change in minority interest   | 256              |            | 285       |
| (Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable                                | (8,322           | )          | 68        |
| Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable                                   | 15,825           |            | (2,103)   |
| Correction of Lodestar goodwill   | (1,704           | )          |           |
| Increase in other assets  | (63,472          | )          | (10,999)  |
| Increase (decrease) in other liabilities  | 590              |            | (4,943)   |
| Total adjustments   | 57,927           |            | 5,665     |
| Net cash provided by operating activities   | 28,439           |            | 32,617    |
| Cash flows from investing activities  |                  |            |           |
| Proceeds from maturities, paydowns, and sales of available-for-sale securities    | 134,134          |            | 80,151    |
| Purchases of available-for-sale securities  | (509,615         | )          | (80,002)  |
| Net (increase) in loans   | (3,294,323       | )          | (238,981) |
| Purchases of premises and equipment   | (7,651           | )          | (6,182)   |
| Net cash used by investing activities   | (3,677,455       | )          | (245,014) |
| Cash flows from financing activities  |                  | í <u> </u> | î         |
| Net increase in total deposits  | 3,688,774        |            | 36,993    |
| Proceeds from exercise of stock options   | 3,281            |            | 1,609     |
| Excess tax benefit on share-based compensation payments                           | 885              |            | 270       |
| Acquisition of treasury stock   | (2,067           | )          | (8,221)   |
| Cash dividends paid   | (7,194           | )          | (4,906)   |
| Proceeds from issuance of common stock  | 148,860          |            |           |
| Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock   | 17,070           |            |           |
| Proceeds from issuance of debt  | 538,470          |            | 406,577   |
| Repayment of debt   | (363,309         | )          | (224,283) |
| Net cash provided by financing activities   | 4,024,770        |            | 208,039   |
| Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                              | 375,754          |            | (4,358)   |
| Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year                                    | 64,551           |            | 79,397    |
| Cash and cash equivalents at end of period  | \$ 440,305       |            | 75,039    |
|   |                  | -          | - , /     |

The accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

#### PRIVATEBANCORP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

#### NOTE 1—BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The consolidated financial information of PrivateBancorp, Inc. ("PrivateBancorp" or the "Company") and its direct and indirect subsidiaries, The PrivateBank – Chicago, which includes Lodestar Investment Counsel, LLC ("Lodestar"), The PrivateBank – St. Louis, which includes The PrivateBank – Kansas City, The PrivateBank – Wisconsin, The PrivateBank – Michigan, The PrivateBank – Georgia, and The PrivateBank Mortgage Company, included herein is unaudited; however, such information reflects all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments), which are, in the opinion of management, necessary for a fair presentation for the interim periods. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Article 10 of Regulation S-X.

The annualized results of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 are not necessarily indicative of the results expected for the full year ending December 31, 2008. The accompanying consolidated financial statements are unaudited and do not include information or footnotes necessary for a complete presentation of financial condition, results of operations, or cash flows in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The consolidated financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2008 should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes for the year ended December 31, 2007 included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expense during the reported period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

#### **Recent Accounting Pronouncements**

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Statement No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements" ("SFAS No. 157"), to provide guidance on how to measure fair value, which would apply broadly to financial and non-financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value under other authoritative accounting pronouncements. The statement defines fair value, provides a hierarchy that prioritizes inputs that should be used in valuation techniques used to measure fair value, and expands current disclosures about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities. The disclosures focus on the methods used for the measurements and their effect on earnings and would apply whether the assets were measured at fair value in all periods, such as trading securities, or in only some periods, such as for impaired assets. The adoption did not have a material impact on financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity. Please refer to Note 10 beginning on page 14 for more information.

On October 10, 2008, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position (FSP) Statement No. 157-3, "Determining the Fair Value of a Financial Asset When the Market for That Asset Is Not Active" ("FSP SFAS No. 157-3"). The FSP SFAS No. 157-3 clarifies the application of SFAS No. 157 in a market that is not active and provides an example to illustrate key considerations in determining the fair value of a financial asset when the market for that financial asset is not active. The FSP is effective upon issuance, including prior periods for which financial statements have not been issued. The provisions of FSP SFAS No. 157-3 did not have an impact on the Company's financial condition or results of operations.

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities" ("SFAS No. 159"). The statement gives companies the option, at specified election dates, to measure certain financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The election may be applied to financial assets and liabilities on an instrument by instrument basis, is irrevocable, and may only be applied to entire instruments. Unrealized gains and losses on instruments for which the fair value option has been elected will be reported in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The adoption did not have a material impact on financial condition, results of operations, or liquidity, as we did not elect the fair value option for any of our financial assets or liabilities.

#### Pending Adoption of Accounting Standards

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), "Business Combinations" ("SFAS No. 141(R)"). SFAS No. 141(R) will significantly change how entities apply the acquisition method to business combinations. The most significant changes affecting how the Company will account for business combinations under this Statement include: the acquisition date will be the date the acquirer obtains control; all (and only) identifiable assets acquired, liabilities assumed, and noncontrolling interests in the acquiree will be stated at fair value on the acquisition date; assets or liabilities arising from noncontractual contingencies will be measured at their acquisition date fair value only if it is more likely than not that they meet the definition of an asset or liability on the acquisition date; adjustments subsequently made to the provisional amounts recorded on the acquisition date will be made retroactively during a measurement period not to exceed one year; acquisition-related restructuring costs that do not meet the criteria in SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities", will be expensed as incurred; transaction costs will be expensed as incurred; reversals of deferred income tax valuation allowances and income tax contingencies will be recognized in earnings subsequent to the measurement period; and the allowance for loan losses of an acquiree will not be permitted to be recognized by the acquirer. Additionally, SFAS No. 141(R) will require new and modified disclosures surrounding subsequent changes to acquisition-related contingencies, contingent consideration, noncontrolling interests, acquisition-related transaction costs, fair values and cash flows not expected to be collected for acquired loans, and an enhanced goodwill rollforward.

The Company will be required to prospectively apply SFAS No. 141(R) to all business combinations completed on or after January 1, 2009. Early adoption is not permitted. For business combinations in which the acquisition date was before the effective date, the provisions of SFAS No. 141(R) will apply to the subsequent accounting for deferred income tax valuation allowances and income tax contingencies and will require any changes in those amounts to be recorded in earnings. The effect of these new requirements in the Company's financial position and

results of operations will depend on the volume and terms of acquisitions in 2009 and beyond, but will likely increase the amount and change the timing of recognizing expenses related to acquisition activities.

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, "Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements - an Amendment of ARB No. 51" ("SFAS No. 160"). SFAS No. 160 requires that a noncontrolling interest in a subsidiary be reported separately within equity and the amount of consolidated net income specifically attributable to the noncontrolling interest be identified in the consolidated financial statements. It also calls for consistency in the manner of reporting changes in the parent's ownership interest and requires fair value measurement of any noncontrolling equity investment retained in a deconsolidation. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company is currently evaluating the effects SFAS No. 160 will have on the financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

In March 2008, the FASB issued Statement No. 161, "Disclosures About Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities - an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" ("SFAS No. 161"). SFAS No. 161 requires qualitative disclosures about objectives and strategies for using derivatives, quantitative disclosures about fair value amounts of and gains and losses on derivative instruments, and disclosures about credit-riskrelated contingent features in derivative agreements. SFAS No. 161 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2008. Since SFAS No. 161 affects only disclosures, it will not impact the Company's financial position or results of operations upon adoption.

In May 2008, the FASB issued FSP APB No. 14-1, "Accounting for Convertible Debt Instruments That May Be Settled in Cash upon Conversion (Including Partial Cash Settlement)" ("FSP APB No. 14-1"), to clarify that convertible debt instruments that may be settled in cash upon conversion (including partial cash settlement) are not addressed by paragraph 12 of APB Opinion No. 14, "Accounting for Convertible Debt and Debt Issued with Stock Purchase Warrants". The FSP requires the issuer of certain convertible securities that may be settled partially in cash on conversion to separately account for the liability and equity components in a manner that will reflect the entity's nonconvertible debt borrowing rate when interest cost is recognized in subsequent periods. This FSP applies to the contingent convertible senior notes discussed in Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and will require retroactive application for the Company's 2007 and 2008 financial statements. This statement will be effective for the Company in the first quarter of 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the effects FSP No. APB 14-1 will have on the financial position, results of operations and liquidity.

#### NOTE 2—OPERATING SEGMENTS

With the continued implementation of the Company's Strategic Growth Plan, the Company has undergone a transition with respect to its operating segments. As previously discussed, beginning in January 1, 2008, this transition included centralization of functions and reconfiguration of management reporting lines. The geographic banking offices are now part of one operating segment, the Banking segment. As such, our operations consist of three primary operating segments: Banking (which includes The PrivateBank Mortgage Company); The PrivateWealth Group (which includes Lodestar); and the Holding Company. Insurance expense for the Company is allocated to all segments. We apply the accrual basis of accounting for each reportable segment and for transactions between reportable segments. During the first nine months of 2008, there were no changes in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss as compared to the same period for 2007. The accounting policies of the segments are generally the same as those described in Note 1—Basis of Presentation to the consolidated financial statements.

Balance sheet highlights at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 for each business segment are summarized in the following segment tables (in thousands):

|                               | Т   | otal gross |    |           |    |           | bo | Total<br>prrowings |    |           |
|-------------------------------|---|------------|----|-----------|----|-----------|----|--------------------|----|-----------|
| September 30, 2008            | loans Total assets Total deposits (1) Total cap |            |    |           |    |           |    | tal capital        |    |           |
| Banking (2)                   | \$  | 7,441,137  | \$ | 8,096,367 | \$ | 7,538,060 | \$ | 477,194            | \$ | 882,181   |
| Holding Company Activities    |   | -          |    | 1,003,208 |    | -         |    | 359,793            |    | 640,120   |
| Intersegment Eliminations (3) |   | -          |    | (88,112)  |    | (88,112)  |    | -                  |    | (882,181) |
| Consolidated                  | \$  | 7,441,137  | \$ | 9,011,463 | \$ | 7,449,948 | \$ | 836,987            | \$ | 640,120   |

|                               | Т   | otal gross |    |           |    |           | bo | Total<br>prrowings |    |           |
|-------------------------------|---|------------|----|-----------|----|-----------|----|--------------------|----|-----------|
| December 31, 2007             | loans Total assets Total deposits (1) Total |            |    |           |    |           |    | al capital         |    |           |
| Banking (2)                   | \$  | 4,177,795  | \$ | 4,399,741 | \$ | 3,970,039 | \$ | 370,559            | \$ | 574,673   |
| Holding Company Activities    |   | -          |    | 799,365   |    | -         |    | 291,283            |    | 500,793   |
| Intersegment Eliminations (3) |   | -          |    | (208,901) |    | (208,901) |    | -                  |    | (574,673) |
| Consolidated                  | \$  | 4,177,795  | \$ | 4,990,205 | \$ | 3,761,138 | \$ | 661,842            | \$ | 500,793   |

(1) Includes Debentures for the Holding Company segment.

(2) For segment reporting purposes, the balance sheet of The PrivateWealth Group is included in the Banking segment, including goodwill.

(3) Intersegment eliminations for total capital reflect the elimination of the net investment in each of the Holding Company subsidiaries in consolidation. The intersegment eliminations for total deposits reflect the elimination of the Holding Company's cash deposited at The PrivateBanks.

Financial results for each business segment for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007 are presented below (in thousands):

| Three months ended<br>September 30, 2008 | In | Interest<br>come<br>pense) | <br>ovision for<br>an Losses | N  | on-Interest<br>Income | N  | on-Interest<br>Expense | <br>Minority<br>Interest<br>Expense | _  | ncome Tax<br>(Benefit)<br>Provision | Net (Loss)<br>Income |
|--|----|----------------------------|------------------------------|----|-----------------------|----|------------------------|-------------------------------------|----|-------------------------------------|----------------------|
| Banking                                  | \$ | 59,763                     | \$<br>30,173                 | \$ | 7,655                 | \$ | 36,143                 | \$<br>-                             | \$ | (788)                               | \$<br>1,890          |
| The PrivateWealth                        |    |                            |                              |    |                       |    |                        |                                     |    |                                     |                      |
| Group                                    |    | 478                        | -                            |    | 4,059                 |    | 4,077                  | 86                                  |    | 131                                 | 243                  |
| Holding Company                          |    |                            |                              |    |                       |    |                        |                                     |    |                                     |                      |
| Activities                               |    | (6,512)                    | -                            |    | 47                    |    | 6,912                  | -                                   |    | (4,349)                             | (9,028)              |
| Intersegment                             |    |                            |                              |    |                       |    |                        |                                     |    |                                     |                      |
| Eliminations (1)                         |    | (574)                      |                              |    | (47)                  |    | (47)                   |                                     |    | (205)                               | (369)                |
| Consolidated                             | \$ | 53,155                     | \$<br>30,173                 | \$ | 11,714                | \$ | 47,085                 | \$<br>86                            | \$ | (5,211)                             | \$<br>(7,264)        |

| Three months ended | _   | Interest<br>ncome | Prov | ision for | N  | on-Interest | N  | on-Interest | Minority<br>Interest | icome Tax<br>Provision | N  | let Income |
|--------------------|-----|-------------------|------|-----------|----|-------------|----|-------------|----------------------|------------------------|----|------------|
| September 30, 2007 | (Ey | kpense)           | Loar | 1 Losses  |    | Income      |    | Expense     | Expense              | (Benefit)              |    | (Loss)     |
| Banking            | \$  | 36,026            | \$   | 2,399     | \$ | 2,734       | \$ | 17,448      | \$<br>-              | \$<br>5,942            | \$ | 12,971     |
| The PrivateWealth  |     |                   |      |           |    |             |    |             |                      |                        |    |            |
| Group              |     | 340               |      | -         |    | 4,029       |    | 3,528       | 100                  | 272                    |    | 469        |
| Holding Company    |     |                   |      |           |    |             |    |             |                      |                        |    |            |
| Activities         |     | (3,716)           |      | -         |    | 50          |    | 2,995       | -                    | (2,602)                |    | (4,059)    |
| Intersegment       |     |                   |      |           |    |             |    |             |                      |                        |    |            |
| Eliminations (1)   |     | (362)             |      | -         |    | (47)        |    | (47)        | -                    | (146)                  |    | (216)      |
| Consolidated       | \$  | 32,288            | \$   | 2,399     | \$ | 6,766       | \$ | 23,924      | \$<br>100            | \$<br>3,466            | \$ | 9,165      |

| Nine months ended<br>September 30, 2008 | Net Interest<br>Income<br>(Expense) |          | Income Pro<br>(Expense) Loa |        | N  | Non-Interest<br>Income |    | Non-Interest<br>Expense |    | Minority<br>Interest<br>Expense |    | Income Tax<br>(Benefit)<br>Provision |    | Net (Loss)<br>Income |
|---|-------------------------------------|----------|-----------------------------|--------|----|------------------------|----|-------------------------|----|---------------------------------|----|--------------------------------------|----|----------------------|
| Banking                                 | \$                                  | 148,347  | \$                          | 70,329 | \$ | 16,845                 | \$ | 107,685                 | \$ | -                               | \$ | (8,452)                              | \$ | (4,370)              |
| The PrivateWealth                       |                                     |          |                             |        |    |                        |    |                         |    |                                 |    |                                      |    |                      |
| Group                                   |                                     | 1,438    |                             | -      |    | 12,828                 |    | 12,351                  |    | 256                             |    | 623                                  |    | 1,036                |
| Holding Company                         |                                     |          |                             |        |    |                        |    |                         |    |                                 |    |                                      |    |                      |
| Activities                              |                                     | (15,542) |                             | -      |    | 147                    |    | 21,333                  |    | -                               |    | (11,623)                             |    | (25,105)             |
| Intersegment                            |                                     |          |                             |        |    |                        |    |                         |    |                                 |    |                                      |    |                      |
| Eliminations (1)                        |                                     | (1,667)  |                             |        |    | (147)                  |    | (147)                   |    |                                 |    | (618)                                |    | (1,049)              |
| Consolidated                            | \$                                  | 132,576  | \$                          | 70,329 | \$ | 29,673                 | \$ | 141,222                 | \$ | 256                             | \$ | (20,070)                             | \$ | (29,488)             |

| Nine months ended<br>September 30, 2007 | Net Interest<br>Income<br>(Expense) |          | t<br>Provision for<br>Loan Losses |       | Non-Interest<br>Income |        | Non-Interest<br>Expense |        | Minority<br>Interest<br>Expense |     | Income Tax<br>Provision<br>(Benefit) |         |    | Vet Income<br>(Loss) |
|---|-------------------------------------|----------|-----------------------------------|-------|------------------------|--------|-------------------------|--------|---------------------------------|-----|--------------------------------------|---------|----|----------------------|
| Banking                                 | \$                                  | 106,768  | \$                                | 6,763 | \$                     | 8,148  | \$                      | 51,109 | \$                              | -   | \$                                   | 18,245  | \$ | 38,799               |
| The PrivateWealth                       |                                     |          |                                   |       |                        |        |                         |        |                                 |     |                                      |         |    |                      |
| Group                                   |                                     | 869      |                                   | -     |                        | 11,878 |                         | 10,600 |                                 | 285 |                                      | 716     |    | 1,146                |
| Holding Company                         |                                     |          |                                   |       |                        |        |                         |        |                                 |     |                                      |         |    |                      |
| Activities                              |                                     | (10,322) |                                   | -     |                        | 188    |                         | 9,034  |                                 | -   |                                      | (6,742) |    | (12,426)             |
| Intersegment                            |                                     |          |                                   |       |                        |        |                         |        |                                 |     |                                      |         |    |                      |
| Eliminations (1)                        |                                     | (941)    |                                   | -     |                        | (144)  |                         | (144)  |                                 | -   |                                      | (374)   |    | (567)                |
| Consolidated                            | \$                                  | 96,374   | \$                                | 6,763 | \$                     | 20,070 | \$                      | 70,599 | \$                              | 285 | \$                                   | 11,845  | \$ | 26,952               |

(1) The intersegment eliminations for net interest expense reflect the elimination of the Holding Company's interest earned on cash deposited at The PrivateBanks and the elimination of a credit allocated to The PrivateWealth Group for interest paid by the Banking segment on deposits initiated by clients of The PrivateWealth Group. The tax effect of this credit is likewise eliminated from the income tax line. The intersegment elimination for non-interest income and non-interest expense includes rent expense paid by the Banking segment to the Holding Company.

#### Banking

The PrivateBank provides personalized financial services to a growing array of middle-market privately held and public businesses, affluent individuals, wealthy families, professionals, entrepreneurs and real estate investors. Commercial lending products include lines of credit for working capital, term loans for equipment and other investment purposes and letters of credit to support the commitments made by its clients.

Treasury management services include a comprehensive suite of collection, disbursement, information reporting, and investment products to assist clients in optimizing their cash flow. New commercial banking services include capital markets products such as interest rate protection derivatives and options and foreign exchange. The PrivateBank offers a full range of real estate lending products including fixed and floating rate permanent and interim mortgages, and construction and commercial real estate loans. Private client services include interest-bearing checking, money market accounts, certificates of deposit, ATM/debit cards, investment brokerage accounts and domestic and international wire transfers. Additionally, we offer secured and unsecured personal loans and lines of credit.

Included in the Banking segment at September 30, 2008 was \$81.7 million of goodwill, unchanged from December 31, 2007. The Banking segment also includes \$3.9 million of acquired core deposit intangibles at September 30, 2008, compared to \$4.4 million at December 31, 2007. There was no goodwill or intangible impairment at September 30, 2008 or December 31, 2007.

#### The PrivateWealth Group

The PrivateWealth Group includes investment management, investment advisory, personal trust, estate administration, court-supervised guardianship, custodial, escrow, qualified intermediary and brokerage services provided to a wide range of clients and business interests. The PrivateWealth Group professionals work with clients to define objectives, goals and strategies for the clients' investment portfolios, which may include assisting with the selection of independent investment managers to handle account investments. Some of these professionals also work with clients' attorneys, accountants and other financial advisors to develop and implement their estate, investment and general financial plans. Consistent with the Company's philosophy, The PrivateWealth Group emphasizes a high level of personal service that is tailored to meet client needs. Most assets managed or supervised by The PrivateWealth Group are custodied at The PrivateBanks, where the services include the prompt collection and reinvestment of interest and dividend income, daily portfolio valuations, tracking and reporting of tax information, customized reporting and the settlement of securities transactions.

The PrivateBank has a controlling interest in Lodestar, an investment management firm that is part of The PrivateWealth Group for segment reporting purposes. Lodestar provides investment management services to high net worth clients, some of whom are also fiduciary services clients of The PrivateWealth Group. Additionally, clients have access to investment advisory, insurance products, and securities brokerage services through an affiliation with LPL Financial Corp. ("LPL"), a registered broker-dealer and registered investment advisor. These services and products are delivered by employees of the bank who also are registered representatives of LPL. Assets held in accounts receiving these services or products are custodied by LPL. Because the bank receives income and incurs expenses related to assets held in these accounts, the financial impacts of The PrivateBanks' affiliations with LPL is part of The PrivateWealth Group for segment reporting purposes.

Included in the Banking segment at September 30, 2008 was \$13.3 million of goodwill pertaining to The PrivateWealth Group segment, which increased by \$1.7 million from December 31, 2007 due to the second quarter 2008 correction of understated goodwill recorded in connection with the acquisition of Lodestar. At the time of the acquisition of an 80% interest in Lodestar in 2002, the Company did not properly record a liability and offsetting entries to goodwill and client relationship intangibles for the value of certain contractual "put" rights related to the minority interest owned by the principals of Lodestar. As a result of the error, goodwill and client relationship intangibles were understated, collectively, by \$2.2 million. The PrivateWealth Group segment also includes \$2.2 million of acquired client intangibles at September 30, 2008, compared to \$2.1 million at December 31, 2007. The increase in client relationship intangibles is due to the Lodestar accounting error offset by the appropriate amortization. There was no goodwill or intangible impairment at September 30, 2008 or December 31, 2007.

For the three months ended September 30, 2008, investment manager expenses were \$829,000 compared to \$857,000 in the prior year period. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, investment manager expenses were \$2.6 million compared to \$2.5 million in the prior year period.

#### Holding Company

Holding Company activities consist of parent company only matters. The Holding Company's most significant assets are net investments in its five banking subsidiaries and a mortgage company subsidiary, The PrivateBank Mortgage Company.

Holding Company activities are reflected primarily by interest expense on borrowings and operating expenses. Recurring Holding Company operating expenses consist of compensation expense related to share-based payments and professional services.

#### NOTE 3—EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE

The following table shows the computation of basic and diluted earnings per common share (in thousands, except per share data) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007:

|   | Three months ended<br>September 30, |    |        |  |  |
|---|-------------------------------------|----|--------|--|--|
|   | 2008                                |    | 2007   |  |  |
| Net (loss) income   | \$<br>(7,264)                       | \$ | 9,165  |  |  |
| Preferred stock dividends                                       | 146                                 |    |        |  |  |
| Net (loss) income available to common stockholders              | \$<br>(7,410)                       | \$ | 9,165  |  |  |
| Weighted average common shares outstanding                      | 31,634                              |    | 21,223 |  |  |
| Weighted average common shares equivalent                       |                                     |    | 596    |  |  |
| Weighted average common shares and common share equivalents (1) | 31,634                              |    | 21,819 |  |  |
| Net (loss) income per average common share – basic              | \$<br>(0.23)                        | \$ | 0.43   |  |  |
| Net (loss) income per average common share – diluted            | \$<br>(0.23)                        | \$ | 0.42   |  |  |

|   | Nine months ended<br>September 30, |    |        |  |  |
|---|------------------------------------|----|--------|--|--|
|   | 2008                               | 2  | 2007   |  |  |
| Net (loss) income   | \$<br>(29,488)                     | \$ | 26,952 |  |  |
| Preferred stock dividends                                       | 400                                |    |        |  |  |
| Net (loss) income available to common stockholders              | \$<br>(29,888)                     | \$ | 26,952 |  |  |
| Weighted average common shares outstanding                      | 28,822                             |    | 21,246 |  |  |
| Weighted average common shares equivalent                       | <br>                               |    | 642    |  |  |
| Weighted average common shares and common share equivalents (1) | <br>28,822                         |    | 21,888 |  |  |
| Net (loss) income per average common share – basic              | \$<br>(1.04)                       | \$ | 1.27   |  |  |
| Net (loss) income per average common share – diluted            | \$<br>(1.04)                       | \$ | 1.23   |  |  |

(1) Diluted shares are equal to basic shares for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 due to the net loss. The calculation of diluted earnings per share results in anti-dilution.

If the Company had net income, rather than a net loss, diluted average common shares outstanding would have increased by approximately 2.6 million shares for the third quarter 2008 and 2.3 million shares for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, which have been excluded from the determination of fully diluted earnings per share because of their anti-dilutive effect.

## NOTE 4—OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Change in the fair value of securities available-for-sale is presented on a net basis on the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity. The following table discloses the changes in the components of other accumulated comprehensive income for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 (in thousands):

|  | September 30, 2008              |            |    |                   |  |  |  |  |
|--|---------------------------------|------------|----|-------------------|--|--|--|--|
|  | Before Tax<br>Amount Tax Effect |            |    | t of Tax<br>mount |  |  |  |  |
| Change in unrealized (losses) on securities available-for-sale       | \$<br>(8,651)                   | \$ (3,343) | \$ | (5,308)           |  |  |  |  |
| Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains) included in net income | (1,112)                         | (413)      |    | (699)             |  |  |  |  |
| Change in net unrealized (losses)                                    | \$<br>(9,763)                   | \$ (3,756) | \$ | (6,007)           |  |  |  |  |

|  |      | September 30, 2007 |     |        |        |       |  |  |  |
|--|------|--------------------|-----|--------|--------|-------|--|--|--|
|  | Befo | ore Tax            | Net | of Tax |        |       |  |  |  |
|  | An   | Amount Tax Effect  |     |        | Amount |       |  |  |  |
| Change in unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale          | \$   | 1,264              | \$  | 406    | \$     | 858   |  |  |  |
| Less: reclassification adjustment for (gains) included in net income |      | (348)              |     | (119)  |        | (229) |  |  |  |
| Change in net unrealized gains                                       | \$   | 916                | \$  | 287    | \$     | 629   |  |  |  |

#### NOTE 5-AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES AND NON-MARKETABLE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gain or loss, and the estimated fair value of securities at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, were as follows (in thousands):

|                              | September 30, 2008 |          |    |         |       |         |    |            | December 30, 2007 |          |    |          |        |         |    |          |
|------------------------------|--------------------|----------|----|---------|-------|---------|----|------------|-------------------|----------|----|----------|--------|---------|----|----------|
|                              | A                  | mortized |    | Gross U | nreal | ized    | E  | stimated   | A                 | mortized |    | Gross Ui | ıreali | zed     | Es | stimated |
|                              |                    | Cost     |    | Gains   | Ι     | losses  | Fa | Fair Value |                   | Cost     |    | Gains    |        | osses   | Fa | ir Value |
| U. S. Treasury Notes         | \$                 | 118,887  | \$ | 1,988   | \$    | _       | \$ | 120,875    | \$                | 1,014    | \$ | _        | \$     | _       | \$ | 1,014    |
| U. S. Agency Notes           |                    |          |    |         |       | —       |    |            |                   | 2,977    |    | 20       |        | —       |    | 2,997    |
| U. S. Government Agency      |                    |          |    |         |       |         |    |            |                   |          |    |          |        |         |    |          |
| Mortgage-Backed              |                    |          |    |         |       |         |    |            |                   |          |    |          |        |         |    |          |
| Securities and               |                    |          |    |         |       |         |    |            |                   |          |    |          |        |         |    |          |
| Collateralized Mortgage      |                    |          |    |         |       |         |    |            |                   |          |    |          |        |         |    |          |
| Obligations                  |                    | 586,602  |    | 3,992   |       | (3,188) |    | 587,406    |                   | 300,468  |    | 2,563    |        | (921)   |    | 302,110  |
| Corporate Collateralized     |                    |          |    |         |       |         |    |            |                   |          |    |          |        |         |    |          |
| Mortgage Obligations         |                    | 6,852    |    |         |       | (283)   |    | 6,569      |                   | 9,296    |    | 84       |        | (24)    |    | 9,356    |
| Tax-Exempt Municipal         |                    |          |    |         |       |         |    |            |                   |          |    |          |        |         |    |          |
| Securities                   |                    | 178,120  |    | 2,987   |       | (2,755) |    | 178,352    |                   | 196,198  |    | 10,895   |        | (101)   |    | 206,992  |
| Taxable Municipal Securities |                    | 6,072    |    | 27      |       |         |    | 6,099      |                   | 3,790    |    | 12       |        |         |    | 3,802    |
| Federal Home Loan Bank       |                    |          |    |         |       |         |    |            |                   |          |    |          |        |         |    |          |
| ("FHLB") Stock               |                    | 14,606   |    |         |       |         |    | 14,606     |                   | 7,700    |    |          |        |         |    | 7,700    |
| Other                        |                    | 4,352    |    |         |       | _       |    | 4,352      |                   | 4,757    |    | 2        |        | _       |    | 4,759    |
|                              | \$                 | 915,491  | \$ | 8,994   | \$    | (6,226) | \$ | 918,259    | \$                | 526,200  | \$ | 13,576   | \$     | (1,046) | \$ | 538,730  |

At September 30, 2008, stockholders' equity reflected unrealized securities gains net of tax of \$1.9 million compared to unrealized securities gains net of tax of \$7.9 million at December 31, 2007. As of September 30, 2008, the Company has the intent and ability to hold any securities where the market value is below the amortized cost for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in value. Management does not believe any individual unrealized loss as of September 30, 2008 represents an other-than-temporary impairment.

#### NOTE 6—ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Following is a summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007 (in thousands):

|                                      |   | 2008       | 2007         |
|--------------------------------------|---|------------|--------------|
| Balance, January 1                   | ( | \$ 48,891  | \$<br>38,069 |
| Provision charged to earnings        |   | 70,329     | 6,763        |
| Loans charged-off, net of recoveries |   | (16,997)   | (2,719)      |
| Balance, September 30                | S | \$ 102,223 | \$<br>42,113 |

The following tables present the impaired, non-accrual and past due loans (in thousands):

|  | -  | ember 30,<br>2008 | ember 31,<br>2007 |
|--|----|-------------------|-------------------|
| Non-accrual loans:   |    |                   |                   |
| Non-accrual loans with specific valuation reserves required <sup>(1)</sup> | \$ | 37,282            | \$<br>13,277      |
| Non-accrual loans with no specific valuation reserves required             |    | 50,775            | 25,706            |
| Total non-accrual loans  | \$ | 88,057            | \$<br>38,983      |
| Loans past due 90 days and still accruing interest                         | \$ |                   | \$<br>53          |

|   | ember 30,<br>2008 | ecember<br>31,<br>2007 |
|---|-------------------|------------------------|
| Valuation reserve related to impaired loans               | \$<br>10,196      | \$<br>2,964            |
| Average recorded investment in impaired loans             | 58,505            | 18,654                 |
| Interest income foregone on impaired loans <sup>(2)</sup> | 3,484             | 1,403                  |

<sup>(1)</sup> These impaired loans require a valuation reserve because the value of the loans is less than the recorded investment in the loans.

<sup>(2)</sup> Interest calculation annualized for nine months ended September 30, 2008.

#### NOTE 7—FUNDS BORROWED

Funds borrowed, which include federal funds purchased, FHLB advances, borrowings under the Company's credit facility, and convertible senior notes, totaled \$592.2 million at September 30, 2008 and \$560.8 million at December 31, 2007. As of September 30, 2008, the Company had a total of \$115.0 million of contingent convertible senior notes held by qualified institutional investors. The notes are senior, unsecured obligations of PrivateBancorp, Inc. and pay interest semi-annually at a rate of 3.625% per year. The notes will mature on March 15, 2027, and will be convertible under certain circumstances into cash and, if applicable, shares of the Company's common stock at an initial conversion price of \$45.05 per share.

In the third quarter 2008, the Company entered into a credit facility comprised of \$20.0 million of senior holding company debt and a \$120.0 million subordinated debt facility issued by The PrivateBank - Chicago. The \$140.0 million credit facility replaced a credit facility with a correspondent bank comprised of a \$25.0 million senior debt facility and a \$75.0 million subordinated debt facility. The subordinated debt qualifies as Tier 2 capital under banking rules and regulations and was sold to commercial banks pursuant to a subordinated debt loan agreement, which includes customary representations, warranties, and events of default. The subordinated debt matures on September 26, 2015. The PrivateBank - Chicago, with regulatory approval, can prepay the subordinated debt without penalty at any time. The interest rate for the subordinated debt is floating at LIBOR plus 3.50%. The debt is unsecured and subordinate to all other categories of creditors, including general creditors.

At September 30, 2008, the Company had \$100.0 million of subordinated debt outstanding and none outstanding on the senior debt facility. The proceeds from the subordinated debt will be used to support the ongoing implementation of PrivateBancorp's Strategic Growth Plan. The senior debt will be used for general corporate purposes.

# NOTE 8 -- JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEFERRABLE INTEREST DEBENTURES HELD BY TRUSTS THAT ISSUED GUARANTEED CAPITAL DEBT SECURITIES

As of September 30, 2008, the Company owned 100% of the common securities of four trusts, PrivateBancorp Statutory Trust II,

PrivateBancorp Statutory Trust III, Bloomfield Hills Statutory Trust I, and PrivateBancorp Statutory Trust IV (the "Trusts"). In June 2008, PrivateBancorp Capital Trust IV was established as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and issued \$143.75 million aggregate liquidation amount of 10.00% Trust Preferred Securities, representing preferred beneficial interests in the Trust in an underwritten public offering at \$25.00 per Trust Preferred Security. PrivateBancorp Statutory Trust II and PrivateBancorp Statutory Trust III were established as wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company in June 2005 and December 2005, respectively. Bloomfield Hills Statutory Trust I was acquired as part of our acquisition of Bloomfield Hills Bancorp, Inc. on June 20, 2005. The Trusts were formed for purposes of issuing trust preferred securities to third-party investors and investing the proceeds from the issuance of the trust preferred securities and common securities solely in junior subordinated debentures ("Debentures") issued by the Company or its subsidiaries, with the same maturities and interest rates as the trust preferred securities. The Debentures are the sole assets of the Trusts.

The following table is a summary of the Company's junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities as of September 30, 2008.

| (dollars in thousands)             |    |           |    |          |          |            |                        |  |  |  |  |
|------------------------------------|----|-----------|----|----------|----------|------------|------------------------|--|--|--|--|
|                                    | r  | Earliest  |    |          |          |            |                        |  |  |  |  |
|                                    | Pr | Preferred |    |          | Maturity | Redemption | Coupon                 |  |  |  |  |
| Issuance Trust                     | Se | curities  | De | bentures | Date     | Date       | Rate                   |  |  |  |  |
| PrivateBancorp Statutory Trust II  | \$ | 50,000    | \$ | 51,547   | 09/15/35 | 09/15/10   | 6.00%(1)               |  |  |  |  |
| PrivateBancorp Statutory Trust III |    | 40,000    |    | 41,238   | 12/15/35 | 12/15/10   | 6.10%(2)               |  |  |  |  |
| Bloomfield Hills Statutory Trust I |    | 8,000     |    | 8,248    | 06/17/34 | 06/17/09   | Floating LIBOR + 2.65% |  |  |  |  |
| PrivateBancorp Statutory Trust IV  |    | 143,750   |    | 143,760  | 06/15/68 | 06/15/13   | 10.00%                 |  |  |  |  |
|                                    |    |           |    |          |          |            |                        |  |  |  |  |
| Total                              | \$ | 241,750   | \$ | 244,793  |          |            |                        |  |  |  |  |

(1) 6.00% rate effective until 9/15/2010, then floating at three-month LIBOR + 1.71%.

(2) 6.10% rate effective until 12/15/2010, then floating at three-month LIBOR + 1.50%.

The Trusts, which are variable interest entities, are not consolidated in the Company's consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, the Debentures are reflected as "Junior subordinated deferrable interest Debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities" on the face of the balance sheet and the common securities are included in "other assets."

The Company has guaranteed the payment of distributions and payments upon liquidation or redemption of the trust preferred securities, in each case to the extent of funds held by the Trusts. The Company and the Trusts believe that, taken together, the obligations of the Company under the guarantees, the Debentures, and other related agreements provide, in the aggregate, a full, irrevocable and unconditional guarantee, on a subordinated basis, of all of the obligations of the Trusts under the trust preferred securities. Subject to certain limitations, the Company has the right to defer the payment of interest on the Debentures at any time, or from time to time, for a period not to exceed 20 consecutive quarters. The trust preferred securities are subject to mandatory redemption, in whole or in part, upon repayment of the Debentures at maturity or their earlier redemption. The Debentures are redeemable in whole or in part prior to maturity at any time after the dates shown in the table, and earlier at the discretion of the Company if certain conditions are met, and, in any event, only after the Company has obtained Federal Reserve approval, if then required under applicable guidelines or regulations. The Federal Reserve has the ability to prevent interest payments on Debentures.

The Company's aggregate principal amount of outstanding Debentures at September 30, 2008 is \$244.8 million. As of September 30, 2008, \$212.7 million of our Debentures are eligible for treatment as Tier 1 capital as allowed by the Federal Reserve. On March 1, 2005, the Federal Reserve issued a final rule that retains Tier 1 capital treatment for trust-preferred securities but with stricter limits. Under the rule, after a five-year transition period, the aggregate amount of the trust preferred securities and certain other capital elements will retain their current limit of 25% of Tier 1 capital elements, net of goodwill less any associated deferred tax liability. The amount of trust preferred securities and certain other capital elements in excess of the limit could be included in Tier 2 capital, subject to restrictions. Applying the final rule at September 30, 2008, the Company would still be considered well-capitalized under regulatory capital guidelines.

#### NOTE 9—CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

During the third quarter 2008, the Company declared and paid a \$0.075 per share dividend, consistent with the third quarter 2007 dividend. The Company repurchased 42,671 shares of its common stock during the third quarter 2008, compared to 9,644 during the third quarter 2007.

On June 11, 2008, the Company closed a public offering of 4.0 million shares of newly issued common stock at a public offering price of \$34.00 per share, for net proceeds of \$130.6 million after deducting underwriting commissions. During the second quarter 2008, the Company also sold \$17.0 million of the Company's series A preferred stock to certain funds managed by an affiliate of GTCR Golder Rauner, L.L.C. ("GTCR") in connection with the exercise of GTCR's pre-emptive rights triggered by the public offering. GTCR purchased from the Company 522.963 shares of the Company's convertible preferred stock, which is convertible into 522,963 common shares and has no voting rights. Additionally, on June 19, 2008, underwriters of the June 11 public offering of common stock partially exercised their over-allotment option and purchased an additional 568,700 shares of newly issued common stock, for net proceeds of approximately \$18.5 million.

Additionally, the \$120.0 million subordinated debt facility entered into during the third quarter 2008 and described in Note 7 to the consolidated financial statements qualifies as Tier 2 capital under banking rules and regulations.

At September 30, 2008, the Company had \$100.0 million of subordinated debt outstanding and none outstanding on the senior debt facility. The proceeds from the subordinated debt will be used to support the ongoing implementation of PrivateBancorp's Strategic Growth Plan. The senior debt will be used for general corporate purposes.

#### NOTE 10 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company adopted SFAS No. 157 on January 1, 2008, which:

- defines fair value as the price that would be received upon the sale of an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, and establishes a framework for measuring fair value;
- establishes a three-level hierarchy for fair value measurements based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date;
- nullifies the guidance in EITF 02-3, which required the deferral of profit at inception of a transaction involving a derivative financial instrument in the absence of observable data supporting the valuation technique;
- eliminates large position discounts for financial instruments quoted in active markets and requires consideration of the Company's creditworthiness when valuing liabilities; and
- expands disclosures about instruments measured at fair value.

#### **Determination of Fair Value**

The Company has an established and well-documented process for determining the fair values of assets and liabilities. Fair value is based upon quoted market prices, where available. If listed prices or quotes are not available, fair value is based upon quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities. Valuation adjustments may be made to ensure that financial instruments are recorded at fair value. These adjustments include amounts to reflect counterparty credit quality, the Company's creditworthiness, liquidity and unobservable parameters that are applied consistently over time. To ensure that the valuations are appropriate, the Company has various controls in place.

The Company believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants. However, the use of different methodologies, or assumptions, to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different estimate of fair value. Additionally, the methods used may produce a fair value calculation that may not be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values.

#### Valuation Hierarchy

SFAS No. 157 establishes a three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The valuation hierarchy is based upon the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability as of the measurement date. The three levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in active markets.
- Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly, for substantially the full term of the financial instrument.
- Level 3 unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities.

A financial instrument's categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for instruments measured at fair value, as well as the general classification of such instruments pursuant to the valuation hierarchy.

#### Available-for-Sale Securities

Fair values are estimated by using pricing models, quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows. Examples of such instruments, which would generally be classified within level 2 of the valuation hierarchy, include collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage backed securities, and municipal bonds.

#### Impaired Loans

Impaired loans are included as Loans on the Company's balance sheet with amounts specifically reserved for credit impairment in the Allowance for Loan Losses. The fair value of impaired loans is based on underlying collateral or estimated cash flows that are discounted using a rate commensurate with the risk associated with the estimated cash flows. Assumptions regarding credit risk, cash flows and discount rates are determined using available market information and specific borrower information. These assets are classified within level 2.

#### Other Assets

Included in Other Assets are derivatives with positive fair values and other real estate owned, both generally classified as level 2. The fair value of derivatives are determined based on the fair market value as quoted by broker-dealers using standardized industry models, third party advisors using standardized industry models, or internally generated models based primarily on observable inputs. Other real estate owned is valued based on third-party appraisals of each property and the Company's judgment of other relevant market conditions. These assets are classified as level 2 valuations.

#### Other Liabilities

Included in Other Liabilities are derivatives with negative fair values. The fair value of derivatives are determined based on the fair market value as quoted by broker-dealers using standardized industry models, third party advisors using standardized industry models, or internally generated models based primarily on observable inputs. These are classified as level 2 valuations.

The following table presents the financial instruments carried at fair value on a recurring basis as of September 30, 2008 (dollars in thousands) by balance sheet caption as described above and by SFAS No. 157 valuation hierarchy:

|                               | Total |         | <br>Level 1   |    | Level 2 | <br>Level 3 |
|-------------------------------|-------|---------|---------------|----|---------|-------------|
| Assets                        |       |         |               |    |         |             |
| Available-for-sale securities | \$    | 899,301 | \$<br>120,875 | \$ | 774,685 | \$<br>3,741 |
| Other assets                  |       | 10,979  |               |    | 10,979  |             |
| Total assets                  | \$    | 910,280 | \$<br>120,875 | \$ | 785,664 | \$<br>3,741 |
| Liabilities                   |       |         |               |    |         |             |
| Other liabilities             | \$    | 11,792  | \$<br>        | \$ | 11,792  | \$<br>      |
| Total liabilities             | \$    | 11,792  | \$<br>        | \$ | 11,792  | \$<br>      |

The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial instruments carried at fair value as of September 30, 2008 (dollars in thousands):

|  | Sept | ee months<br>ended<br>ember 30,<br>2008 | en<br>Septen | nonths<br>ded<br>nber 30,<br>)08 |
|--|------|---|--------------|----------------------------------|
| Balance at the beginning of period               | \$   | 3,741                                   | \$           | 3,820                            |
| Total unrealized gains                           |      |   |              | 1                                |
| Purchases, sales, issuances and settlements, net |      |   |              | (80)                             |
| Transfer out of Level 3                          |      |   |              |                                  |
| Balance at the end of the period                 | \$   | 3,741                                   | \$           | 3,741                            |
|  |      |   |              |                                  |
| Net unrealized gains                             |      |   |              | 1                                |

#### Nonrecurring fair value changes

Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. The instruments are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis, but are subject to fair value adjustments in certain circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment). The following table presents the financial instruments carried at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of September 30, 2008 (dollars in thousands) by balance sheet caption as described above and by SFAS No. 157 valuation hierarchy:

|                             | <br>Total    | <br>Level 1 | <br>Level 2  | <br>Level 3 |
|-----------------------------|--------------|-------------|--------------|-------------|
| Assets                      |              |             |              |             |
| Impaired loans              | \$<br>35,416 | \$<br>      | \$<br>35,416 | \$<br>      |
| Other assets <sup>(1)</sup> | 18,465       |             | 18,465       |             |
| Total assets                | \$<br>53,881 | <br>        | \$<br>53,881 |             |
|                             |              |             |              |             |

## <sup>(1)</sup>Other real estate owned

At September 30, 2008 in accordance with the provisions of FASB Statement No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan," collateral-dependent impaired loans had a loan balance of \$45.6 million, a specific reserve of \$10.2 million and a fair value of \$35.4 million. The specific reserve for impaired loans included a writedown of \$4.7 million in the third quarter of 2008.

#### NOTE 11—FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK AND DERIVATIVE TRANSACTIONS

The Company has, through its subsidiaries, entered into credit-related instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the financing needs of its clients. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated financial statements. Credit risk represents the loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties failed to completely perform as contracted.

Our exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount of those instruments, assuming that the amounts are fully advanced and that collateral or other security is of no value. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments and conditional obligations as they do for on-balance-sheet instruments.

At September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007, the Company had the following categories of credit-related financial instruments:

|                              | Sep | tember 30,<br>2008 | Dec   | ember 31,<br>2007 |
|------------------------------|-----|--------------------|-------|-------------------|
|                              |     | (in thou           | isand | s)                |
| Commitments to extend credit | \$  | 2,652,948          | \$    | 1,211,258         |
| Standby letters of credit    |     | 137,597            |       | 72,691            |

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a client as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract.

Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since many of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. We evaluate each client's creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary, upon extension of credit is based on management's credit evaluation of the counterparty. Collateral held varies but may include accounts receivable, inventory, property, plant and equipment and income-producing commercial properties. During the third quarter, the Company determined that unfunded commitments were not consistently defined by all of its subsidiary banks in the determination of the unfunded commitment levels as previously reported for December 31, 2007. Applying a consistent definition, the Company determined that unfunded commitments to extend credit for December 31, 2007 was \$1,211,258, as reflected in the table above, compared to the previously reported amount of \$1,686,143. The Company determined that this change of unfunded commitments to extend credit as of December 31, 2007 was immaterial to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments we issue to guarantee the performance of a client to a third-party. Those guarantees are primarily issued to support commercial business activities of our clients. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in extending loan facilities to clients. The Company holds collateral supporting those commitments for which collateral is deemed necessary.

The Company enters into derivatives that include commitments to fund certain mortgage loans to be sold into the secondary market and forward commitments for the future delivery of residential mortgage loans. These derivatives are not entered into for purely speculative purposes nor have they been designated as SFAS No. 133 hedge relationships. It is the Company's practice to enter into forward commitments for the future delivery of fixed rate residential mortgage loans when interest rate lock commitments are entered into in order to economically hedge the effect of changes in interest rates on its commitments to fund the loans as well as on its portfolio of mortgage loans held-for-sale. At September 30, 2008, the Company had approximately \$19.0 million of interest rate lock commitments and \$25.7 million of forward commitments for the future delivery of residential mortgage loans that did not involve rate lock commitments. The fair values were estimated based on changes in mortgage rates from the date of the commitments.

As part of its expanded client product offering, the Company offers various interest rate and foreign exchange derivatives to its customers to assist them in the management of their market price risk. These derivatives include interest rate swaps and options, as well as currency forwards and options. We minimize our exposure from such contracts by entering into offsetting derivatives with institutional firms. At the request of customers, we also enter into swap participation agreements with other financial institutions to either accept or transfer a portion of the credit risk related to a customer interest rate swap.

The above derivatives are entered into for trading purposes since they do not relate to the Company's market risk exposures. These derivatives are carried at fair value as a component of Other assets and Other liabilities with changes in fair value recorded in the income statement as part of Capital markets products income.

At September 30, 2008, the aggregate fair value of client-related derivatives assets was \$11.0 million and the aggregate fair value of client-related derivatives liabilities was \$11.8 million. Net derivative losses of \$814,000 were recorded in Capital markets products income during the period.

By using derivatives, the Company is exposed to credit risk since the counterparty may not perform. The maximum loss on a derivative due to non-performance is equal to the greater of zero or its fair value. Credit risk is minimized through credit approvals, limits, collateral agreements, and monitoring procedures.

The Company nets derivative assets and liabilities in the balance sheet to the extent that master netting arrangements meet the requirements of FASB Interpretation No. 39, "Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Contracts," as amended by FASB Interpretation No. 41, "Offsetting of Amounts Related to Certain Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements."

#### NOTE 12—ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company is currently making equity award grants from two plans; the Strategic Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "Strategic LTICP") and the 2007 Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2007 LTICP"). As part of the Company's Strategic Growth Plan, the Company granted equity-based awards under its Strategic LTIP as a hiring inducement to certain new employees. During the fourth quarter of 2007, the Company made retention awards under the 2007 LTICP to certain executives as part of the implementation of the Strategic Growth Plan. We refer to awards issued as an inducement for new employees or for retention to existing executives as "transformation awards." In addition, certain other employees and non-employee directors have been granted awards from the 2007 LTICP as part of their annual compensation package.

#### **Transformation Awards**

The transformation awards include time-vested stock options and performance-vested stock options and market-condition restricted shares that vest based on the Company achieving specified levels of growth in earnings per share and stock price, respectively. The inducement awards which have been made during 2008 contain substantially the same terms as awards made during the fourth quarter of 2007, but with different exercise prices based on the closing stock price on the date of grant. The exercise price of the stock options granted in 2008 ranged from \$26.64 to \$36.75 per share. In 2008, the Company issued awards from the Strategic LTICP relating to 1,006,600 shares in the first quarter, 874,350 shares in the second quarter and 196,250 shares in the third quarter. Through September 30, 2008, inducement awards relating to 4,511,800 shares had been issued under the Strategic LTICP and 488,200 shares remain available for awards under the plan.

#### 2007 Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan

The PrivateBancorp, Inc. 2007 Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan was approved by the stockholders at the Company's 2008 annual meeting. As a result, the awards previously issued under the plan will be settled in shares of the Company's stock, rather than cash. The

Company used the annual meeting date as the measurement date to value these awards. Previously, these awards were considered liability awards and revalued at each reporting period.

In the second quarter 2008, the Company issued equity awards under the 2007 LTICP to employees and non-employee directors as part of the annual compensation package. These awards consist of time-vested stock options, restricted shares and restricted stock units. The total value of these awards is approximately \$6.4 million which will be expensed over a three-year period ending in the second quarter of 2011.

During the third quarter 2008, the Company issued awards relating to 124,402 shares to a nonemployee director, from the 2007 LTICP. These awards include time-vested stock options, performance vested stock options, restricted shares that vested on the grant date and restricted stock units similar to other non-employee directors. The total value of these awards is approximately \$1.6 million, \$1.3 million of which will be expensed prior to year-end.

#### **Stock- Based Compensation Expense**

Total stock-based compensation expense totaled \$5.8 million for the third quarter 2008 and \$1.4 million for the third quarter 2007.

#### ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

#### AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

#### Overview

PrivateBancorp, Inc. ("PrivateBancorp" or the "Company"), a Delaware corporation, is a growing diversified financial services company with 22 offices in nine states. The Company owns five depository institutions that operate under the name The PrivateBank. Since its inception in 1989, The PrivateBank has expanded into multiple geographic markets in the Midwest and Southeastern United States through the creation of de novo banks and banking offices and the acquisition of existing banks.

In the fourth quarter of 2007, we announced the implementation of our Strategic Growth Plan (the "Plan"), designed to take advantage of the disruption in the Chicago middle-market commercial banking market and realize our vision to be the bank of choice for middle-market commercial and commercial real estate companies, as well as business owners, executives, entrepreneurs and wealthy families in all of our markets by providing a sophisticated suite of private banking, lending, treasury management, capital markets and wealth management services through a relationship-based business model.

We continue to see strong revenue growth as a result of the execution of our Plan, driven by our organic balance sheet growth. We are selective in the clients we choose to do business with, opting for people and businesses we know and with which we have relationships. Based on our strategy, loans and deposits have continued to grow at a substantial pace. We have begun to achieve the operating leverage that we expected in the Strategic Growth Plan, and this is reflected in the following specific results:

- revenue during the third quarter grew 23% over second quarter 2008.
- efficiency ratio improved from 96% in the second quarter to 72% in the third quarter 2008.
- loans grew 16% during third quarter, and
- Client deposits grew 14% during the third quarter.

#### Balance Sheet Growth

Total loans increased 78% to \$7.4 billion at September 30, 2008, from \$4.2 billion at December 31, 2007. Commercial loans, including commercial and industrial and owner-occupied commercial real estate loans, continue to be the fastest-growing segment of the loan portfolio and increased to \$3.5 billion or 46% of our total loans from \$1.3 billion or 32% of total loans at the end of 2007. Commercial real estate loans decreased to 33% of our total loans at the end of the third quarter, compared to 38% of total loans at December 31, 2007. We believe that on a percentage basis, the portfolio is diversified and the Company has achieved a more preferred loan mix relative to the end of 2007.

Total deposits increased 98% to \$7.4 billion at September 30, 2008, from \$3.8 billion at December 31, 2007, with \$1.8 billion attributable to an increase in client deposits, which includes \$304.4 million in client CDARS<sup>TM</sup> deposits. The CDARS<sup>TM</sup> deposit program is a deposit services arrangement that achieves FDIC deposit insurance for jumbo deposit relationships, which we believe is an attractive feature to many of our middle-market and private banking clients, particularly in this challenging banking environment. Client deposits, which we define as total deposits less brokered deposits plus client CDARS<sup>TM</sup>, were \$5.0 billion, or 67%, of total deposits at the end of the third quarter.

During the third quarter 2008, we facilitated our deposit growth by aggressively pursuing deposits from existing and new clients, increasing institutional and municipal deposits, expanding our business DDA account balances through enhanced treasury management services, and continuing implementation of the CDARS<sup>TM</sup> deposit program.

We continue to enhance our suite of deposit products and treasury management services and in the third quarter 2008 average noninterest-bearing deposits grew to \$547.3 million from \$409.3 million at the end of the second quarter 2008 and from \$302.9 million at the end of 2007.

#### **Operating Leverage**

During the third quarter 2008, we began to experience the operating leverage that we expected to achieve through the ongoing implementation of our Strategic Growth Plan. Expenses began to moderate, allowing revenue to outpace the growth of expenses for the first time since adoption of the Plan in the fourth quarter 2007. Revenue, on a tax equivalent basis, grew 23% over the second quarter 2008 to \$65.8 million from \$53.5 million, reflecting an increase in net interest income and non-interest income.

Net interest income totaled \$53.2 million in the third quarter 2008, compared to \$43.1 million in the second quarter 2008, an increase of 23%. Net interest margin (on a tax equivalent basis) decreased to 2.72% for the third quarter 2008 compared to 2.77% for the second quarter 2008. Net interest margin has continued to decline during 2008 due to continued decreases in the prime and LIBOR rates of interest and the increasing cost of available funding sources as well as an increase in non-performing assets. A portion of this increased funding cost resulted from the issuance of \$143.8 million of 10% trust preferred securities during the second quarter 2008.

We are committed to diversifying our fee-based revenue and in the third quarter 2008 non-interest income, excluding securities gains and losses, increased 26% to \$11.5 million, compared to \$9.1 million in the second quarter 2008 and \$6.4 million in the third quarter 2007. Fee income from Treasury Management and Capital Markets groups contributed a combined \$4.3 million in the third quarter, compared to \$2.2 million in the second quarter 2008 and \$132,000 in the third quarter 2007. Banking and other services income increased from \$679,000 at the end of the third quarter 2008, primarily as a result of an increase in letter of credit fees.

Expenses related to personnel, professional services, and marketing all declined quarter over quarter contributing to an improved net loss

for the third quarter 2008 of \$7.3 million, or \$0.23 per diluted share, compared to a net loss of \$13.3 million, or \$0.48 per diluted share, for the second quarter 2008 and net income of \$9.2 million, or \$0.42 per diluted share, for the third quarter 2007.

Non-interest expense was \$47.1 million in the third quarter 2008, compared with \$51.2 million in the second quarter 2008, a decrease of 8%, and \$23.9 million in the third quarter 2007, an increase of 97%. The increase from a year ago reflects significant increases in compensation and marketing expenses related to the investment in our Strategic Growth Plan as well as increases in professional services and deposit insurance. Salaries and benefits expense decreased to \$28.9 million in the third quarter 2008 from \$31.8 million in the second quarter 2008, a decrease of 9%, mainly due to lower bonus accruals and minimal signing bonuses for new hires.

#### Credit Quality

The credit markets remain challenging, and the Company continues to make asset quality monitoring a key priority. The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans was 1.37% at September 30, 2008 compared to 1.23% at June 30, 2008, and 1.17% at December 31, 2007. During the third quarter 2008, the provision for loan losses increased to \$30.2 million compared to \$2.4 million in the third quarter 2007. The increase is attributable to the substantial loan growth the Company continues to experience, as well as current market conditions, which have led to an increase in non-performing assets and loans charged off during the third quarter 2008. Non-performing assets to total assets were 1.18% at September 30, 2008, compared to 0.97% at December 31, 2007. Net charge-offs totaled \$7.0 million in the third quarter 2008, or an annualized rate of 0.40% of average total loans, compared with net charge-offs of \$1.6 million, or an annualized rate of 0.17% of average total loans, in the prior year third quarter. Year-to-date, charge-offs were primarily attributable to residential development loans.

Delinquencies (loans 30-89 days past due and still accruing) at September 30, 2008, were \$50.0 million, or 0.67% of total loans, compared to \$30.1 million in delinquencies, or 0.47% of total loans, at June 30, 2008, and \$102.6 million, or 2.46% of total loans at December 31, 2007. This reduction in delinquencies as a percent of total loans since year-end 2007 is a direct result of a disciplined focus on actively reducing delinquent accounts.

#### Performance metrics

We are committed to differentiating our Company in the marketplace through the quality of our people, commitment to our clients, discipline around the quality of our portfolios and our processes, and the solid fundamentals that will support our growth. Management is keenly focused on the key performance indicators of operating efficiency, revenue growth, deposit and loan growth, asset quality and capital in order to enhance stockholder value as we continue to execute our Plan.

For financial information regarding our business segments, which include Banking, The PrivateWealth Group and Holding Company Activities, see "Operating Segments Results" beginning on page 32 and Note 2 to our consolidated unaudited financial statements as of and for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 included in this report.

#### **Critical Accounting Policies**

Generally accepted accounting principles are complex and require management to apply significant judgment to various accounting, reporting and disclosure matters. Management must use assumptions and estimates to apply these principles where actual measurements are not possible or practical. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements included herein. Reference should also be made to our significant accounting policies set out in the notes to consolidated financial statements, beginning on page F-8 in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Below is a discussion of our critical accounting policies. These policies are critical because they are highly dependent upon subjective or complex judgments, assumptions and estimates. Changes in such estimates may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Management has reviewed the application of these policies with the Audit Committee of the Company's Board of Directors.

The accounting policies that we view as critical to us are those relating to estimates and judgments regarding the determination of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses, the estimation of the valuation of goodwill and the useful lives applied to intangible assets, and income taxes.

#### Allowance for Loan Losses

We maintain an allowance for loan losses at a level management believes is sufficient to absorb credit losses inherent in our loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses represents our estimate of probable losses in the portfolio at each balance sheet date and is based on a review of available and relevant information. The allowance contains provisions for probable losses that have been identified relating to specific borrowing relationships as well as probable losses inherent in our loan portfolio. During the second quarter 2008, we enhanced our allowance methodology and established a market-specific reserve model that includes the quantification of external and internal factors impacting different markets. Our allowance for loan losses is assessed monthly to determine the appropriate level of the allowance. Our analysis is influenced by the following factors: assessment of the credit risk of the loans in the portfolio, impaired loans, evaluation of current economic conditions in the regional market areas, trends in asset quality, delinquent loans, actual charge-offs and recoveries during the period, industry loss averages, historical loss experience, loan portfolio concentrations and loan growth. The unallocated portion of the reserve involves the exercise of judgment by management and reflects various considerations, including management's view that the reserve should have a margin that recognizes the imprecision inherent in the process of estimating credit losses.

Upon the determination of an appropriate allowance level, management adjusts the allowance for loan losses by recording a provision for loan losses in an amount sufficient to maintain the allowance at the level determined appropriate. Loans are charged-off when deemed to be uncollectable by management. We believe that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to provide for estimated probable credit losses inherent in

#### Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the net assets acquired. Other intangible assets represent purchased assets that also lack physical substance but can be separately distinguished from goodwill because of contractual or other legal rights or because the asset is capable of being sold or exchanged either on its own or in combination with a related contract, asset, or liability. We perform an annual goodwill impairment test in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, which requires that goodwill and intangible assets that have indefinite lives be reviewed for impairment annually, or more frequently if certain indicators arise. Impairment losses on recorded goodwill, if any, will be recorded as operating expenses.

Goodwill is "pushed down" to business segments at acquisition. Fair values of reporting units are determined using either discounted cash flow analyses based on internal financial forecasts or, if available, market-based valuation multiples for comparable businesses. No impairment was identified as a result of the annual testing performed during 2007. In the second quarter 2008, as a result of the substantial drop in many peer bank valuations and the general deterioration of market conditions affecting banks, the Company reevaluated its goodwill valuations and found that no events or circumstances occurred during the period that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying value. In the fourth quarter 2008, the Company will perform its annual goodwill impairment tests.

Goodwill was adjusted during the second quarter 2008 to correct an accounting error made in connection with the December 2002 acquisition of Lodestar by The PrivateBank – Chicago. At the time of the acquisition, the Company did not properly record a liability and offsetting entries to goodwill and client relationship intangibles for the value of certain contractual "put" rights related to the minority interest owned by the principals of Lodestar. As a result of the error, goodwill and client relationship intangibles were understated by \$1.7 million and \$514,000, respectively.

Identifiable intangibles consist of customer intangibles acquired through various acquisitions and are amortized over their estimated lives using amortization methods determined by management to represent the recovery of their value. The estimates of the value upon acquisition, the useful life, and periodic assessment of impairment require significant judgment. Note 2 - Operating Segments contains additional information regarding goodwill carrying values.

#### Income Taxes

The Company is subject to the federal income tax laws of the United States and the tax laws of the states and other jurisdictions where it conducts business. Due to the complexity of these laws, taxpayers and the taxing authorities may subject these laws to different interpretations. Management must make conclusions and estimates about the application of these innately intricate laws, related regulations, and case law. When preparing the Company's tax returns, management attempts to make reasonable interpretations of the tax laws. Taxing authorities have the ability to challenge management's analysis of the tax law or any reinterpretation management makes in its ongoing assessment of facts and the developing case law. Management assesses the reasonableness of its effective tax rate quarterly based on its current estimate of net income and the applicable taxes expected for the full year. On a quarterly basis, management also reviews circumstances and developments in tax law affecting the reasonableness of deferred tax assets and liabilities and reserves for contingent tax liabilities.

#### RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE AND NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2008 AND 2007

The profitability of our operations depends on our net interest income, provision for loan losses, non-interest income, and non-interest expense. Net interest income is dependent on the amount of, and yields we are able to earn on, interest-earning assets, such as loans and investment securities, as compared to the amount of, and rates we are required to pay on, interest-bearing liabilities, such as deposits. Net interest income is sensitive to changes in market rates of interest as well as to the execution of our asset/liability management strategy. The provision for loan losses is affected by changes in the loan portfolio, including loan growth, management's assessment of the collectability of the loan portfolio, historical loss experience, as well as economic and market factors. Non-interest income consists primarily of fee revenue generated by The PrivateWealth Group, capital markets products income, treasury management income, mortgage banking income, earnings on bank owned life insurance and fees for ancillary banking services. Net securities gains/losses are also included in non-interest income.

#### Net Income

The Company reported a net loss for the third quarter 2008 of \$7.3 million, or \$0.23 per diluted share, compared to net income of \$9.2 million, or \$0.42 per diluted share, for the third quarter 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Company reported a net loss of \$29.5 million, or \$1.04 per diluted share, compared to net income of \$27.0 million, or \$1.23 per diluted share, for the prior year period. The net loss in each of the three-month and nine-month periods was primarily attributable to expenses associated with the implementation of our previously announced Strategic Growth Plan and an increase in our provision for loan losses. The nine-month period also includes a charge associated with the correction of a prior-period accounting error in the second quarter 2008.

#### **Net Interest Income**

Net interest income was \$53.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008, compared to \$32.3 million in the prior year quarter, an increase of 65%, primarily attributable to a significant increase in loan volume. Net interest income is affected by both the volume of assets and liabilities recorded during the period and the corresponding rates earned and paid on those balance sheet accounts. Net interest income increased over the prior year period primarily due to a larger base of assets earning interest, which more than offset the net interest margin compression

during the quarter. Average quarterly earning assets at September 30, 2008 were \$7.8 billion compared to \$4.2 billion at September 30, 2007, an increase of 86%. Given the strong growth in earning assets during the third quarter 2008, we expect growth in net interest income will continue during the fourth quarter 2008.

Our net interest margin on a tax equivalent basis was 2.72% for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to 3.16% for the prior year quarter, a decrease of 44 basis points. Earning assets yielded 5.58% in the third quarter 2008 compared to 7.50% in the third quarter 2007, a decrease of 192 basis points. Our cost of funds was 3.24% during the third quarter 2008 compared to 4.79% during the third quarter 2007, a decrease of 155 basis points. Non-interest bearing funds, which represent non-interest bearing sources of funds that are able to be deployed in interest bearing assets, positively impacted net interest margin by 0.38% for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to 0.45% in the prior year quarter.

A large portion of our funding is sensitive to movements in the federal funds rate through our prime rate of interest and in the short end of the LIBOR yield curve, as a large majority of our loan portfolio is effectively priced off the prime rate and LIBOR. Our net interest margin declined during 2008 due to continued decreases in the prime and LIBOR rates of interest and loans repricing more quickly than deposits; over the twelve month period from September 30, 2007 to September 30, 2008, the prime rate decreased 275 basis points and average 3-month LIBOR decreased 281 basis points. The cost of available funding sources used to support our loan growth, which did not decrease as significantly as the yield on our interest earning assets, has further negatively impacted our margin in 2008. Another factor that significantly increased our cost of funds in the third quarter 2008 compared to the same period in 2007 included the issuance of \$143.8 million of 10% trust preferred securities during the second quarter 2008. We continue to rely on relatively more expensive brokered deposits as a funding source for a portion of our balance sheet growth. The Federal Reserve recent move to lower rates, as well as any further reductions in interest rates, has and will put additional pressure on our net interest margin. During the latter part of the third quarter 2008, the cost of brokered deposits has fluctuated widely and, accordingly, it is difficult to predict the effect of this funding source on our net interest margin in future quarters.

Additionally, our net interest margin was negatively impacted by the increase in non-performing assets during the quarter, which grew to \$106.5 million at September 30, 2008 from \$73.1 million at June 30, 2008 and \$48.3 million at December 31, 2007. During the third quarter 2008, the Company reversed approximately \$1.0 million in accrued interest income due to loans which became non-performing. The interest reversal during the quarter accounted for five basis points of margin compression.

Net interest income was \$132.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, compared to \$96.4 million for the same period in 2007, an increase of 38%. Net interest margin on a tax equivalent basis was 2.77% for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, compared to 3.24% in the prior year period, a decrease of 47 basis points. The increase in net interest income in the 2008 period compared to the 2007 period was primarily attributable to the larger base of assets earning interest.

The following tables present a summary of our net interest income, related net interest margin, and average balance sheet calculated on a tax equivalent basis (dollars in thousands):

|   |    |                        |    | Т        | hree Months End | ed a     | September 30           |    |          |        |  |  |
|---|----|------------------------|----|----------|-----------------|----------|------------------------|----|----------|--------|--|--|
|   |    |                        |    | 2008     |                 | 2007 (1) |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
|   |    | Average                |    |          |                 |          | Average                |    |          |        |  |  |
|   | E  | Balance <sup>(2)</sup> |    | Interest | Rate            | I        | Balance <sup>(2)</sup> |    | Interest | Rate   |  |  |
| Assets:   |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| Fed funds sold and interest bearing               |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| deposits  | \$ | 37,962                 | \$ | 217      | 2.25%           | \$       | 15,390                 | \$ | 259      | 6.63%  |  |  |
| Securities:                                       |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          | 1.0.00 |  |  |
| Taxable   |    | 683,998                |    | 8,161    | 4.77%           |          | 283,948                |    | 3,450    | 4.86%  |  |  |
| Tax exempt  |    | 179,105                |    | 2,945    | 6.58%           |          | 198,148                |    | 3,417    | 6.90%  |  |  |
| Total securities                                  |    | 863,103                |    | 11,106   | 5.14%           |          | 482,096                |    | 6,867    | 5.70%  |  |  |
| Loans :   |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| Commercial, construction                          |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| and commercial real estate                        |    | 6,092,638              |    | 88,273   | 5.72%           |          | 3,108,900              |    | 61,612   | 7.86%  |  |  |
| Residential real estate                           |    | 373,665                |    | 4,972    | 5.32%           |          | 264,643                |    | 4,035    | 6.10%  |  |  |
| Private client                                    |    | 474,478                |    | 6,163    | 5.15%           |          | 334,646                |    | 6,652    | 7.89%  |  |  |
| Total loans <sup>(3)</sup>                        |    | 6,940,781              |    | 99,408   | 5.66%           |          | 3,708,189              |    | 72,299   | 7.74%  |  |  |
| Total earning assets                              | \$ | 7,841,846              | \$ | 110,731  | 5.58%           | \$       | 4,205,675              | \$ | 79,425   | 7.50%  |  |  |
| Allowance for loan losses                         |    | (84,808)               |    | ,        |                 |          | (41,174)               |    | ,        |        |  |  |
| Cash and due from banks                           |    | 101,023                |    |          |                 |          | 50,613                 |    |          |        |  |  |
| Other assets                                      |    | 325,291                |    |          |                 |          | 231,281                |    |          |        |  |  |
| Total average assets                              | \$ | 8,183,352              |    |          |                 | \$       | 4,446,395              |    |          |        |  |  |
| Liabilities:                                      |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| Interest-bearing demand accounts                  | \$ | 154,022                | \$ | 383      | 0.99%           | \$       | 137,740                | \$ | 475      | 1.37%  |  |  |
| Regular savings deposits                          | Ŷ  | 18,006                 | Ψ  | 80       | 1.76%           | Ŷ        | 11,979                 | Ŷ  | 64       | 2.12%  |  |  |
| Money market accounts                             |    | 2,282,822              |    | 12,705   | 2.21%           |          | 1,554,732              |    | 17,840   | 4.55%  |  |  |
| Time deposits                                     |    | 1,537,431              |    | 13,243   | 3.42%           |          | 1,069,765              |    | 14,101   | 5.23%  |  |  |
| Brokered deposits                                 |    | 2,092,609              |    | 20,355   | 3.86%           |          | 588,139                |    | 7,631    | 5.15%  |  |  |
| Total interest-bearing deposits                   |    | 6,084,890              |    | 46,766   | 3.05%           |          | 3,362,355              | _  | 40,111   | 4.73%  |  |  |
| Other borrowings                                  |    | 593,068                |    | 4,634    | 3.06%           |          | 343,820                |    | 4,350    | 4.95%  |  |  |
| Junior subordinated deferrable                    |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| interest debentures held by                       |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| trusts that issued guaranteed                     |    |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| capital debt securities                           |    | 244,793                |    | 5,258    | 8.40%           |          | 101,033                |    | 1,604    | 6.21%  |  |  |
| Total interest-bearing liabilities                | \$ | 6,922,751              | \$ | 56,658   | 3.24%           | \$       | 3,807,208              | \$ | 46,065   | 4.79%  |  |  |
| Non-interest bearing deposits                     |    | 547,304                |    |          |                 | _        | 299,201                |    |          |        |  |  |
| Other liabilities                                 |    | 84,803                 |    |          |                 |          | 32,062                 |    |          |        |  |  |
| Stockholders' equity                              |    | 628,494                |    |          |                 |          | 307,924                |    |          |        |  |  |
| Total average liabilities &                       | _  |                        |    |          |                 |          |                        |    |          |        |  |  |
| stockholders' equity                              | \$ | 8,183,352              |    |          |                 | \$       | 4,446,395              |    |          |        |  |  |
| Tax equivalent net interest income <sup>(4)</sup> |    |                        | \$ | 54,073   |                 |          |                        | \$ | 33,360   |        |  |  |
| Net interest spread <sup>(5)</sup>                |    |                        | -  |          | 2.34%           |          |                        | _  |          | 2.71%  |  |  |
| Effect of non interest bearing funds              |    |                        |    |          | 0.38%           |          |                        |    |          | 0.45%  |  |  |
| 0   |    |                        |    | -        |                 |          |                        |    | -        |        |  |  |
| Net interest margin <sup>(4)(6)</sup>             |    |                        |    | _        | 2.72%           |          |                        |    | _        | 3.16%  |  |  |

|                                     |                        | Nine Months Ended September 30, |          |       |                        |      |          |       |  |  |  |  |
|-------------------------------------|------------------------|---------------------------------|----------|-------|------------------------|------|----------|-------|--|--|--|--|
|                                     |                        |                                 | 2008     |       |                        | 2007 |          |       |  |  |  |  |
|                                     | Average                |                                 |          |       | Average                |      |          |       |  |  |  |  |
|                                     | Balance <sup>(2)</sup> |                                 | Interest | Rate  | Balance <sup>(2)</sup> |      | Interest | Rate  |  |  |  |  |
| Assets:                             |                        |                                 |          |       |                        |      |          |       |  |  |  |  |
| Fed funds sold and interest bearing |                        |                                 |          |       |                        |      |          |       |  |  |  |  |
| deposits                            | \$ 28,25               | 0 \$                            | 658      | 3.07% | \$ 16,230              | \$   | 736      | 6.01% |  |  |  |  |
| Securities:                         |                        |                                 |          |       |                        |      |          |       |  |  |  |  |
| Taxable                             | 489,63                 | 7                               | 17,903   | 4.87% | 281,952                |      | 10,633   | 5.03% |  |  |  |  |
| Tax exempt                          | 186,45                 | 1                               | 9,393    | 6.72% | 198,362                |      | 10,254   | 6.89% |  |  |  |  |
| Total securities                    | 676,08                 | 8                               | 27,296   | 5.38% | 480,314                | _    | 20,887   | 5.80% |  |  |  |  |
| Loans :                             |                        |                                 |          |       |                        |      |          |       |  |  |  |  |

| Commercial, construction                          |    |           |          |              |                |    |           |    |              |                |
|---|----|-----------|----------|--------------|----------------|----|-----------|----|--------------|----------------|
| and commercial real estate                        |    | 5,001,472 |          | 228,482      | 6.05%          |    | 3,035,797 |    | 180,753      | 7.96%          |
| Residential real estate                           |    | 331,992   |          | 13,743       | 5.52%          |    | 262,535   |    | 11,792       | 5.99%          |
| Private client                                    |    | 424,799   |          | 17,509       | 5.49%          |    | 326,231   |    | 19,372       | 7.94%          |
| Total loans <sup>(3)</sup>                        | _  | 5,758,263 | -        | 259,734      | 5.97%          |    | 3,624,563 |    | 211,917      | 7.82%          |
|   | ¢  | , ,       | <u>ф</u> | ,            |                | ¢  | , ,       | ¢  | ,            |                |
| Total earning assets                              | \$ | 6,462,601 | \$       | 287,688      | 5.90%          | \$ | 4,121,107 | \$ | 233,540      | 7.57%          |
| Allowance for loan losses                         |    | (67,839)  |          |              |                |    | (39,556)  |    |              |                |
| Cash and due from banks                           |    | 62,065    |          |              |                |    | 60,250    |    |              |                |
| Other assets                                      |    | 302,781   |          |              |                |    | 229,639   |    |              |                |
| Total average assets                              | \$ | 6,759,608 |          |              |                | \$ | 4,371,440 |    |              |                |
| <b>T</b> • 1 •1•/•                                |    |           |          |              |                |    |           |    |              |                |
| Liabilities:<br>Interest-bearing demand accounts  | ¢  | 158,875   | ¢        | 1 220        | 1.020/         | ¢  | 141 705   | ¢  | 1 509        | 1.420/         |
|   | \$ | 158,875   | \$       | 1,230<br>197 | 1.03%<br>1.68% | Э  | 141,705   | \$ | 1,508<br>179 | 1.42%<br>1.84% |
| Regular savings deposits<br>Money market accounts |    | - ) -     |          |              | 2.56%          |    | 13,004    |    |              | 4.52%          |
|   |    | 1,930,486 |          | 37,105       | 2.30%          |    | 1,521,090 |    | 51,454       |                |
| Time deposits<br>Brokered deposits                |    | 1,409,825 |          | 41,515       | 4.17%          |    | 1,038,331 |    | 40,197       | 5.18%<br>5.20% |
| -   |    | 1,545,645 |          | 48,397       |                |    | 579,602   |    | 22,549       |                |
| Total interest-bearing deposits                   |    | 5,060,443 |          | 128,444      | 3.38%          |    | 3,293,732 |    | 115,887      | 4.70%          |
| Other borrowings                                  |    | 490,049   |          | 14,141       | 3.79%          |    | 349,817   |    | 13,306       | 5.02%          |
| Junior subordinated deferrable                    |    |           |          |              |                |    |           |    |              |                |
| interest debentures held by                       |    |           |          |              |                |    |           |    |              |                |
| trusts that issued guaranteed                     |    | 170.000   |          | 0.507        | 7 4004         |    | 101.000   |    | 1.756        | c <b>0</b> 10/ |
| capital debt securities                           |    | 170,290   |          | 9,587        | 7.40%          |    | 101,033   |    | 4,756        | 6.21%          |
| Total interest-bearing liabilities                | \$ | 5,720,782 | \$       | 152,172      | 3.54%          | \$ | 3,744,582 | \$ | 133,949      | 4.77%          |
| Non-interest bearing deposits                     |    | 425,421   |          |              |                |    | 294,980   |    |              |                |
| Other liabilities                                 |    | 80,482    |          |              |                |    | 30,074    |    |              |                |
| Stockholders' equity                              |    | 532,924   |          |              |                |    | 301,804   |    |              |                |
| Total average liabilities &                       |    |           |          |              |                |    |           |    |              |                |
| stockholders' equity                              | \$ | 6,759,609 |          |              |                | \$ | 4,371,440 |    |              |                |
| Tax equivalent net interest income <sup>(4)</sup> |    |           | \$       | 135,516      |                |    |           | \$ | 99,591       |                |
| Net interest spread <sup>54)</sup>                |    |           |          |              | 2.36%          |    |           |    |              | 2.80%          |
| Effect of non interest bearing funds              |    |           |          |              | 0.41%          |    |           |    |              | 0.44%          |
| Net interest margin <sup>(4)(6)</sup>             |    |           |          |              | 2.77%          |    |           |    |              | 3.24%          |
| č   |    |           |          |              |                |    |           |    |              |                |

(1) Prior period net interest margin computations were modified to conform with the current period presentation.

(2) Average balances were generally computed using daily balances.

(3) Non-accrual loans are included in the average balances and the average annualized interest foregone on these loans was approximately \$4.5 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 compared to approximately \$1.8 million in the prior year quarter. The average annualized interest foregone on these loans was approximately \$3.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to approximately \$1.1 million in the prior year period.

(4) Reconciliation of current quarter net interest income to prior year quarter net interest income on a tax equivalent basis:

|   |           | ended September<br>30, |
|---|-----------|------------------------|
|   | 2008      | 2007                   |
| Net interest income   | \$ 53,155 | \$ 32,288              |
| Tax equivalent adjustment to net interest income                        | 918       | 1,072                  |
| Net interest income, tax equivalent basis                               | \$ 54,073 | \$ 33,360              |
|   |           | nded September<br>30,  |
|   | •         | 50,                    |
|   | 2008      | 2007                   |
| Net interest income   |           | 2007                   |
| Net interest income<br>Tax equivalent adjustment to net interest income | 2008      | 2007                   |

(5) Yield on average interest-earning assets less rate on average interest-bearing liabilities.

(6) Net interest income, on a tax-equivalent basis, divided by average interest-earning assets.

The following table shows the dollar amount of changes in interest income and interest expense by major categories of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities attributable to changes in volume or rate or a mix of both, for the periods indicated, calculated on a tax equivalent basis. Volume variances are computed using the change in volume multiplied by the previous year's rate. Rate variances are computed using the changes in rate multiplied by the previous year's volume.

| Three Months Ended<br>Compared to Three Months   |          |                     |        |                  |                   |      |              |
|--|----------|---------------------|--------|------------------|-------------------|------|--------------|
|  | Char     | nge due to<br>olume | Chang  | ge due to<br>ate | Change due<br>mix | e to | Total change |
|  |          |                     |        | (in thou         | isands)           |      |              |
| Interest income/expense from:  |          |                     |        |                  |                   |      |              |
| Fed funds sold and other short-term investments  | \$       | 380                 | \$     | (171)            |                   | 251) |              |
| Investment securities (taxable)  |          | 4,861               |        | (62)             |                   | (88) | 4,711        |
| Investment securities (non-taxable) <sup>(1)</sup>   |          | (328)               |        | (158)            |                   | 15   | (471)        |
| Loans, net of unearned discount  |          | 63,574              |        | (19,388)         | (17,              | 078) | 27,108       |
| Total tax equivalent interest income <sup>(1)</sup>  |          | 68,487              |        | (19,779)         | (17,              | 402) | 31,306       |
| Interest-bearing deposits  |          | 34,127              |        | (16,126)         | (11,              | 346) | 6,655        |
| Funds borrowed   |          | 3,153               |        | (1,664)          | (1,               | 205) | 284          |
| Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that   |          |                     |        |                  |                   |      |              |
| issued guaranteed capital debt securities  |          | 2,282               |        | 566              |                   | 806  | 3,654        |
| Total interest expense   |          | 39,562              |        | (17,224)         | (11,              | 745) | 10,593       |
| Net tax equivalent interest income <sup>(1)</sup>  | \$       | 28,925              | \$     | (2,555)          | \$ (5,            | 657) | \$ 20,713    |
| Nine Months Ended S  | Septemb  | er 30, 2008         |        |                  |                   |      |              |
| Compared to Nine Months H  | Ended Se | ptember 30          | , 2007 |                  |                   |      |              |
|  |          | nge due to<br>olume |        | ge due to<br>ate | Change due<br>mix | e to | Total change |
|  |          |                     |        | (in thou         | isands)           |      |              |
| The second function of the second function of the second sec |          |                     |        |                  |                   |      |              |

|  |              | (111 11104     | <br><i>,</i> , |              |
|--|--------------|----------------|----------------|--------------|
| Interest income/expense from:  |              |                |                |              |
| Fed funds sold and other short-term investments                        | \$<br>545    | \$<br>(358)    | \$<br>(265)    | \$<br>(78)   |
| Investment securities (taxable)  | 7,832        | (324)          | (238)          | 7,270        |
| Investment securities (non-taxable) <sup>(1)</sup>                     | (616)        | (261)          | 16             | (861)        |
| Loans, net of unearned discount  | <br>126,010  | <br>(48,919)   | <br>(29,274)   | <br>47,817   |
| Total tax equivalent interest income <sup>(1)</sup>                    | <br>133,771  | <br>(49,862)   | (29,761)       | 54,148       |
| Interest-bearing deposits  | 66,033       | <br>(36,666)   | <br>(16,810)   | 12,557       |
| Funds borrowed   | 5,334        | (3,212)        | (1,287)        | 835          |
| Junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that |              |                |                |              |
| issued guaranteed capital debt securities                              | 3,260        | 932            | 639            | 4,831        |
| Total interest expense   | <br>74,627   | <br>(38,946)   | <br>(17,458)   | 18,223       |
| Net tax equivalent interest income <sup>(1)</sup>                      | \$<br>59,144 | \$<br>(10,916) | \$<br>(12,303) | \$<br>35,925 |

(1) Interest income on tax-advantaged investment securities reflects a tax equivalent adjustment based on a marginal federal corporate tax rate of 35% for 2008 and 2007. The total tax equivalent adjustment reflected in the above table was \$918,000 and \$1.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively. The total tax equivalent adjustment reflected in the above table was \$2.9 million and \$3.2 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

#### **Provision for Loan Losses**

We provide for an adequate allowance for loan losses that are probable and reasonably estimable in the portfolio. The provision for loan losses reflects management's assessment of the inherent losses in the loan portfolio. Our allowance for probable loan losses is reassessed monthly to determine the appropriate level of the reserve. Our analysis is influenced by the following factors: assessment of the credit risk of the loans in the portfolio, impaired loans, evaluation of current economic conditions in the regional market areas, trends in asset quality, delinquent loans, actual charge-offs and recoveries during the period, industry loss averages, historical loss experience, loan portfolio concentrations and loan growth. A discussion of the allowance for loan losses and the factors on which provisions are based begins on page 36.

During the third quarter 2008, the provision for loan losses increased to \$30.2 million compared to \$2.4 million in the third quarter 2007. The increase is attributable to deterioration in current market conditions and the Company's substantial loan growth, as well as an increase in non-performing assets and loans charged off during the quarter. Net charge-offs for the three months ended September 30, 2008 were \$7.0 million, or an annualized rate of 0.40% of average total loans, compared to charge-offs of \$1.6 million, or an annualized rate of 0.17% of average total loans, for the comparable period in 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the provision for loan losses increased to \$70.3 million compared to \$6.8 million in the prior year period. Net charge-offs for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 were \$17.0 million, compared to net charge-offs of \$2.7 million for the comparable period in 2007.

#### Non-interest Income

The following table presents the breakdown of non-interest income for the periods presented and the variance between periods:

| Three Months Ended | Nine Months Ended |
|--------------------|-------------------|
| September 30,      | September 30,     |

|                                     | 2008         | 2007 |            | Variance | 2008 |        | 2007 |            | Variance |
|-------------------------------------|--------------|------|------------|----------|------|--------|------|------------|----------|
|                                     |              | (in  | thousands) |          |      |        | (ir  | thousands) |          |
| The PrivateWealth Group fee revenue | \$<br>4,059  | \$   | 4,029      | 1%       | \$   | 12,828 | \$   | 11,878     | 8%       |
| Mortgage banking income             | 776          |      | 1,157      | (33)%    |      | 3,535  |      | 3,700      | (4)%     |
| Capital markets products income     | 3,815        |      |            | n/m      |      | 6,164  |      |            | n/m      |
| Treasury management income          | 439          |      | 132        | 232%     |      | 902    |      | 428        | 111%     |
| Bank owned life insurance           | 439          |      | 403        | 9%       |      | 1,308  |      | 1,225      | 7%       |
| Banking and other services          | 2,006        |      | 679        | 196%     |      | 3,656  |      | 2,491      | 47%      |
| Net securities gains                | <br>180      |      | 366        | (51)%    |      | 1,280  |      | 348        | 268%     |
| Total non-interest income           | \$<br>11,714 | \$   | 6,766      | 73%      | \$   | 29,673 | \$   | 20,070     | 48%      |

Non-interest income was \$11.7 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$6.8 million for the prior year period, reflecting an increase of 73%. Of the \$4.9 million increase in non-interest income, approximately 83% was due to an increase in fee income generated on new capital markets products and treasury management services. One of the goals of our Strategic Growth Plan is to diversify our non-interest income by generating new sources of fee income through the offering of new products and services. Over the last three quarters, the Company has enhanced or introduced a variety of new products and services including capital markets products, lockbox, control disbursement, virtual vault, interest-rate swaps, and foreign exchange services.

Non-interest income was \$29.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, compared to \$20.1 million for the prior year period, an increase of 48%. Of the \$9.6 million increase in non-interest income, approximately 69% was due to increases in capital markets products and treasury management services.

The PrivateWealth Group fee revenue was \$4.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008, essentially even with \$4.0 million in the prior year period. The PrivateWealth Group fee revenue increased 8% to \$12.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, compared to \$11.9 million for the first nine months of the prior year. The PrivateWealth Group assets under management were \$3.4 billion at September 30, 2007. Net additions to existing and new accounts during the third quarter 2008 more than offset decreases in assets under management related to market performance.

Reflecting the slow residential mortgage market, mortgage banking fee income decreased 33% for the third quarter 2008 to \$776,000, compared to \$1.2 million for the third quarter 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and September 30, 2007, mortgage banking income remained relatively unchanged at \$3.5 million and \$3.7 million, respectively.

Capital markets products income was \$3.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008. We launched the capital markets group late in the first quarter of 2008 to assist middle-market clients with hedging interest rates, foreign currency fluctuation and commodity pricing risks. Capital markets products income for the nine months ending September 30, 2008 was \$6.2 million. There is a correlation between our capital markets products income and our loan growth. As we add clients and loans to our balance sheet, we offer clients an opportunity to mitigate their interest rate risk through the capital markets products we offer.

Treasury management income increased 232% to \$439,000 for the third quarter 2008 in comparison to \$132,000 for the prior year quarter. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, treasury management services generated income of \$902,000 in comparison to \$428,000 in the prior year period, reflecting the expansion of products and services, the addition of new client relationships and the growth of our relationships with existing clients.

Banking and other services income increased for the third quarter 2008 to \$2.0 million from \$679,000 in the prior year quarter mainly primarily due to an increase in letter of credit fees. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, banking and other services income increased to \$3.7 million from \$2.5 million in the prior year period primarily due to an increase in letter of credit fees. The second quarter 2007 benefited because of the inclusion of \$646,000 of insurance proceeds the Company received during that quarter covering a portion of losses the Company incurred in the fourth quarter 2006 as a result of a previously disclosed employee fraud.

Net securities gains were \$180,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2008 compared to a gain of \$366,000 in the prior year period. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, securities gains were \$1.3 million compared to \$348,000 in the prior year period. The increase from both prior year periods was due to gains realized in selective repositioning of the investment portfolio. Please refer to Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements for additional information on our securities portfolio.

#### Non-interest Expense

The following table presents the breakdown of non-interest expense for the periods presented and the variance between periods:

|                                 | <br>T        | Months Ende | d          | Nine Months Ended |    |        |     |            |          |
|---------------------------------|--------------|-------------|------------|-------------------|----|--------|-----|------------|----------|
|                                 |              | tember 30,  |            | September 30,     |    |        |     |            |          |
|                                 | 2008         |             | 2007       | Variance          |    | 2008   |     | 2007       | Variance |
|                                 |              | (in t       | thousands) |                   |    |        | (in | thousands) |          |
| Salaries and employee benefits  | \$<br>28,895 | \$          | 13,083     | 121%              | \$ | 88,459 | \$  | 39,546     | 124%     |
| Occupancy expense, net          | 4,364        |             | 3,336      | 31%               |    | 12,556 |     | 9,286      | 35%      |
| Professional services           | 3,374        |             | 2,109      | 60%               |    | 10,684 |     | 5,434      | 97%      |
| Investment manager expenses     | 829          |             | 857        | (3)%              |    | 2,608  |     | 2,507      | 4%       |
| Marketing                       | 2,083        |             | 1,058      | 97%               |    | 7,614  |     | 3,676      | 107%     |
| Technology and related costs    | 1,554        |             | 1,039      | 50%               |    | 3,942  |     | 2,924      | 35%      |
| Postage, telephone and delivery | 575          |             | 409        | 41%               |    | 1,663  |     | 1,224      | 36%      |

| Supplies and printing       | 275          | 221          | 24%  | 988        | 722            | 37%  |
|-----------------------------|--------------|--------------|------|------------|----------------|------|
| Amortization of intangibles | 241          | 241          | n/m  | 896        | 726            | 23%  |
| Insurance                   | 2,460        | 452          | 444% | 5,067      | 1,166          | 335% |
| Other expense               | <br>2,435    | <br>1,119    | 118% | 6,745      | <br>3,388      | 99%  |
| Total non-interest expense  | \$<br>47,085 | \$<br>23,924 | 97%  | \$ 141,222 | \$<br>5 70,599 | 100% |

Non-interest expense was \$47.1 million in the third quarter 2008, compared with \$23.9 million in the third quarter 2007, an increase of 97%. The increase from a year ago reflects significant increases in compensation and marketing expenses related to the investment in the Strategic Growth Plan as well as increases in professional services and deposit insurance premiums. Non-interest expense for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 was \$141.2 million, an increase of 100% from \$70.6 million for the same period in the prior year.

The efficiency ratio (on a tax-equivalent basis), which measures the percentage of revenue that is expended as non-interest expense, was 71.6% in the third quarter 2008, up from 59.6% in the prior year third quarter. However, strong revenue growth, a moderation in hiring, and other cost control efforts in the third quarter 2008 led to a material improvement from the 95.7% efficiency ratio at the end of the second quarter 2008. On a tax-equivalent basis, this ratio indicates that in the third quarter 2008, we spent 71.6 cents to generate each dollar of revenue while in the third quarter 2008 we spent 95.7 cents to generate each dollar of revenue.

The significant increase in salaries and benefit expense in the 2008 periods over the 2007 periods is the result of the significant number of new employees the Company hired in implementing the Plan and the compensation used to recruit these individuals to join the Company including base salary, sign-on bonuses, annual bonus opportunities and equity awards. Full-time equivalent employees increased 47% to 758 at the end of the third quarter 2008, from 517 at the end of the third quarter 2007. The majority of this increase resulted from hiring a large number of bankers who are responsible for business development and client service. Additionally, a substantial number of professionals have been hired to enhance the Company's infrastructure, including senior level employees in the areas of credit risk management, operations, human resources, legal and finance.

Total stock-based compensation expense, was \$5.8 million in the third quarter 2008 and \$1.4 million in the third quarter 2007. Non-interest expense in the third quarter 2008 also includes the accrual of a pro rata portion of the Company's current estimate of aggregate annual cash bonus incentive compensation for 2008 which may be awarded based on performance that the Company believes is indicative of the Company's progress toward achieving long-term success under the Plan. As the significant portion of our hiring and the granting of transformation equity grants related to the Plan is completed, we expect the pace of growth in salaries and benefits expense to moderate in the coming quarters.

The 31% increase in occupancy expense in the third quarter 2008 compared to the third quarter 2007 is due to the expansion and improvement of several of our existing offices, leasing new office space and an increase in common area maintenance charges at our headquarters location. For the nine months ended September 30 2008, occupancy expense increased to \$12.6 million compared to \$9.3 million in the prior year period. Since September 30, 2007, we have opened offices in Minneapolis, Cleveland, Des Moines and Denver as well as leased additional space in downtown Chicago. During the second quarter 2008, we signed a definitive lease agreement to move our headquarters location to 120 S. LaSalle Street in Chicago during the first quarter 2009. We will continue to maintain our offices at our current downtown Chicago location at 70 W. Madison.

Professional services, which include fees paid for legal, accounting, and other consulting services, increased 60% to \$3.4 million for the third quarter 2008, from \$2.1 million in the prior year quarter. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, professional services were \$10.7 million compared to \$5.4 million in the prior year period. The increase is primarily due to higher legal and consulting fees to support various strategic initiatives including the rapid expansion of products and service offerings, infrastructure enhancements, hiring of key personnel and increased fees paid for external and internal audit services.

For the three months ended September 30, 2008, marketing expenses increased 97% over the prior year period to \$2.1 million. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, marketing expenses increased to \$7.6 million compared to \$3.7 million in the prior year period. The increase in marketing expense reflects an increase in marketing initiatives for client development pursuant to the Plan, website upgrading, charitable and corporate contributions and overall growth in the Company's business development activities.

Technology and related costs, which include fees paid for information technology services and support, increased 50% during the third quarter 2008 compared to the third quarter 2007 due to investments in technology Company-wide and support for facility relocations and upgrading. Technology and related costs increased 35% for the nine months ended September 30, 2008.

Insurance expense increased 444% to \$2.5 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008 from \$452,000 in the prior year period. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, insurance expense increased 335% to \$5.1 million from \$1.2 million in the prior year period. The increase in insurance expense is primarily due to an increase in FDIC insurance premiums caused by increased rates and a substantial increase in deposit balances. We expect insurance expense to continue to increase in 2009 given the recent increase in premiums by the FDIC and our expected continued growth in deposit balances.

The increase in the other expense category for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2008 relative to the prior periods is primarily due to operating expenses and disposition costs related to the resolution of OREO property.

The Company expects to gain increased operating leverage going forward as we continue to grow our revenue. Our operating leverage improved in the third quarter, as evidenced by the material decrease in our efficiency ratio quarter over quarter. Our goal is to achieve more substantial operating leverage in the coming quarters.

In April 2008, the Company amended its agreement with the principals of Lodestar and effectively reduced its controlling interest in Lodestar to 75.35% from 80%. The Company granted a form of restricted stock of an approximately 5% controlling interest in Lodestar to one of the key principals of Lodestar in recognition of the principal's contributions and the substantial amount of new business this principal has generated over the past few years. The Bank has made a loan to this principal to acquire the 5% interest. Contingent on the continued employment of this principal, The PrivateBank - Chicago will forgive the repayment of principal and interest on this loan over a four-year period. For the quarters ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, we recorded \$86,000 and \$100,000 of minority interest expense, respectively.

#### **Income Taxes**

The following table shows the Company's income before income taxes, applicable income taxes and effective tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, respectively (in thousands):

|                                | Nine mont<br>Septem |    |        |
|--------------------------------|---------------------|----|--------|
|                                | <br>2008 200        |    | 2007   |
| Income before taxes            | \$<br>(49,558)      | \$ | 38,797 |
| Income tax (benefit) provision | (20,070)            |    | 11,845 |
| Effective tax rate             | 40.5%               |    | 30.5%  |

The effective income tax rate varies from statutory rates principally due to certain interest income that is tax-exempt for federal or state purposes, and certain expenses that are disallowed for tax purposes. The increase in the effective tax rate for 2008 compared to the same period in 2007 is a result of changes in the mix of certain items that are permanently excluded from the calculation of income taxes and changes to tax laws in the state of Illinois.

#### **Operating Segments Results**

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements included herewith, our operations consist of three primary business segments: Banking; The PrivateWealth Group; and the Holding Company. The PrivateBank Mortgage Company results are included with the Banking segment.

#### Banking

The profitability of the Banking segment is primarily dependent on net interest income, provision for loan losses, non-interest income and non-interest expense. Net income for the Banking segment for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 decreased 85% to \$1.9 million from net income of \$13.0 million for the year earlier period. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Banking segment reported a net loss of \$4.4 million, compared to net income of \$38.8 million in the prior year period. The decrease in net income for the Banking segment resulted primarily from expenses associated with the implementation of our Strategic Growth Plan, including significant compensation-related expense and other non-interest expenses as well as higher provision for loan losses. Net interest income for the Banking segment increased by 78% to \$7.4 billion at September 30, 2008 as compared to \$4.2 billion at December 31, 2007. The majority of the loan growth for the period occurred in the commercial and commercial real estate categories, which grew by 164% and 50%, respectively. Total deposits increased by 90% to \$7.5 billion at September 30, 2008 from \$4.0 billion at December 31, 2007. Growth in money market accounts, other time deposits, and interest bearing demand deposits accounted for the majority of the client deposit growth. CDARs<sup>™</sup> deposits, which are included in brokered deposits and is a deposit services arrangement that achieves FDIC deposit insurance for jumbo deposit relationships, increased by \$846.2 million from December 31, 2007.

#### The PrivateWealth Group

The PrivateWealth Group fee revenue was \$4.1 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008, an increase of 1% from \$4.0 million from the prior year period. The PrivateWealth Group fee revenue increased 8% to \$12.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008, compared to \$11.9 million for the first nine months of the prior year. The PrivateWealth Group assets under management, which include assets under management, assets supervised and assets in accounts receiving services or products from LPL Financial Corp. (formerly Linsco/Private Ledger Corp.), were \$3.4 billion at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007 and \$3.3 billion at September 30, 2007.

For a number of our wealth management relationships, we utilize third-party investment managers and these fees are included in investment manager expenses. Investment manager expenses decreased to \$829,000 for the three months ended September 30, 2008, compared to \$857,000 for same period in 2007. Of our third-party investment managers, none individually managed more than 5% of total wealth management assets under management as of September 30, 2008.

#### Holding Company

Holding Company activities consist of parent company only matters. The Holding Company's most significant assets are its net investments in its five banking subsidiaries, The PrivateBank – Chicago, The PrivateBank - St. Louis (which includes The PrivateBank – Kansas City), The PrivateBank – Michigan, The PrivateBank – Wisconsin, The PrivateBank – Georgia, and our mortgage banking subsidiary, The PrivateBank Mortgage Company. Holding Company activities are reflected primarily by interest expense on borrowings and operating expenses of the parent company. Recurring Holding Company operating expenses consist primarily of compensation (amortization of restricted stock and stock awards and stock option expense) and professional services. The Holding Company segment reported a net loss of \$9.0 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2008, compared to a net loss of \$4.1 million for the same period in 2007. For the nine months ended September 30, 2008, the Holding Company segment reported a net loss of \$25.1 million, compared to a net loss of \$12.4 million for the same period in 2007.

net loss year over year is primarily due to an increase in non-interest expenses, primarily related to compensation expense associated with sharebased payment expense, professional services and marketing expenses.

#### FINANCIAL CONDITION

#### **Total Assets**

Total assets increased to \$9.0 billion at September 30, 2008, an increase of 81% from \$5.0 billion at December 31, 2007. Asset growth from December 31, 2007 was due to loan growth of 78% during the period. Loan growth was funded primarily with client deposits, which grew 55% from December 31, 2007.

#### Loans

Total gross loans increased to \$7.4 billion at September 30, 2008, an increase of approximately 78%, from \$4.2 billion at December 31, 2007. Company-wide, the loan growth since December 31, 2007 has occurred in all categories, but primarily in the commercial and commercial real estate categories. Our Strategic Growth Plan is driving our loan growth and our loan pipeline remains strong.

The following table sets forth the composition of our loan portfolio, net of unearned discount, by category (in thousands) at the following dates:

|                                       | S  | eptember<br>30,<br>2008 | Percentage<br>of total<br>loans | December 31,<br>2007 |           | /    |      |
|---------------------------------------|----|-------------------------|---------------------------------|----------------------|-----------|------|------|
| Commercial and industrial             | \$ | 2,957,507               | 39%                             | \$                   | 827,837   | 20%  | 257% |
| Owner occupied CRE                    |    | 499,964                 | 7%                              |                      | 483,920   | 12%  | 3%   |
| Total commercial                      | \$ | 3,457,471               | 46%                             | \$                   | 1,311,757 | 32%  | 164% |
| Commercial real estate                |    | 2,049,047               | 28%                             |                      | 1,386,275 | 33%  | 48%  |
| Commercial real estate - multi-family |    | 353,879                 | 5%                              |                      | 217,884   | 5%   | 62%  |
| Total CRE                             | \$ | 2,402,926               | 33%                             | \$                   | 1,604,159 | 38%  | 50%  |
| Construction                          |    | 711,606                 | 10%                             |                      | 613,468   | 15%  | 16%  |
| Private client <sup>(1)</sup>         |    | 318,552                 | 4%                              |                      | 247,462   | 6%   | 29%  |
| Residential real estate               |    | 374,488                 | 5%                              |                      | 265,466   | 6%   | 41%  |
| Home equity                           |    | 176,094                 | 2%                              |                      | 135,483   | 3%   | 30%  |
| Total loans                           | \$ | 7,441,137               | 100%                            | \$                   | 4,177,795 | 100% | 78%  |

(1) Includes personal, auto, watercraft, and overdraft lines of credit.

The following table sets forth the composition of our construction and commercial real estate loan portfolio, net of unearned discount, by property type and collateral location at September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007. Construction loans totaled \$711.6 million and commercial real estate loans totaled \$2.4 billion at September 30, 2008.

| Collateral Location at September 30, 2008 |       |      |       |      |      |       | Loan Type          |
|---|-------|------|-------|------|------|-------|--------------------|
| Loan Type                                 | IL    | МО   | MI    | WI   | GA   | Other | as a % of<br>total |
| Construction:                             |       |      |       |      |      |       |                    |
| Residential 1-4 family                    | 3.7%  | 0.9% | 0.6%  | 0.0% | 1.7% | 0.9%  | 7.8%               |
| Multi-family                              | 0.9%  | 0.3% | 0.0%  | 0.1% | 0.0% | 0.2%  | 1.5%               |
| Other                                     | 5.0%  | 1.0% | 0.6%  | 0.5% | 0.4% | 2.8%  | 10.3%              |
| Total construction                        | 9.6%  | 2.2% | 1.2%  | 0.6% | 2.1% | 3.9%  | 19.6%              |
| Commercial real estate:                   |       |      |       |      |      |       |                    |
| Health care                               | 3.1%  | 0.3% | 0.6%  | 0.0% | 0.0% | 6.4%  | 10.4%              |
| Land development                          | 8.7%  | 1.3% | 0.6%  | 0.5% | 0.4% | 2.4%  | 13.9%              |
| Residential 1-4 family                    | 2.7%  | 0.6% | 1.5%  | 0.4% | 0.0% | 0.8%  | 6.0%               |
| Multi-family                              | 5.2%  | 1.3% | 0.5%  | 0.4% | 1.1% | 1.0%  | 9.5%               |
| Office                                    | 5.7%  | 2.0% | 0.9%  | 0.4% | 1.1% | 2.7%  | 12.8%              |
| Warehouse                                 | 3.8%  | 0.2% | 1.7%  | 0.0% | 0.6% | 1.0%  | 7.3%               |
| Mixed use                                 | 2.8%  | 0.7% | 0.4%  | 0.1% | 0.0% | 0.2%  | 4.2%               |
| Retail                                    | 3.1%  | 0.3% | 3.2%  | 0.3% | 0.4% | 4.0%  | 11.3%              |
| Other                                     | 1.9%  | 0.0% | 1.3%  | 0.0% | 0.3% | 1.5%  | 5.0%               |
| Total Commercial real                     |       |      |       |      |      |       |                    |
| estate                                    | 37.0% | 6.7% | 10.7% | 2.1% | 3.9% | 20.0% | 80.4%              |
| Total construction and                    |       |      |       |      |      |       |                    |
| commercial real estate                    | 46.6% | 8.9% | 11.9% | 2.7% | 6.0% | 23.9% | 100.0%             |

|   | Collateral Location at December 31, 2007 |      |       |      |      |              |                    |  |  |  |
|---|--|------|-------|------|------|--------------|--------------------|--|--|--|
| Loan Type                                     | IL                                       | МО   | MI    | WI   | GA   | Other        | as a % of<br>total |  |  |  |
| Construction:                                 |  |      |       |      |      |              |                    |  |  |  |
| Residential 1-4 family                        | 7.0%                                     | 1.9% | 0.5%  | 0.2% | 3.0% | 0.4%         | 13.0%              |  |  |  |
| Multi-family                                  | 1.6%                                     | 0.2% | 0.2%  | 0.1% | 0.0% | 0.1%         | 2.2%               |  |  |  |
| Other   | 6.6%                                     | 0.9% | 0.4%  | 1.1% | 0.0% | 1.5%         | 10.5%              |  |  |  |
| Total construction                            | 15.2%                                    | 3.0% | 1.1%  | 1.4% | 3.0% | 2.0%         | 25.7%              |  |  |  |
| Commercial real estate:                       |  |      |       |      |      |              |                    |  |  |  |
| Vacant land                                   | 14.0%                                    | 2.1% | 2.9%  | 0.5% | 1.7% | 1.6%         | 22.8%              |  |  |  |
| Residential 1-4 family                        | 4.4%                                     | 0.9% | 0.0%  | 0.4% | 0.0% | 1.4%         | 7.1%               |  |  |  |
| Multi-family                                  | 7.6%                                     | 0.7% | 0.6%  | 0.4% | 0.2% | 0.1%         | 9.6%               |  |  |  |
| Mixed use                                     | 2.6%                                     | 1.1% | 1.1%  | 0.1% | 1.1% | 0.2%         | 6.2%               |  |  |  |
| Office  | 4.5%                                     | 1.1% | 1.9%  | 0.4% | 0.9% | 1.0%         | 9.8%               |  |  |  |
| Warehouse                                     | 5.4%                                     | 0.1% | 0.7%  | 0.2% | 0.5% | 0.7%         | 7.6%               |  |  |  |
| Retail  | 3.1%                                     | 0.2% | 2.2%  | 0.4% | 0.6% | 0.6%         | 7.1%               |  |  |  |
| Other   | 2.2%                                     | 0.1% | 0.5%  | 0.0% | 0.4% | 0.9%         | 4.1%               |  |  |  |
| Total Commercial real                         |  |      |       |      |      |              |                    |  |  |  |
| estate  | 43.8%                                    | 6.3% | 9.9%  | 2.4% | 5.4% | 6.5%         | 74.3%              |  |  |  |
| Total construction and commercial real estate | 59.0%                                    | 9.3% | 11.0% | 3.8% | 8.4% | <u>8.5</u> % | 100.0%             |  |  |  |

We are closely monitoring exposure and sector performance of loans extended to finance residential development; either land developed for home sites or homes available for sale. This sector performance has weakened from prior periods and is expected to remain weak into 2009, which has caused us to initiate a specific review process on all residential development loans. On a monthly basis, a specific review is held with the assigned relationship team to update activity regarding residential developments financed. We analyze and monitor sale activity, payment status, underlying valuation support and guarantor support (if available). From this review process, risk ratings and loan classifications are validated.

Approximately \$482.5 million, or 7%, of the Company's total loan portfolio is in the residential development sector. The sector exposure is nearly evenly split between land development and vertical constructions (homes, condominiums and townhouses). Approximately 60% of these loans are on property located in the Chicago market, 18% in the Atlanta market, 11% in the St. Louis market, 8% in the Michigan market, 2% in the Wisconsin market and 1% in the Kansas City market. A portion of our residential development loan exposure is supported with interest reserves, which are closely monitored for adequacy. Where loans do not have an interest reserve or where the interest reserve is, or is about to be fully absorbed, the supplementary source of cash flow to support required payments is closely analyzed through our monthly reviews.

Loan quality is monitored by management and reviewed by the Board of Directors. The amount of additions to the allowance for loan losses, which is charged to earnings through the provision for loan losses, is determined based on a variety of factors, including an assessment of the credit risk of the loans in the portfolio, impaired loans, evaluation of current economic conditions in the regional market areas, trends in asset quality, delinquent loans, actual charge-offs and recoveries during the period, industry loss averages, historical loss experience, loan portfolio concentrations, and loan growth. The unallocated portion of the reserve involves the exercise of judgment by management and reflects various considerations, including management's view that the reserve should have a margin that recognizes the imprecision inherent in the process of estimating credit losses.

During the second quarter 2008, the Company enhanced its allowance methodology. Our previous methodology, adopted in the second quarter 2005, provided a loan loss reserve calculation based on each of the market area's loan portfolios by loan type and by risk rating multiplied by the sum of historical loss and loss adjustment factors (i.e. reserve factors), specific reserves set aside for impaired loans to comprise an allocated reserve amount and the application of an unallocated percentage in recognition that there are other factors affecting the determination of probable losses inherent in the portfolio that are not necessarily captured in the allocation portion of the reserve. At the market area level, the loan loss reserve calculations reflected differences between the market areas as a result of the composition and risk rating profile of each market area's loan portfolio along with variance in the unallocated percentage. The total of the historical loss adjustment factors or reserve factors, however, were the same for all the market areas.

Beginning with the second quarter 2008, we enhanced the existing methodology with the institution of a market area specific reserve model that includes the quantification of external and internal factors impacting each one of our different market areas. External factors include the national and regional economic, political and legal environment quantified by unemployment percentage, changes in housing starts, personal bankruptcy filings, non-farm job growth and mortgage delinquencies. Internal factors include aggregate loan portfolio asset quality measures not directly reflected in individual loan risk ratings such as the weighted average risk rating and OREO percentage, the relative success of credit administration efforts measured by past due loan percentages, external loan review and bank examination results and internal asset quality review results as well as other factors including loan portfolio diversification, loan growth and staffing changes.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses sufficient to absorb credit losses inherent in our loan portfolio. The allowance for loan losses represents our estimate of probable losses in the portfolio at each balance sheet date and is supported by available and relevant information. The allowance contains provisions for probable losses that have been identified relating to specific borrowing relationships, as well as probable losses inherent in the loan portfolio. Management's application of the methodology for determining the allowance for loan losses resulted in an allowance for loan losses of \$102.2 million at September 30, 2008 compared with \$48.9 million at December 31, 2007. The increase in the allowance for loan losses from December 31, 2007 reflects management's judgment about the comprehensive risk of lending in our various markets and loan growth resulting from the execution of our Strategic Growth Plan. We believe that the allowance for loan losses is adequate to provide for probable and reasonably estimable credit losses inherent in our loan portfolio.

The allowance for loan losses as a percentage of total loans was 1.37% at September 30, 2008, up from 1.17% at December 31, 2007. Net charge-offs totaled \$7.0 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$1.6 million for the prior year quarter. The provision for loan losses was \$30.2 million for the three months ended September 30, 2008, versus \$2.4 million in the prior year quarter. The key factors in determining the level of provision is the composition of the types of loans in our portfolio, the risk ratings on these loans and internal and external trends impacting loan quality.

The following table shows our allocation of the allowance for loan losses by specific category at the dates shown.

|                                      |   | Septem<br>20( | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | Decem<br>20                                | /    |
|--------------------------------------|---|---------------|---------------------------------------|--|------|
|                                      | % of<br>allowance<br>to total<br>Amount allowance Amour |               | Amount                                | % of<br>allowance to<br>total<br>allowance |      |
| Allocated Inherent Reserve:          |   |               | isands)                               |  |      |
| General Inherent Allocated Component |   |               |                                       |  |      |
| Commercial Loans                     | \$  | 34,723        | 34%                                   | \$ 8,375                                   | 17%  |
| Commercial Real Estate Loans         |   | 28,515        | 28%                                   | 22,909                                     | 47%  |
| Construction Loans                   |   | 15,203        | 15%                                   | 9,966                                      | 20%  |
| Personal Loans                       |   | 3,000         | 3%                                    | 2,229                                      | 5%   |
| Residential Real Estate Loans        |   | 533           | %                                     | 360  | 1%   |
| Home Equity Loans                    |   | 279           | %                                     | 202  | %    |
| Specific Reserve                     |   | 10,196        | 10%                                   | 2,964                                      | 6%   |
| Total Allocated Inherent Reserve     |   | 92,449        | 90%                                   | 47,005                                     | 96%  |
| Unallocated Inherent Reserve         |   | 9,774         | 10%                                   | 1,886                                      | 4%   |
| Total Allowance for Loan Losses      | \$  | 102,223       | 100%                                  | \$ 48,891                                  | 100% |

We considered various qualitative and quantitative factors about the loan portfolio in determining the level of the allowance for loan losses. Under our methodology, the allowance for loan losses is comprised of the following components:

#### Allocated Component of the Reserve

#### General Inherent Component of the Reserve

The general inherent allocated portion of the allowance for loan losses is based on loan type and allocated by loan risk within each loan type. The Company assigns each of its loans a risk rating at the time of loan origination and either confirms or changes the risk rating at the time of subsequent reviews, loan renewals or upon default. The loss allocations are based on a combination of a historical analysis of the Company's losses and adjustment factors deemed relevant by management. The adjustment factors also take into account banking industry-wide loss statistics. Beginning with the second quarter 2008, the Company enhanced its existing methodology by instituting a market area specific reserve model that includes the quantification of external and internal factors impacting our various market areas. External factors include the national and regional economic, political and legal environment quantified by unemployment percentage, changes in housing starts, personal bankruptcy filings, non-farm job growth and mortgage delinquencies. Internal factors include aggregate loan portfolio asset quality measures not directly reflected in individual loan risk ratings such as the weighted average risk rating and OREO percentage, the relative success of credit administration efforts measured by past due loan percentages, external loan review and bank examination results and internal asset quality review results as well as other factors including loan portfolio diversification, loan growth and staffing changes.

The general inherent allocated component of the reserve increased by \$38.2 million during 2008, from \$44.0 million at December 31, 2007 to \$82.2 million at September 30, 2008. The increase in the general inherent allocated portion of the reserve reflects a combination of higher loan volumes in every category, particularly commercial loans, as well as an increase in adversely rated loans.

#### Specific Component of the Reserve

For loans where management deems either the amount or the timing of the repayment to be significantly impaired, there are specific reserve allocations established. The specific reserve is based on a loan's current value compared to the present value of its projected future cash flows, collateral value or market value, as is relevant for the particular loan pursuant to SFAS 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan." At September 30, 2008, the specific component of the reserve increased to \$10.2 million from \$3.0 million at December 31, 2007.

#### Unallocated Inherent Components of the Reserve

The unallocated inherent component of the reserve is based on management's review of other factors affecting the determination of probable losses inherent in the portfolio, which are not necessarily captured by the application of loss and loss adjustment factors. This portion of the reserve analysis involves the exercise of judgment and reflects consideration such as management's view that the reserve should have a margin that recognizes the imprecision inherent in the process of estimating credit losses.

The unallocated inherent component of the reserve increased by \$7.9 million for the first nine months of 2008, from \$1.9 million at December 31, 2007, to \$9.8 million at September 30, 2008. In management's judgment, an increase in the unallocated inherent component of the reserve is warranted based upon weakening asset quality trends and continued softness evidenced in certain regional banking markets.

#### **Non-performing Assets**

The following table classifies our non-performing assets as of the dates shown:

|   | 9/30/08 |         | 6  | 6/30/08 3/             |    | 6/31/08 1 |    | 12/31/07 |    | /30/07 |
|---|---------|---------|----|------------------------|----|-----------|----|----------|----|--------|
|   |         |         |    | (dollars in thousands) |    |           |    |          |    |        |
| Nonaccrual loans                                  | \$      | 88,057  | \$ | 57,348                 | \$ | 46,517    | \$ | 38,983   | \$ | 25,657 |
| Loans past due 90 days or more and still accruing |         |         |    | 1,180                  |    | 23        |    | 53       |    | 3,294  |
| Total non-performing loans                        |         | 88,057  |    | 58,528                 |    | 46,540    |    | 39,036   |    | 28,951 |
| Other real estate owned ("OREO")                  |         | 18,465  |    | 14,579                 |    | 19,346    |    | 9,265    |    | 7,044  |
| Total non-performing assets                       | \$      | 106,522 | \$ | 73,107                 | \$ | 65,886    | \$ | 48,301   | \$ | 35,995 |
|   |         |         |    |                        |    |           |    |          |    |        |
| Total nonaccrual loans to total loans             |         | 1.18%   |    | 0.89%                  | )  | 0.91%     | )  | 0.93%    |    | 0.69%  |
| Total non-performing loans to total loans         |         | 1.18%   |    | 0.91%                  | )  | 0.91%     | )  | 0.93%    |    | 0.77%  |
| Total non-performing assets to total assets       |         | 1.18%   |    | 0.98%                  | )  | 1.10%     | )  | 0.97%    |    | 0.80%  |

Non-performing loans include nonaccrual loans and accruing loans that are 90 days or more delinquent. Loans in this category include those with characteristics such as past maturity more than 90 days, those that have payments past due more than 90 days, those that have recent adverse operating cash flow or balance sheet trends, or loans that have general risk characteristics that management believes might jeopardize the future timely collection of principal and interest payments.

As a result of the continued weakening of the housing market and the deterioration of some residential real estate development loans, non-accrual loans were \$88.1 million at September 30, 2008 as compared to \$39.0 million at December 31, 2007 and \$25.7 million at September 30, 2008 are comprised of \$31.7 million of loans at The PrivateBank – Chicago, \$22.1 million of loans at The PrivateBank – Michigan, \$22.0 million of loans at The PrivateBank – Georgia, and \$12.3 million of loans at The PrivateBank – St. Louis. The average annualized balance of total non-accrual loans was \$58.5 million at September 30, 2008 compared to \$18.7 million at December 31, 2007. Annualized interest income foregone on non-accrual loans was approximately \$3.5 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to \$1.4 million for the entire year 2007.

There were no accruing loans delinquent over 90 days at September 30, 2008 compared to \$53,000 at December 31, 2007. Of the \$88.1 million in non-performing loans, 42% are construction, 38% are commercial real estate loans, 5% are residential real estate loans, and 15% are commercial and industrial loans.

Non-performing assets to total assets were 1.18% at September 30, 2008, compared to 0.97% at December 31, 2007 and 0.80% at September 30, 2007. Of \$106.5 million in total non-performing assets at September 30, 2008, 38% are located in the Chicago market, 25% are located in the Georgia market, 22% are located in the Michigan market, and 15% are in St. Louis. Of total non-performing assets, 37% are construction, 31% are commercial real estate, 17% are residential real estate, 14% are commercial, and the remaining 1% are classified as personal. Of the \$106.5 million in non-performing assets at September 30, 2008, \$80.5 million, or 76%, relate to residential development loans.

At September 30, 2008, the Company owned \$18.5 million in OREO property compared to \$9.3 million at December 31, 2007. The OREO property at September 30, 2008 is comprised of \$9.2 million held by The PrivateBank – Chicago, \$4.4 million of property held by The PrivateBank – Georgia, \$3.4 million of property held by The PrivateBank – St. Louis, and \$1.5 million held by The PrivateBank – Michigan. At September 30, 2008, OREO was comprised of 51% vacant land zoned for residential development, 34% 1-4 family residential properties, 11% commercial properties, and 4% vacant land zoned for commercial development. OREO is included in other assets on the balance sheet and we carry OREO at the fair value less estimated costs to sell the property. For the quarter ended September 30, 2008, we expensed \$917,000 associated with the disposition of OREO property.

#### **Delinquent Loans**

We monitor the performance of our loan portfolio through regular contact with our clients, continuous portfolio review and careful monitoring of delinquency reports and internal watch lists. As the delinquent status of a loan may determine its risk rating, the allowance for loan losses may be directly affected by loans that are performing despite past-due status. The following table classifies our performing delinquent loans as of the dates shown:

|  | 9/3              | 30/2008  | 6/               | 30/2008  | 3/                 | 31/2008  | 1               | 2/31/2007  | 9        | /30/2007   |
|--|------------------|--|------------------|--|--------------------|--|-----------------|--|----------|--|
|  |                  |  |                  | (d   | ollars             | in thousand  | ls)             |  |          |  |
| Loans past due 30-59 days and still accruing by type:  |                  |  |                  |  |                    |  |                 |  |          |  |
| Commercial   | \$               | 4,184  | \$               | 5,196  | \$                 | 34,022   | \$              | 8,981  | \$       | 2,770  |
| Construction   |                  | 9,453  |                  | 5,136  |                    | 26,304   |                 | 32,411   |          | 9,227  |
| Commercial Real Estate   |                  | 11,209   |                  | 6,083  |                    | 39,802   |                 | 29,590   |          | 18,967   |
| Residential Real Estate  |                  | 3  |                  | 1,013  |                    | 4,195  |                 | 9,158  |          | 1,506  |
| Personal and Home Equity   |                  | 2,855  |                  | 5,842  |                    | 11,599   |                 | 7,182  |          | 2,646  |
| Total  | \$               | 27,704   | \$               | 23,270   | \$                 | 115,922  | \$              | 87,322   | \$       | 35,116   |
| Loans past due 60-89 days and still accruing by type:  |                  |  |                  |  |                    |  |                 |  |          |  |
| Commercial   | \$               | 1,683  | \$               | 787  | \$                 | 6,718  | \$              | 2,189  | \$       | 609  |
| Construction   |                  | 9,660  |                  | 1,926  |                    | 9,434  |                 | 5,996  |          | 2,991  |
| Commercial Real Estate   |                  | 7,264  |                  | 2,199  |                    | 7,463  |                 | 4,776  |          | 2,266  |
| Residential Real Estate  |                  | 3,101  |                  | 108  |                    | 1,661  |                 | 273  |          | 1,327  |
| Personal and Home Equity   |                  | 545  |                  | 1,789  |                    | 5,188  |                 | 2,042  |          | 602  |
| Total  | \$               | 22,253   | \$               | 6,809  | \$                 | 30,464   | \$              | 15,276   | \$       | 7,795  |
|  |                  |  | ~ ~ ~            |  | 24                 |  | 4               |  | 0        |  |
|  | 9/3              | 30/2008  | 6/3              | 30/2008  | 3/.                | 31/2008  | 11              | 2/31/2007  | 9/       | /30/2007   |
|  | 9/3              | 80/2008  | 6/3              |  | _                  | 31/2008<br>in thousand   |                 | 2/31/2007  | 9/       | 30/2007  |
| Loans past due 30-89 days and still accruing by type:  | 9/3              | 30/2008  | 6/3              |  | _                  |  |                 | 2/31/2007  | 9,       | 30/2007  |
| Loans past due 30-89 days and still accruing by type:<br>Commercial  | <u>9/3</u><br>\$ | 5,867  | <u>6/:</u><br>\$ |  | _                  |  |                 | 11,170   | <u> </u> | 3,379  |
|  |                  |  |                  | (d   | ollars             | in thousand  | ls)             |  |          |  |
| Commercial   |                  | 5,867  |                  | ( <b>d</b><br>5,983  | ollars             | <b>in thousand</b><br>40,740   | ls)             | 11,170   |          | 3,379  |
| Commercial<br>Construction   |                  | 5,867<br>19,113  |                  | (d.<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282<br>1,121  | ollars             | <b>in thousand</b><br>40,740<br>35,738   | ls)             | 11,170<br>38,407   |          | 3,379<br>12,218  |
| Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate   |                  | 5,867<br>19,113<br>18,473  |                  | (d<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282  | ollars             | <b>in thousand</b><br>40,740<br>35,738<br>47,265   | ls)             | 11,170<br>38,407<br>34,366   |          | 3,379<br>12,218<br>21,233  |
| Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate<br>Residential Real Estate  |                  | 5,867<br>19,113<br>18,473<br>3,104   |                  | (d.<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282<br>1,121  | ollars             | in thousand<br>40,740<br>35,738<br>47,265<br>5,856   | ls)             | 11,170<br>38,407<br>34,366<br>9,431  |          | 3,379<br>12,218<br>21,233<br>2,833   |
| Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate<br>Residential Real Estate<br>Personal and Home Equity  | \$               | 5,867<br>19,113<br>18,473<br>3,104<br>3,400                                      | \$               | (d.<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282<br>1,121<br>7,631                                     | ollars<br>\$       | in thousand<br>40,740<br>35,738<br>47,265<br>5,856<br>16,787                                       | ls)<br>\$       | 11,170<br>38,407<br>34,366<br>9,431<br>9,224                                       | \$       | 3,379<br>12,218<br>21,233<br>2,833<br>3,248                                      |
| Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate<br>Residential Real Estate<br>Personal and Home Equity<br>Total   | \$               | 5,867<br>19,113<br>18,473<br>3,104<br>3,400                                      | \$               | (d.<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282<br>1,121<br>7,631                                     | ollars<br>\$<br>\$ | in thousand<br>40,740<br>35,738<br>47,265<br>5,856<br>16,787                                       | ls)<br>\$<br>\$ | 11,170<br>38,407<br>34,366<br>9,431<br>9,224                                       | \$       | 3,379<br>12,218<br>21,233<br>2,833<br>3,248                                      |
| Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate<br>Residential Real Estate<br>Personal and Home Equity<br>Total<br>Loans past due 30-89 days and still accruing by type:  | \$               | 5,867<br>19,113<br>18,473<br>3,104<br>3,400<br>49,957                            | \$               | (d<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282<br>1,121<br>7,631<br>30,079                            | ollars<br>\$<br>\$ | in thousand<br>40,740<br>35,738<br>47,265<br>5,856<br>16,787<br>146,386                            | ls)<br>\$<br>\$ | 11,170<br>38,407<br>34,366<br>9,431<br>9,224<br>102,598                            | \$       | 3,379<br>12,218<br>21,233<br>2,833<br>3,248<br>42,911                            |
| Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate<br>Residential Real Estate<br>Personal and Home Equity<br>Total<br>Loans past due 30-89 days and still accruing by type:<br>Commercial  | \$               | 5,867<br>19,113<br>18,473<br>3,104<br>3,400<br>49,957<br>0.17%                   | \$               | (de<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282<br>1,121<br>7,631<br>30,079<br>0.22%                  | ollars<br>\$<br>\$ | in thousand<br>40,740<br>35,738<br>47,265<br>5,856<br>16,787<br>146,386<br>2.20%                   | ls)<br>\$<br>\$ | 11,170<br>38,407<br>34,366<br>9,431<br>9,224<br>102,598<br>0.85%                   | \$       | 3,379<br>12,218<br>21,233<br>2,833<br>3,248<br>42,911<br>0.32%                   |
| Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate<br>Residential Real Estate<br>Personal and Home Equity<br>Total<br>Loans past due 30-89 days and still accruing by type:<br>Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate<br>Residential Real Estate | \$               | 5,867<br>19,113<br>18,473<br>3,104<br>3,400<br>49,957<br>0.17%<br>2.69%          | \$               | (de<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282<br>1,121<br>7,631<br>30,079<br>0.22%<br>1.00%         | ollars<br>\$<br>\$ | in thousand<br>40,740<br>35,738<br>47,265<br>5,856<br>16,787<br>146,386<br>2.20%<br>5.75%          | ls)<br>\$<br>\$ | 11,170<br>38,407<br>34,366<br>9,431<br>9,224<br>102,598<br>0.85%<br>6.26%          | \$       | 3,379<br>12,218<br>21,233<br>2,833<br>3,248<br>42,911<br>0.32%<br>2.08%          |
| Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate<br>Residential Real Estate<br>Personal and Home Equity<br>Total<br>Loans past due 30-89 days and still accruing by type:<br>Commercial<br>Construction<br>Commercial Real Estate                            | \$               | 5,867<br>19,113<br>18,473<br>3,104<br>3,400<br>49,957<br>0.17%<br>2.69%<br>0.77% | \$               | (d<br>5,983<br>7,062<br>8,282<br>1,121<br>7,631<br>30,079<br>0.22%<br>1.00%<br>0.38% | ollars<br>\$<br>\$ | in thousand<br>40,740<br>35,738<br>47,265<br>5,856<br>16,787<br>146,386<br>2.20%<br>5.75%<br>2.40% | ls)<br>\$<br>\$ | 11,170<br>38,407<br>34,366<br>9,431<br>9,224<br>102,598<br>0.85%<br>6.26%<br>2.14% | \$       | 3,379<br>12,218<br>21,233<br>2,833<br>3,248<br>42,911<br>0.32%<br>2.08%<br>1.42% |

Delinquencies (loans 30-89 days past due and still accruing) at September 30, 2008, improved to \$50.0 million, or 0.67% of total loans, compared to \$42.9 million in delinquencies, or 1.15% of total loans, at September 30, 2007, and \$102.6 million, or 2.46% of total loans at December 31, 2007. This is a direct result of a disciplined focus on actively reducing delinquent accounts. Despite this focus, no assurance can be given that delinquency rates will continue to trend down from the level at December 31, 2007. This is especially the case given the weakness in the residential development sector and the economy. To the extent delinquency rates increase, it may affect the determination of the Company's allowance for loan losses, and accordingly, the loan loss provision. The increase in construction and commercial real estate loans delinquent 30-89 days and still accruing between June 30, 2008 and September 30, 2008 reflects continued weakening in the economy and the construction and commercial real estate markets. The current period delinquencies were 3.33% of total loans in the Georgia market, 1.09% of total loans in the Michigan market, 0.96% of total loans in the St. Louis market, and 0.48% of total loans in the Chicago market.

#### **Deposits and Funds Borrowed**

The following table presents the balances of deposits by category and each category as a percentage of total deposits at September 30,

2008 and December 31, 2007:

|                                |    | Septem    | ber 30,       | Decem        | ber 31,    | Variance |  |
|--------------------------------|----|-----------|---------------|--------------|------------|----------|--|
|                                |    | 200       | 08            | 20           | 2007       |          |  |
|                                | I  | Balance   | % of Total    | Balance      | % of Total | periods  |  |
|                                |    |           | (dollars in t | housands)    |            |          |  |
| Non-interest bearing demand    | \$ | 601,653   | 8%            | \$ 299,043   | 8%         | 101%     |  |
| Interest-bearing demand        |    | 164,318   | 2%            | 157,761      | 4%         | 4%       |  |
| Savings                        |    | 17,709    | n/m           | 12,309       | 1%         | 44%      |  |
| Money market                   |    | 2,389,931 | 32%           | 1,581,863    | 42%        | 51%      |  |
| Certificates of deposit        |    | 143,383   | 2%            | 145,568      | 4%         | (2)%     |  |
| Jumbo certificates of deposit  |    | 936,921   | 13%           | 682,497      | 18%        | 37%      |  |
| Traditional brokered deposits  |    | 1,901,620 | 26%           | 540,580      | 14%        | 251%     |  |
| Client CDARS <sup>TM</sup>     |    | 306,185   | 4%            | 1,796        | %          | n/m      |  |
| Non-client CDARS <sup>TM</sup> |    | 541,930   | 7%            | 94           | %          | n/m      |  |
| Total brokered deposits        |    | 2,749,735 | 37%           | 542,470      | 14%        | 407%     |  |
| Other time deposits            |    | 446,298   | 6%            | 339,627      | 9%         | 32%      |  |
| Total deposits                 | \$ | 7,449,948 | 100%          | \$ 3,761,138 | 100%       | 98%      |  |

Given the acceleration in loan growth since inception of the Plan, the Company is focused on balancing growth in its loan portfolio with an emphasis on appropriate sources of funding, including gathering client deposits and other alternative funding sources. Total deposits of \$7.4 billion at September 30, 2008 represent an increase of \$3.7 billion, as compared to total deposits of \$3.8 billion at December 31, 2007, primarily due to an increase in brokered deposits, money market and other time deposits.

During the quarter, the Company facilitated its deposit growth by aggressively pursuing deposits from existing and new clients, increasing institutional and municipal deposits, expanding its business DDA account balances through its enhanced treasury management services, and the continued implementation of the CDARs<sup>TM</sup> deposit program. The CDARs<sup>TM</sup> deposit program is a deposit services arrangement that achieves FDIC deposit insurance for jumbo deposit relationships, which we believe is an attractive feature to many of our middle-market and private banking clients. These deposits are classified as brokered deposits for regulatory deposit purposes; however, the source of the deposits is our existing and new client relationships and are, therefore, not traditional 'brokered' deposits. We refer to the deposits originated from our client base as "client CDARs<sup>TM</sup>" and we consider these deposits to be client deposits because they are priced similarly to our client deposits and generally have the same stability as our other client deposits. Client deposits, which represent total deposits less brokered deposits plus client CDARs<sup>TM</sup>, were \$5.0 billion at September 30, 2008, a 55% increase from \$3.2 billion at December 31, 2007.

We utilized brokered deposits as a source of funding for the substantial growth in our loan portfolio during the quarter. Brokered deposits were \$2.7 billion at September 30, 2008, up from \$542.5 million at December 31, 2007. Our brokered deposits to total deposits ratio was 37% at September 30, 2008 and 14% at December 31, 2007. Brokered deposits at September 30, 2008 include \$848.1 million in CDARs<sup>TM</sup> deposits. As the Company attracts new clients, loan volume tends to lead client deposit volume associated with those new relationships. We anticipate continuing our reliance on traditional brokered deposits to fund a portion of this growth. Long-term, as client deposits grow, the Company expects to reduce its reliance on traditional brokered deposits as a percentage of total deposits.

We have issued certain brokered deposits that include call option provisions, which provide us with the opportunity to redeem the certificates of deposit on a specified date prior to the contractual maturity date. As of September 30, 2008, we held 13 outstanding brokered deposits containing unexercised call provisions. We have brokered deposits with 14 different brokers and we receive periodic information from other brokers regarding potential deposits.

The scheduled maturities of brokered deposits, net of unamortized prepaid broker commissions, as of September 30, 2008, for the upcoming 2008 quarters, and fiscal years 2009 through 2012 and thereafter, are as follows:

#### Scheduled Maturities of Brokered Deposits net of unamortized prepaid brokered commissions at September 30, 2008

| Maturity Date                               | Rate <sup>(1)</sup> | 9/30/08      |
|---|---------------------|--------------|
|   | (i                  | n thousands) |
| 4 <sup>th</sup> quarter 2008                | 3.06%               | \$971,675    |
| 1 <sup>st</sup> quarter 2009                | 3.60%               | 929,919      |
| 2 <sup>nd</sup> quarter 2009 <sup>(2)</sup> | 3.60%               | 319,488      |
| 3 <sup>rd</sup> quarter 2009 <sup>(3)</sup> | 3.72%               | 366,913      |
| 4 <sup>th</sup> quarter 2009                | 4.14%               | 19,858       |
| 2010-2011 (4)                               | 4.23%               | 16,572       |
| Thereafter <sup>(5)(6)</sup>                | 5.15%               | 128,235      |
| Total Brokered Deposits                     |                     | 2,752,660    |
| Unamortized prepaid broker commissions      |                     | (2,925)      |

#### Total brokered deposits, net of unamortized prepaid broker commissions

- (1) Represents the all-in rate of each brokered deposit.
- (2) This tranche includes one callable deposit: a \$4.9 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 6/12/2009 callable monthly.
- (3) This tranche includes one callable deposit: a \$5.0 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 8/11/2009 callable monthly.
- (4) This tranche includes one callable deposit: a \$1.6 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 5/19/2010, which is callable quarterly.
- (5) This tranche includes several callable deposits: a \$3.4 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 11/19/2012 callable semiannually; a \$9.6 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 2/11/2013 callable monthly; a \$9.6 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 1/21/2014 callable monthly; a \$9.8 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 12/17/2014 callable monthly; a \$6.8 million brokered deposit with a maturity of 1/28/2015 callable semi-annually; a \$11.1 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 2/27/2019 callable monthly; \$8.8 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 3/12/2024 callable semi-annually; a \$7.1 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 4/23/2024 callable monthly; and a \$6.0 million brokered deposit with a maturity date of 6/30/2025, callable semi-annually.
- (6) This segment includes a zero coupon brokered deposit with a maturity date of 3/18/2024, an effective yield of 5.29% and callable semi-annually.

Funds borrowed, which include federal funds purchased, FHLB advances, borrowings under the Company's credit facility, and convertible senior notes, increased to \$592.2 million at September 30, 2008 from \$560.8 million at December 31, 2007. As of September 30, 2008, the Company had a total of \$115.0 million of contingent convertible senior notes held by qualified institutional investors. The notes are senior, unsecured obligations of PrivateBancorp, Inc. and pay interest semi-annually at a rate of 3.625 % per year. The notes will mature on March 15, 2027, and will be convertible under certain circumstances into cash and, if applicable, shares of the Company's common stock at an initial conversion price of \$45.05 per share.

In the third quarter 2008, the Company entered into a credit facility comprised of \$20.0 million of senior-debt and a \$120.0 million subordinated debt facility issued by The PrivateBank - Chicago. The \$140.0 million credit facility replaced a credit facility with a correspondent bank comprised of a \$25.0 million senior debt facility and a \$75.0 million subordinated debt facility. The subordinated debt qualifies as Tier 2 capital under banking rules and regulations. The subordinated debt matures on September 26, 2015. The PrivateBank - Chicago, with regulatory approval, can prepay the subordinated debt without penalty at any time. The interest rate for the subordinated debt is floating at LIBOR plus 3.50 percent and is set at 6.98% until December 31, 2008. The debt is unsecured and subordinate to all other categories of creditors, including general creditors.

At September 30, 2008, included in funds borrowed, the Company had no borrowings outstanding on the senior debt facility and \$100.0 million of subordinated debt outstanding. The proceeds from the senior and subordinated debt will be used for general corporate purposes, including supporting the ongoing implementation of the Plan.

#### **Capital Resources**

Stockholders' equity was \$640.1 million at September 30, 2008, an increase of \$139.3 million from December 31, 2007 stockholders' equity of \$500.8 million, due primarily to the two capital-raising transactions that occurred during the second quarter, as described in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

At September 30, 2008, \$212.7 million of our outstanding junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures held by trusts that issued guaranteed capital debt securities were treated as Tier 1 capital. The Company and its banking subsidiaries are subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Capital adequacy guidelines and prompt corrective action regulations involve quantitative measures of assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items calculated under regulatory accounting practices. Capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors, and the regulators can lower classifications in certain areas. Failure to meet various capital requirements can initiate regulatory action that could have a direct material effect on the consolidated financial statements, potentially impact the ability of the Company to pay its obligations and encumber the Company's ability to upstream dividends from its bank subsidiaries.

The prompt corrective action regulations provide five classifications: well-capitalized, adequately capitalized, undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, and critically undercapitalized, although these terms are not used to represent overall financial condition. If a banking subsidiary is not "well capitalized," regulatory approval is required to accept brokered deposits. If undercapitalized, capital distributions are limited as is asset growth and expansion and plans for capital restoration are required.

The following table sets forth our consolidated regulatory capital amounts and ratios as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007:

|                                 |    | September 30, 2008 |    |                                   | December 31, 2007 |    |         |    |                                   |                   |
|---------------------------------|----|--------------------|----|-----------------------------------|-------------------|----|---------|----|-----------------------------------|-------------------|
|                                 | (  | Capital            |    | "Well-<br>apitalized"<br>Standard | Excess<br>Capital |    | Capital |    | "Well-<br>apitalized"<br>Standard | Excess<br>Capital |
| Dollar basis (in thousands):    |    |                    |    |                                   |                   | _  |         | _  |                                   |                   |
| Leverage capital                | \$ | 749,805            | \$ | 404,112                           | \$<br>345,693     | \$ | 494,095 | \$ | 225,953                           | \$<br>268,142     |
| Tier 1 risk-based capital       |    | 749,805            |    | 489,016                           | 260,789           |    | 494,095 |    | 260,310                           | 233,785           |
| Total risk-based capital        |    | 983,745            |    | 815,027                           | 168,718           |    | 615,881 |    | 433,850                           | 182,031           |
| Percentage basis:               |    |                    |    |                                   |                   |    |         |    |                                   |                   |
| Leverage ratio                  |    | 9.28%              |    | 5.00%                             |                   |    | 10.93%  |    | 5.00%                             |                   |
| Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio |    | 9.20%              |    | 6.00%                             |                   |    | 11.39%  |    | 6.00%                             |                   |
| Total risk-based capital ratio  |    | 12.07%             |    | 10.00%                            |                   |    | 14.20%  |    | 10.00%                            |                   |
| Total equity to total assets    |    | 7.10%              |    |                                   |                   |    | 10.04%  |    | —                                 |                   |

To be considered "well-capitalized," an entity must maintain a leverage ratio of at least 5.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 6.0%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 10.0%. To be "adequately capitalized," a bank must maintain a leverage ratio of at least 4.0%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of at least 4.0%, and a total risk-based capital ratio of at least 8.0%. At September 30, 2008, the Company and each of the banking subsidiaries exceeded the minimum levels of all regulatory capital requirements, and were considered "well-capitalized" under regulatory standards. We are committed to maintaining our well-capitalized position and continue to evaluate our capital-raising options. As such, we are reviewing the Treasury Department's Troubled Asset Relief Program (TARP) and expect to make a decision on whether to participate prior to the November 14, 2008, deadline.

#### Capital Purchase Program

In October 2008, the U.S. Department of the Treasury ("U.S. Treasury") announced the voluntary Capital Purchase Program. According to the U.S. Treasury, the Program is designed to encourage U.S. financial institutions to build capital and increase the flow of financing to U.S. businesses and consumers to support the U.S. economy. Under the Program, the U.S. Treasury will purchase up to \$250.0 billion of senior preferred shares issued by financial institutions that elect to participate in the Program. The Company is evaluating the Program.

The amount available to participating institutions under the Program ranges from a minimum subscription of one percent of risk-weighted assets to a maximum of the lesser of three percent of risk-weighted assets, or \$25.0 billion.

The senior preferred shares would qualify as Tier 1 capital and would pay a cumulative dividend rate of five percent per annum for the first five years and a rate of nine percent per annum after year five. The senior preferred shares would be non-voting, other than class voting rights on matters that could adversely affect the shares. The senior preferred shares would be callable at par after three years. Prior to the end of three years, the senior preferred shares may be redeemed at par with the proceeds from a qualifying equity offering of any Tier 1 perpetual preferred or common stock resulting in proceeds of not less than 25 percent of the issue price of the senior preferred shares. The U.S. Treasury may also transfer the senior preferred shares to a third party at any time. In conjunction with the purchase of senior preferred shares, the U.S. Treasury would receive warrants to purchase common stock with an aggregate market price equal to 15 percent of the senior preferred investment. The exercise price on the warrants would be the market price of the participating institution's common stock at the time of issuance, calculated on a 20-day trading day trailing average.

Companies participating in the Program must adopt the Treasury Department's standards for executive compensation and corporate governance for the period during which the U.S. Treasury holds equity issued under this Program. These standards generally apply to the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, plus the three most highly compensation executive officers. In addition, companies would agree not to deduct for tax purposes executive compensation in excess of \$500,000 for each senior executive.

#### Liquidity

Liquidity measures our ability to meet maturing obligations and our existing commitments, to withstand fluctuations in deposit levels, to fund our operations and to provide for clients' credit needs. Our liquidity principally depends on cash flows from operating activities, investment in and maturity of assets, changes in balances of deposits and borrowings and our ability to borrow funds in the credit or capital markets. We have experienced strong loan growth during the nine months ended September 30, 2008, with loans increasing \$3.3 billion, or 78%, since December 31, 2007. Our Strategic Growth Plan is driving our loan growth and we expect loan growth to continue. The loan growth resulting from the adoption of the Plan has affected our liquidity, and we manage our liquidity position today differently than we did at this time last year before the Plan had been adopted. Since adoption of the Plan, we have enhanced our suite of deposit and cash management product and service offerings in order to increase our client deposits – a key source of liquidity. We also have evaluated, and in some cases adopted, new wholesale funding strategies. At September 30, 2008 we had \$2.7 billion in unfunded commitments to extend credit. If a meaningful amount of these unfunded commitments are drawn, our liquidity position will be adversely affected.

Net cash provided from operations totaled \$28.4 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2008 compared to net cash provided by operations of \$32.6 million in the prior year period. Net cash outflows from investing activities totaled \$3.7 billion in the first nine months of 2008 compared to a net cash outflow of \$245.0 million in the prior year period primarily due to increased loan growth. Cash inflows from financing activities in the first nine months of 2008 totaled \$4.0 billion compared to a net inflow of \$208.0 million in the first nine months of 2007.

Since credit market disruptions began in the latter half of 2008, it has been increasingly difficult for market participants to borrow funds as bank-to-bank lending has become constrained and counter-parties have started requiring cash or cash equivalent collateral for borrowings that in the past were unsecured or secured by a broad array of investment securities. These disruptions have caused us to take additional steps to enhance our liquidity management. Our 55% growth in client deposits between December 31, 2007 and September 30, 2008 and our enhanced suite of deposit and treasury management products and services coupled with our aggressive targeting of new sources of deposits in the normal course of our business has helped mitigate some of these adverse liquidity events in the market. Nevertheless, these changes in market conditions caused our total availability of overnight fed fund borrowings to decrease from \$445.0 million at December 31, 2007 to \$315.0 million at September 30, 2008. Since the end of the third quarter, however, our total availability has increased to \$565.0 million as the market for interbank lending has moved toward a more normalized state in reaction to initiatives of the U.S. Government to add liquidity to the marketplace and restore confidence.

In response to these events, we took deliberate steps toward the end of the third quarter of 2008 to put the Company in a highly liquid position. As of September 30, 2008, the Company had \$364.0 million of Federal funds sold and other short-term investments, compared to \$13.2 million as of December 31, 2007. We primarily achieved this position by aggressive marketing for client deposits and by increasing our borrowings in the form of brokered deposits because this market has demonstrated ample liquidity. We also increased our borrowing from the FHLB of Indianapolis and added incremental liquidity through our new credit facility consisting of senior and subordinated debt. At September 30, 2008, the Company, through its Michigan subsidiary, The PrivateBank, had borrowed \$158.0 million from the FHLB of Indianapolis and had the capacity to borrow up to \$350.0 million on this credit facility subject to satisfying collateral requirements. Additionally, during the quarter, the PrivateBank and Trust Company was approved for the Federal Reserve Bank's Borrower-In-Custody program and pledged approximately \$2.6 billion of loans resulting in a \$2.0 billion line of credit. At September 30, 2008 the Company had no outstanding draws against this line, leaving the full line available.

In the event of short-term liquidity needs, our banking subsidiaries may purchase federal funds from correspondent banks and borrow short-term from the Federal Reserve's discount window. Also, our investment portfolio can be used as a source of liquidity. Additionally, membership in the FHLB System gives the banking subsidiaries the ability to borrow funds from the FHLBs (Atlanta, Des Moines, Chicago, and Indianapolis) for short- or long-term purposes under a variety of programs. Our asset/liability policy currently limits our use of brokered deposits to levels no more than 40% of total deposits. Brokered deposits were 37% of total deposits at September 30, 2008 and 14% of total deposits at December 31, 2007. We do not expect our 40% threshold limitation to limit our ability to implement our Plan. To the extent we continue to generate net losses, our ability to continue to access our various funding alternatives, as well as the amount of such availability, may decrease.

The majority of our deposits are a stable source of long-term liquidity for our bank subsidiaries due to the nature of long-term relationships generally established with our clients. At September 30, 2008, 56.8% of our total assets were funded by such deposits, compared to 61.5% at December 31, 2007. Deposits for purposes of this ratio are defined to include all deposits, including time deposits and CDARs<sup>TM</sup> deposits, but excluding traditional brokered deposits and public funds. Time deposits are included since these deposits have historically not been volatile deposits for us. CDARs<sup>TM</sup> deposits are included for this calculation as the source of the deposits is our existing and new client relationships and are, therefore, not traditional 'brokered' deposits.

#### Federal Temporary Liquidity Guarantee

In October 2008, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) announced the voluntary Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program, designed to strengthen confidence and encourage liquidity in the banking system. The Program would guarantee all newly issued senior unsecured debt of banks, thrifts and certain financial holding companies issued on or before June 30, 2009, not to exceed 125% of debt outstanding as of September 30, 2008 that was scheduled to mature before June 30, 2009. All newly issued senior unsecured debt issued under this Program would be charged an annualized fee equal to 75 basis points of the amount of debt. The Program also would provide unlimited protection to all non-interest bearing deposit transaction accounts through December 31, 2009, regardless of the dollar amount. Following are additional facts regarding the Program's unlimited deposit insurance initiative:

- Any participating depository institution (such as a bank) would be able to provide full deposit insurance coverage for non-interest bearing deposit transaction accounts most often used by small businesses to cover day-to-day operations regardless of the dollar amount. Business customers that maintain payroll and other accounts that often exceed the current maximum limit of \$250,000 will now be covered.
- This new, temporary increased coverage would expire at the end of 2009.
- This unlimited coverage is in addition to the increased FDIC limits approved on October 3, 2008, which increased insurance coverage limits on all deposits from \$100,000 to \$250,000 per account and also expires at the end of 2009.
- A 10 basis point annualized surcharge would be applied to those accounts not otherwise covered by the existing deposit insurance limit of \$250,000, in addition to the existing risk-based deposit insurance premium paid on those deposits.

All FDIC-insured institutions will be covered under the Program for the first 30 days without incurring any costs. After the initial 30-day period, banks will be assessed the fees noted above for continued participation.

The Company expects to participate in both the senior unsecured debt guarantee and the non-interest bearing deposit insurance coverage provided by the Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program.

#### Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

#### **Risk Management**

We are exposed to market risk from changes in interest rates that could affect our results of operations and financial condition. We manage our exposure to these market risks through our regular operating and financing activities. We occasionally use derivative financial instruments as a risk management tool to hedge interest rate risk.

#### **Interest Rate Risk**

To manage the interest rate mix of our balance sheet and related cash flows, we have the ability to use a combination of financial instruments, including medium-term and short-term financings, variable-rate debt instruments, fixed rate loans and securities and, to a lesser extent, interest rate swaps. Approximately 37% of the total loan portfolio is indexed to the prime rate of interest, 35% of the total loan portfolio is indexed to LIBOR, and another 6% of the total loan portfolio otherwise adjusts with other short-term interest rates. Changes in market rates and the shape of the yield curve may give us the opportunity to make changes to our investment security portfolio as part of our asset/liability management strategy.

We have not changed our interest rate risk management strategy from December 31, 2007 and do not foresee or expect any significant changes in our exposure to interest rate fluctuations, but we will continue to consider the use of interest rate swaps on our assets or liabilities in the future depending on changes in market rates of interest.

#### **Asset/Liability Management Policy**

As a continuing part of our financial strategy, we attempt to manage the impact of fluctuations in market interest rates on our net interest income. This effort entails providing a reasonable balance between interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and maintenance of yield. Asset/liability management policy is established by our Business Risk Committee of our Board of Directors and is monitored by management. Our asset/liability management policy sets standards within which we are expected to operate. These standards include guidelines for exposure to interest rate fluctuations, liquidity, loan limits as a percentage of funding sources, exposure to correspondent banks and brokers, and reliance on non-client deposits. The policy also states our reporting requirements to our Board of Directors. The investment policy complements the asset/liability management policy by establishing criteria by which we may purchase securities. These criteria include approved types of securities, brokerage sources, terms of investment, quality standards, and diversification.

We have structured our assets and liabilities to mitigate the risk of either a rising or falling interest rate environment. We manage our gap position at the one-year horizon. Depending upon our assessment of economic factors such as the magnitude and direction of projected interest rates over the short- and long-term, we generally operate within guidelines set by our asset/liability management policy and attempt to maximize our returns within an acceptable degree of risk.

Interest rate changes do not affect all categories of assets and liabilities equally or simultaneously. There are other factors that are difficult to measure and predict that would influence the effect of interest rate fluctuations on our income statement.

The following table shows the impact of immediate 200 and 100 basis point changes in interest rates as of September 30, 2008 and December 31, 2007. The effects are determined through the use of a simulation model based on our interest-earning asset and interest-bearing liability portfolios, assuming the size of these portfolios remains constant from the balance sheet date throughout the one-year measurement period. The simulation assumes that assets and liabilities accrue interest on their current pricing basis. Assets and liabilities then reprice based on their terms and remain at that interest rate through the end of the measurement period. The model attempts to illustrate the potential change in net interest income if the foregoing occurred.

|  | Sept                    | ember 30, 200           | 8                       |                         |                         | December                | 31, 2007                |                         |
|--|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|-------------------------|
| Percentage change in net<br>interest income due to an<br>immediate 100 and 200 basis<br>point change in interest<br>rates over a one-year time | -200<br>Basis<br>Points | -100<br>Basis<br>Points | +100<br>Basis<br>Points | +200<br>Basis<br>Points | -200<br>Basis<br>Points | -100<br>Basis<br>Points | +100<br>Basis<br>Points | +200<br>Basis<br>Points |
| horizon  | -10.4%                  | -4.9%                   | 4.9%                    | 9.7%                    | -6.8%                   | -3.4%                   | 2.7%                    | 5.3%                    |

This table shows that if there had been an instantaneous parallel shift in the yield curve of +100 basis points on September 30, 2008, net interest income would increase by 4.9% over a one-year period, as compared to a net interest income increase of 2.7% if there had been an instantaneous parallel shift of +100 basis points at December 31, 2007. The measurement of a +200 basis point instantaneous parallel shift in the yield curve at September 30, 2008 would result in an increase in net interest income of 9.7% over a one-year period as compared to 5.3% measured on the basis of the December 31, 2007 portfolio. At September 30, 2008, if there had been an instantaneous parallel shift in the yield curve of -100 basis points, we would have suffered a decline in net interest income of 4.9%, as compared to a 3.4% decline measured on the basis of the December 31, 2007 portfolio. At September 30, 2008, if there had been an instantaneous parallel shift in the yield curve of -200 basis points, we would have suffered a decline in net interest income of 4.9%, as compared to a 3.4% decline measured on the basis of the December 31, 2007 portfolio. At September 30, 2008, if there had been an instantaneous parallel shift in the yield curve of -200 basis points, we would have suffered a decline in net interest income of 4.9%, as compared to a 6.8% decline measured on the basis of the December 31, 2007 portfolio. The potential net interest income impact from changes in interest rates has increased at September 30, 2008 due to the increased volatility described in the above chart and due to substantial growth in the Company's average earning assets, which increased to \$7.8 billion at September 30, 2008 from \$4.4 billion at December 31, 2007.

Changes in the effect on net interest income from a 100 and 200 basis point movement at September 30, 2008, compared to December 31, 2007 are due to the timing and nature of the repricing of rate sensitive assets to rate sensitive liabilities within the one year time frame.

The table presented above reflects that the Company is more interest rate sensitive to falling and rising rates at September 30, 2008 as compared to December 31, 2007. The primary factor contributing to the Company becoming more asset sensitive in 2008, is the significant increase in the volume of floating rate loans booked, which are funded by incrementally longer term funding sources at September 30, 2008 as compared to December 31, 2007. Factors contributing to the lengthening in the duration of borrowed funds include our ability to replace our Federal Funds purchased with longer term client deposits and brokered deposits.

The preceding sensitivity analysis is based on numerous assumptions including: the nature and timing of interest rate levels including the shape of the yield curve, prepayments on loans and securities, changes in deposit levels, pricing decisions on loans and deposits, reinvestment/replacement of asset and liability cash flows and others. While our assumptions are developed based upon current economic and local market conditions, we cannot make any assurances as to the predictive nature of these assumptions including how client preferences or competitor influences might change. To understand the potential impact on net interest income in other rate environments, the Company performs additional analysis including non-parallel shock scenarios such as steepening and flattening yield curves.

We continue to monitor our asset-liability gap and rate shock reports to detect changes to our exposure to fluctuating rates. We have the ability to shorten or lengthen maturities on newly acquired assets, sell investment securities, or seek funding sources with different maturities in order to change our asset and liability structure for the purpose of mitigating the effect of interest rate risk.

#### **Item 4. Controls and Procedures**

#### **Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures**

As of the end of the period covered by this report, we carried out an evaluation, under the supervision, and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as contemplated by Exchange Act Rule 13a-15. Based upon, and as of the date of that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company's disclosure controls and procedures are effective, in all material respects, in timely alerting them to material information relating to the Company (and its consolidated subsidiaries) required to be included in the periodic reports the Company is required to file and submit to the SEC under the Exchange Act.

#### **Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting**

There have been no changes in the Company's internal control over financial reporting during the three months ended September 30, 2008 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company's internal control over financial reporting except for the Company's implementation of Oracle's Hyperion Financial Management ("HFM") application. HFM provides the Company an automated tool for consolidating financial data from our general ledger and other financial reporting systems used by our subsidiaries. The Company considers the implementation of HFM an enhancement to our financial statement process and preparation because the implementation reduces and in some cases replaces the Company's reliance on manual control procedures in the preparation of the Company's consolidated financial statements and other financial data.

#### CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

This report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We intend such forward-looking statements to be covered by the safe harbor provisions for forward-looking statements contained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, and we are including this statement for purposes of these safe harbor provisions. Forward-looking statements, which are based on certain assumptions and describe our future plans, strategies and expectations, can generally be identified by use of the words "believe," "expect," "intend," "anticipate," "estimate," "project," or similar expressions. The Company's ability to predict results or the actual effect of future plans or strategies is inherently uncertain. Factors which could have a material adverse effect on the operations and future prospects of the Company include, but are not limited to, unforeseen difficulties and higher than expected costs associated with the implementation of our Strategic Growth Plan; fluctuations in market rates of interest and loan and deposit pricing in the Company's market areas; the effect of continued margin pressure on the Company's earnings; further deterioration in asset quality; the failure to obtain on terms acceptable to us, or at all, the capital necessary to fund our growth and maintain our regulatory capital ratios above the "well-capitalized" threshold; the need for additional reserves to our allowance for loan losses; insufficient liquidity/funding sources or the inability to obtain on terms acceptable to the Company the funding necessary to fund its loan growth; legislative or regulatory changes, particularly changes in the regulation of financial services companies and/or the products and services offered by financial services companies; adverse developments in the Company's loan or investment portfolios; slower than anticipated growth of the Company's business or unanticipated business declines, including as a result of continual negative economic conditions; competition; unforeseen difficulties in integrating new hires; failure to improve operating efficiencies through expense controls; and the possible dilutive effect of potential acquisitions, expansion or future capital raises. These risks and uncertainties should be considered in evaluating forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not be placed on such statements. The Company assumes no obligation to update publicly any of these statements in light of future events unless required under the federal securities laws.

#### Item 1. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we may be party to various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of our business. Since we act as a depository of funds, we may be named from time to time as a defendant in various lawsuits (such as garnishment proceedings) involving claims to the ownership of funds in particular accounts. Neither PrivateBancorp, Inc. nor any of our subsidiaries is currently a party in any such proceedings, or any other pending legal proceedings, that we believe will have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, financial condition or cash flows.

#### Item 1A. Risk Factors

In addition to the other information set forth in this report, you should carefully consider the factors discussed in Part I, "Item 1A. Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007, as updated and supplemented by the factors set forth below, which could materially affect our business, financial condition or future results. The risks described in this report and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K are not the only risks facing our Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial also may materially adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or operating results.

#### Our expected participation in the U.S. Department of Treasury's Capital Purchase Program will subject us to certain restrictions.

In October 2008, the U.S. Department of the Treasury, or the "Treasury," initiated the Capital Purchase Program under authority provided in the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 to purchase up to \$250 billion of senior preferred shares on a voluntary basis in U.S. financial institutions. The program is part of the government's effort to restore liquidity and stability to the U.S. financial system. Should we elect to participate in the Capital Purchase Program, we must agree to comply with the terms and conditions of the program, which will subject us to certain restrictions. For example, we may not without the consent of the Department of Treasury increase our dividend or, subject to certain exceptions, engage in repurchases of our common stock and trust preferred securities for three years or, if earlier, the date on which all preferred stock issued to the Department of Treasury has been redeemed or transferred. The program also will subject us to additional executive compensation restrictions, which may adversely affect our ability to attract and retain highly-qualified senior executive officers.

### We cannot predict the impact on us of recently enacted legislation, in particular the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008, and its implementing regulations and actions by the FDIC.

The programs established or to be established under the Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008 may have adverse effects upon us, including increased regulation of our industry. Compliance with such regulation may increase our costs and limit our ability to pursue business opportunities. Also, participation in specific programs, such as the Capital Purchase Program, will likely subject us to additional restrictions.

Similarly, programs established by the FDIC under the systemic risk exception to the Federal Deposit Act, whether we participate or not, may have an adverse effect on us. Participation in the FDIC Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program likely will require the payment of additional insurance premiums to the FDIC. We may be required to pay significantly higher FDIC premiums even if we do not participate in the FDIC Temporary Liquidity Guarantee Program because market developments have significantly depleted the insurance fund of the FDIC and reduced the ratio of reserves to insured deposits. The impact on our business as a result of participating or not participating in any such programs, and the extent of our participation in such programs, cannot reliably be determined at this time.

### We may not be able to access sufficient and cost-effective sources of liquidity necessary to fund our continued and anticipated balance sheet growth.

We depend on access to a variety of funding sources, including deposits, to provide sufficient capital resources and liquidity to meet our commitments and business needs and to accommodate the transaction and cash management needs of our clients, including funding our loan growth. Currently, our primary sources of liquidity are our clients' deposits, as well as brokered deposits, federal funds borrowings, Federal Home Loan Bank advances, proceeds from the sale of investment securities, proceeds from the sale of additional equity or trust preferred securities and subordinated debt, and amounts available under our new credit facility (which consists of a \$20 million revolving loan, a \$120 million subordinated term loan).

Our Strategic Growth Plan anticipates continued robust loan growth, especially in commercial loans. To the extent our deposit growth is not commensurate with or lags significantly behind our loan growth, we may not be able to fund this growth, or may need to access alternative, more expensive funding sources, including increasing our reliance on brokered deposits. Addressing these funding needs will be even more challenging as the amount of brokered deposits we utilize approaches our internal policy limits or if the Federal Home Loan Bank, in response to current U.S. financial conditions, places more stringent requirements on a financial institution's ability to borrow funds. Alternatively, if in the future additional cost-effective funding is not available on terms satisfactory to us or at all, we may need to curtail our loan growth, which could adversely affect our results of operations and earnings.

#### We may not be able to raise additional capital necessary to fund our growth and remain well-capitalized.

Our ability to raise additional capital to support our growth and meet minimum regulatory capital requirements at the holding company and at each of our bank subsidiaries is dependent on us being able to efficiently and cost-effectively access the capital markets. Accordingly, even if we receive funds under the Capital Purchase Program, we must continue to be able to issue additional equity securities, trust preferred securities and/or debt when and in the amounts we deem necessary, and there must be ready purchasers of our securities willing to invest in us. However, events or circumstances in the capital markets generally that are beyond our control may adversely affect our capital costs and our ability to raise capital at any given time. For instance, the capital and credit markets continue to experience high levels of volatility and disruption. In certain cases, especially in the case of stocks of financial institutions, the markets have produced significant downward pressure on stock prices and credit capacity for certain issuers without regard to those issuers' underlying financial strength or condition. If current levels of market disruption and volatility continue or worsen, there can be no assurance that we will not experience an adverse effect, including on our ability to access capital. Our inability to raise additional capital on terms satisfactory to us or at all may affect our ability to grow and would adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

### Continued tightening of the credit markets and instability in the financial markets could adversely affect our industry, business and results of operations.

Reflecting concern about the stability of the financial markets generally and the strength of counterparties, many lenders and institutional investors have reduced, and in some cases, ceased to provide funding to borrowers including other financial institutions. This has resulted in less available credit, a lack of confidence in the financial sector, increased volatility in the financial markets and reduced business activity. A sustained period of such conditions could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

### As a financial services company, a sustained deterioration in general business or economic conditions could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

Recently the strength of the U.S. economy in general and the strength of the local economies in each of the markets where are banking offices are located has declined. A sustained deterioration in the national or local business or economic condition could result in, among other things, a deterioration of credit quality or a reduced demand for credit, including a resultant effect on our loan portfolio and allowance for loan losses. These factors could result in higher delinquencies and greater charge-offs in future periods especially given the Company's exposure to residential development lending, which would materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Continued, sustained weakness in business and economic conditions generally or our markets specifically could have one or more of the following adverse impacts on our business:

- a decrease in the demand for loans and other products and services offered by us;
- a decrease in the value of our loans held for sale or other assets secured by consumer or commercial real estate;
- an increase in the number of clients and counterparties who become delinquent, file for protection under bankruptcy laws or default on their loans or other obligations to us.

An increase in the number of delinquencies, bankruptcies or defaults could result in a higher level of nonperforming assets, net chargeoffs, provision for loan losses, and valuation adjustments on loans held for sale, which would materially adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

# We are highly regulated and may be adversely affected by changes in banking laws, regulations, and regulatory practices, including the extraordinary actions being taken by the U.S. government in response to the recent financial crises.

We are subject to extensive regulation, supervision, and examination by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System (the "Federal Reserve") and the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Federal Reserve regulates the supply of money and credit in the United States. Its policies determine in large part the cost of funds for lending and investing and the return earned on those loans and investments, both of which affect our net interest margin. Additionally, our bank subsidiaries also are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination by various federal and state authorities and, as an affiliate of our subsidiary banks, we are also subject, to some extent, to regulation by these authorities. These regulations affect in a comprehensive manner our entire business, including our lending practices, capital structure, investment practices, dividend policy and growth.

Changes in laws, regulations and regulatory practices affecting the financial services industry, and the effects of such changes, including the federal government's response or lack of response to the ongoing financial crises affecting the banking system and financial markets, are difficult to predict and may have unintended consequences. New regulations or changes in the regulatory environment could subject us to additional costs, limit the types of financial services and products we may offer and/or increase the ability of non-banks to offer competing financial services and products, among other things. These changes also can adversely affect borrowers, potentially increasing the risk that they may fail to repay their loans. Any failure on our part to comply with or adapt to changes in the regulatory environment could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

### The creditworthiness of other financial institutions could adversely affect us.

Our ability to engage in routine funding transactions could be adversely affected by the actions and commercial soundness of other banks. Banks are interrelated as a result of lending, clearing, counterparty and other relationships. As a result, defaults by, or even rumors or questions about, one or more banks, or the banking industry generally, have led to market-wide liquidity problems and could lead to losses or defaults by us or by other institutions. Many of the transactions engaged in by us and our banking subsidiaries in the ordinary course of business expose us to credit risk in the event of default of our counterparty or customer. In such instances, the collateral held by us may be insufficient to mitigate our losses, as we may be unable to realize upon or liquidated at prices sufficient to recover the full amount of the exposure due us. Such losses could have a material and adverse affect on our results of operations.

#### Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds

The following table provides information about purchases by the Company during the quarter ended September 30, 2008 of equity securities that are registered by the Company pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act.

| Period       | (a)<br>Total Number of<br>Shares Purchased | 0       | (c)<br>Total Number of Shares Purchased as part<br>of publicly announced Plans or Programs | (d)<br>Maximum Number of Shares that may be<br>purchased under the Plans/Program (2)(3) |
|--------------|--|---------|--|---|
| 07/01/2008 - |  |         |  |   |
| 07/31/2008   | 761 (1)                                    | \$29.55 | 761 (1)  | 286,800   |
| 08/01/2008 - |  |         |  |   |
| 08/31/2008   | 30,055(1)                                  | \$31.84 | 30,055(1)  | 286,800   |
| 09/01/2008 - |  |         |  |   |
| 09/30/2008   | 11,855 (1)                                 | \$41.84 | 11,855 (1)   | 286,800   |
| Total        | 42,671(1)                                  | \$34.57 | 42,671(1)  | 286,800   |

(1) Represents shares acquired by the Company in payment of the exercise price and/or withholding taxes in connection with the exercise of certain employee/director stock options.

(2) On July 25, 2001, the Company's Board of Directors approved the repurchase by the Company of up to an aggregate of 231,192 shares of its common stock. Subsequently on March 7, 2007, the Board of Directors approved the repurchase of a total aggregate of 500,000 shares by the Company. Unless terminated or amended earlier by the Board of Directors, this authorization will expire when the Company has repurchased all 500,000 shares authorized for issuance.

(3) Does not include shares reacquired by the Company in payment of the exercise price and/or withholding taxes in connection with the exercise of certain employee/director stock options.

#### Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities

None.

#### Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.

#### Item 5. Other Information

None.

#### Item 6. Exhibits

See Exhibit Index beginning on page 57 which is incorporated herein by reference.

### Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report on Form 10-Q to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

PRIVATEBANCORP, INC.

By:

/s/ Dennis L. Klaeser Dennis L. Klaeser, Chief Financial Officer

By:

/s/ Barbara E. Briick

Barbara E. Briick, Controller and Principal Accouting Officer

Date: November 10, 2008

#### EXHIBIT INDEX

- 3.1 Certificate of amendment of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PrivateBancorp, Inc., as amended (filed as an exhibit to the Company's Form S-8 Registration Statement (File No. 333-151178) and incorporated herein by reference).
- 3.2 Certificate of amendment of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PrivateBancorp, Inc., as amended (filed as an exhibit to the Company's quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2004 (File No. 000-25887) and incorporated herein by reference).
- 3.3 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PrivateBancorp, Inc., as amended (filed as an exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003 (File No. 000-25887) and incorporated herein by reference).
- 3.4 Amended and Restated By-laws of PrivateBancorp, Inc. (filed as an exhibit to the Company's quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2007 (File No. 000-25887) and incorporated herein by reference).
- 3.5 Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Nonvoting Preferred Stock of PrivateBancorp, Inc. (filed as an exhibit to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 (File No. 000-25887) and incorporated herein by reference).
- 3.6 First Amendment to the Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Nonvoting Preferred Stock of PrivateBancorp, Inc (filed as an exhibit to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2008 (File No. 001-34066) and incorporated herein by reference).
- 4.1 Certain instruments defining the rights of the holders of long-term debt of the Company and certain of its subsidiaries, none of which authorize a total amount of indebtedness in excess of 10% of the total assets of the Company and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis, have not been filed as exhibits. The Company hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any of these agreements to the SEC upon request.
- 10.1 Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of September 26, 2008 among PrivateBancorp, Inc., the Lenders From Time to Time Party Thereto and SunTrust Bank as Administrative Agent (filed as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 2, 2008 (File No. 001-34066) and incorporated herein by reference).
- 10.2 Subordinated Term Loan Agreement dated as of September 26, 2008 among The PrivateBank and Trust Company, the Lenders From Time to Time Party Thereto and SunTrust Bank as Administrative Agent (filed as an exhibit to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K dated October 2, 2008 (File No. 001-34066) and incorporated herein by reference).
- 10.3 Term Sheet Agreement dated July 7, 2008 between The PrivateBank and Trust Company and Norman R. Bobins.
- 15.0 Acknowledgment of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.
- 31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 32.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
- 99.1 Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

(Back To Top)

# Section 2: EX-10.3 (NRB TERM SHEET)

Mr. Norman R. Bobins 179 E. Lake Shore Drive Apt. 21E Chicago, IL 60611

#### Dear Norm:

It is our pleasure to extend to you an offer to become a member of the Board of Directors of PrivateBancorp, Inc. and to become Chairman and a member of the Board of Directors of The PrivateBank and Trust Company. As more fully set forth in the attached term sheet agreement, you will also be a member of various Board committees. As discussed, your compensation includes significant equity awards consistent with our belief that your leadership will help deliver significant long term value for our shareholders. We are very excited about the prospect of having you join our team, and we would like you to start serving on the Boards as soon as possible.

Please signify your acceptance of this offer by signing as indicated below. You may return this offer letter to the following confidential fax 312.683.1888.

Chairman, Compensation Committee

Sincerely,

Sincerely,

/s/ James M. Guyette

James M. Guyette

/s/ Ralph B. Mandell

Ralph B. Mandell Chairman

Accepted:

/s/ Norman R. Bobins Norman R. Bobins Date: July 7, 2008

### <u>Term Sheet</u> <u>for</u> Bank Chairman

| Positions       | <ul> <li>Chairman and a member of the Board of Directors of<br/>The PrivateBank and Trust Company ("Bank")</li> <li>Member of the Board of Directors of PrivateBancorp, Inc. ("Holding<br/>Company")</li> <li>(each a "Board" and collectively the "Boards")</li> <li>Shall serve on such committees of the Holding Company and/or the Bank as<br/>mutually agreed by the parties and as determined by the applicable nominating<br/>and governance committee.</li> </ul>   |
|-----------------|---|
| Duties          | The Chairman will preside at the meetings of the Board of Directors of the<br>Bank, and he will be actively involved with the work of the committees for<br>which he will be a member. Subject to the requirements of certain obligations<br>with his prior employer, and his other business, civic and charitable<br>commitments, the Chairman will be significantly involved in activities to<br>promote the interests of the Bank.   |
| Term            | It is the expectation of the Chairman and the Bank that he will undertake these positions and duties for a minimum of three years.  |
| Annual Retainer | The Chairman will receive the same cash retainer and regular equity awards as do other directors. In addition, the Chairman will receive such additional cash payments as may be required for the Chairman's annual compensation (cash plus regular director equity) to be \$150,000.   |
| Stock Options   | 100,000 options to be granted on the date the Chairman commences Board<br>membership. One-half of the options (50,000) will be time vested (33 1/3%<br>on each of December 31, 2008, December 31, 2009 and December 31,<br>2010). One-half of the options (50,000) will vest on the attainment of the<br>same EPS performance objectives under the 2007 inducement option awards<br>to senior executives. See Exhibit A for further description of the stock option<br>performance vesting provisions.  |
|                 | Chairman will not sell any shares (net of taxes) acquired from these awards while serving as Chairman.  |
|                 | Voluntary Termination: Upon the Chairman's voluntary termination from both<br>Boards, (i) he will become vested in a pro rata portion of the time-vesting<br>stock options then outstanding equal to the number of completed months<br>during the vesting period divided by the number of full months necessary to<br>achieve full vesting of such option, and (ii) if such voluntary termination<br>occurs on or after January 1, 2009, the Chairman will continue to vest through<br>December 31, 2012 in the unvested portion of the performance stock options<br>and such previously unvested performance stock options will become<br>exercisable if the performance vesting conditions relating to the awards are<br>satisfied on any applicable performance vesting date that follows the<br>Chairman's date of termination; provided, the Chairman will be vested in a<br>minimum number of performance stock options as equals the product of<br>("Minimum Vesting") (x) 5% multiplied by (y) the number of whole or partial |

|                   | years of service as a member of the Board from January 1, 2008 through the date of termination, to the extent the Chairman had not previously become vested in at least such number of shares of performance stock options. If the Chairman voluntarily terminates from both Boards prior to January 1, 2009, he will forfeit the performance stock options.   |
|-------------------|--|
|                   | Good Leaver Termination: Upon the Chairman's Good Leaver termination<br>from both Boards, he will become vested in all time-vesting stock options and<br>will continue to vest through December 31, 2012 in the unvested portion of the<br>performance stock options and such previously unvested performance stock<br>options will become exercisable if the performance vesting conditions relating<br>to the awards are satisfied on any applicable performance vesting date that<br>follows the Chairman's date of termination; provided, the performance stock<br>options will be subject to Minimum Vesting.   |
|                   | Exercise Period: Upon a voluntary termination or Good Leaver termination, vested time-vesting stock options (including time-vesting stock options that become vested on the date of termination) and then-vested performance stock options will be exercisable until the later of December 31, 2012 or 1 year after the Chairman's date of termination (but not beyond the last day of the stock option term). Upon such termination of service, performance stock options that subsequently become vested upon attainment of the applicable performance objective will be exercisable until the later of December 31, 2012 or 1 year after such options become vested (but not beyond the last day of the stock option term).   |
| Restricted Shares | \$600,000 of fully vested shares of common stock of the Holding Company, granted and valued (rounded to the next highest 5 whole shares) on the date the Chairman commences Board membership.  |
|                   | Provided he continues to serve as Chairman for 2009 and 2010, the Chairman will be granted restricted stock awards of \$600,000, which will be granted and valued (rounded up to the next highest 5 whole shares) on the anniversary dates of the Chairman's commencement of Board membership if he is a member of the Board on such dates. Such grants will vest on the attainment of the same performance objectives under the 2007 inducement restricted stock awards to executives. See Exhibit A for further description of the performance share award vesting provisions.   |
|                   | Chairman will not sell any shares (net of taxes) acquired from these awards while serving as Chairman.   |
|                   | Except as provided in the last sentence of this paragraph, upon the Chairman's termination from both Boards (other than termination for Cause), he will continue to vest through December 31, 2012 in the unvested portion of the performance restricted stock if the performance vesting conditions relating to the awards are satisfied on any applicable performance vesting date that follows the Chairman's date of termination; provided, the performance shares will be subject to Minimum Vesting. Notwithstanding anything in the foregoing to the contrary, if the Chairman voluntarily terminates his service with both Boards on or before December 31 of the year in which performance restricted shares are granted, he will forfeit the performance restricted shares granted in that year. |

Upon the expiration of his existing arrangements with his prior employer, the

|                 | Bank shall cover, until July 7, 2011, the Chairman's expenses as agreed for an automobile and driver, payment of certain annual club dues and annual operating surcharges (but not including special assessments relating to capital items), office space that is mutually agreeable between the parties, and secretarial support. The secretarial support shall be selected by the Chairman and shall consist of a full-time administrative assistant, a part-time administrative assistant, and an assistant to provide staff support for his role at the Chicago Board of Education and similar civic activities.  |
|-----------------|---|
|                 | If the Chairman resigns as Chairman or as a director, the staff and club expense<br>obligations shall cease upon such resignation. In the event the Chairman is not<br>re-elected Chairman of the Bank, he shall nevertheless continue to receive the<br>staff and club reimbursement as provided above until the third anniversary of<br>his initial election as Chairman, if applicable.  |
| Indemnification | The Chairman shall be provided with indemnification on a basis consistent with<br>the other directors of the Bank and the Holding Company. In addition, the<br>Chairman has disclosed certain non-solicitation obligations with respect to his<br>prior employer, together with his commitment to comply with those<br>obligations. He will be indemnified for any claims that might be brought by his<br>prior employer (or any successor and/or any affiliate thereof) relating to his<br>acceptance of the Chairman position with the Bank and the Holding Company<br>or the performance of his duties for the Bank Board or the Holding Company<br>Board. |

| EQUITY GRANT FEATURE  | PERFORMANCE SHARES  | PERFORMANCE STOCK OPTIONS  | TIME-VESTING<br>STOCK<br>OPTIONS   |
|---|---|--|--|
| <b>1.</b> Allocation of Total Award   | • \$600,000 in face value in 2009 and 2010.   | • 50,000 options (value of approximately \$550,000).   | • 50,000<br>shares (value<br>of<br>approximately<br>\$600,000)   |
| 2.Time Vesting  | • N/A   | • N/A  | • 33 1/3% per<br>year on<br>December 31,<br>2008,<br>December 31,<br>2009 and<br>December 31,<br>2010. |
| Stock Price         EPS           2008         \$33.49         \$1.98           2009         \$40.19         \$2.38           2010         \$48.23         \$2.85           2011         \$57.87         \$3.42           2012         \$69.45         \$4.11 | • Based on stock price performance objectives: 20% compound annual stock price growth 2008-2012.  | • Based on EPS performance<br>objectives: 20% compound annual EPS<br>growth 2008 - 2012.                                   | • None   |
| 2012  | • Stock price base is \$27.91.  | • Earnings base is \$1.65.   |  |
|   | • 20% of the Award vests per year, based<br>on attainment of stock price objective for<br>that year. Objective must be met for 20<br>consecutive trading days during that<br>fiscal year to vest. | • 20% of the Award vests per year,<br>based on attainment of EPS objective<br>for that year.                               |  |
|   | • Determined as of 12/31 of performance year.   | • Determined as of 12/31 of performance year.  |  |
| 4."Catch-Up" Performance Vesting  | • As of 12/31 each year: To extent not vested, Award will vest for prior years if later year stock price objective is attained.   | • As of 12/31/2012: To extent not vested, Award will vest:   | • N/A  |
|   |   | Cum. Cmpd. Growth<br>% of AwardVested15.0% (\$12.80)50%17.5% (\$13.75)75%20.0% (\$14.74)100%                               |  |
| 5.Minimum 25% Vesting   | • As of 12/31/2012: To the extent less is vested, 25% of total Award will be vested (including previously vested shares).   | • As of 12/31/2012: To the extent less is vested, 25% of total Award will be vested (including previously vested options). | • N/A  |
|   | • Must be a Board member on 12/31/2012.   | • Must be a Board member on 12/31/2012.  |  |

| 6. Voluntary Termination  | • Forfeit award if voluntary terminate on or before 12/31 of the year of grant.  | • Forfeit award if voluntary terminate on or before 12/31/2008.  | • Monthly pro rata vest.  |
|---------------------------|--|--|---|
|                           | • If voluntary terminate after the year of grant, continued vesting through 12/31/2012 based on performance.             | • Continue to vest based on performance if voluntary terminate on or after 1/1/2009.   | • Vested<br>options<br>exercisable<br>until later of<br>12/31/2012 or                                 |
|                           | • Minimum vesting of whole Award of 5% x whole or partial years as a Board member 1/1/2008 to 12/31 of termination year. | • Minimum vesting of whole Award of 5% x whole or partial years as a Board member 1/1/2008 to 12/31 of termination year.   | 1 year after<br>termination<br>(but not<br>beyond the<br>end of the<br>option term).                  |
|                           |  | • Vested options at termination<br>exercisable until later of 12/31/2012 or 1<br>year after date of termination (but not<br>beyond the end of the option term).                        |   |
|                           |  | • Options that vest in the future<br>remain exercisable until the later of<br>12/31/2012 or 1 year after such options<br>become vested (but not beyond the<br>end of the option term). |   |
| 7."Good Leaver" Treatment | • Continued vesting until 12/31/2012 based on performance.   | • Continued vesting until 12/31/2012 based on performance.   | • Full accelerated vesting.   |
|                           | • Minimum vesting of whole Award of 5% x whole or partial years as a Board member 1/1/2008 to 12/31 of termination year. | • Minimum vesting of whole Award of 5% x whole or partial years employed 1/1/2008 to 12/31 of termination year.  | • Vested<br>options<br>exercisable<br>until later of  |
|                           |  | • Vested options at termination<br>exercisable until later of 12/31/2012 or 1<br>year after date of termination (but not<br>beyond the end of the option term).                        | 12/31/2012 or<br>1 year after<br>termination<br>(but not<br>beyond the<br>end of the<br>option term). |
|                           |  | • Options that vest in the future<br>remain exercisable until the later of<br>12/31/2012 or 1 year after such options<br>become vested (but not beyond the<br>end of the option term). |   |

### DEFINITIONS

"<u>Good Leaver</u>" means (i) your termination of service from both Boards due to your removal from or a failure to nominate and elect you to both Boards other than due to Cause, (ii) your resignation from the Boards for Good Reason, (iii) your resignation from the Boards due to your Disability, or (iv) your death.

"<u>Cause</u>" shall mean your willful engaging in illegal conduct or gross misconduct which is materially and demonstrably injurious to the Holding Company or the Bank.

"<u>Disability</u>" means your inability to carry on your duties as a member of both Boards, after receipt of medical advice, as a result of a physical or mental injury or illness or other such incapacity.

"<u>Good Reason</u>" shall mean the occurrence of a material breach of this term sheet agreement by the Holding Company that is not remedied within a reasonable time after notice by you to the Holding Company of such breach.

# Section 3: EX-15.0 (EXHIBIT 15.0 AKNOWLEDGEMENT)

#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

#### The Board of Directors PrivateBancorp, Inc.

We are aware of the incorporation by reference in the following documents of our report dated November 10, 2008 relating to the unaudited consolidated interim financial statements of PrivateBancorp, Inc. that are included in its Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008:

- Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-150767) relating to the registration of debt securities, junior subordinated debentures, trust preferred securities of PrivateBancorp Capital Trust IV, preferred stock, common stock, warrants, depository shares, purchase contracts, units and guarantees of trust preferred securities, and the related Prospectus and Prospectus Supplement
- Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-147451) pertaining to the PrivateBancorp, Inc. Strategic Long-Term Incentive Plan
- Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-143424) relating to the registration of \$115 million of 3-5/8 contingent convertible senior notes due 2027 and the shares of common stock issuable upon conversion thereof, if any
- Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-132509) pertaining to the PrivateBancorp, Inc. Savings, Retirement & Employee Stock Ownership Plan
- Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-124427) pertaining to the PrivateBancorp, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan
- Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-104807) pertaining to the PrivateBancorp, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan and the PrivateBancorp, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan
- Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-43830) pertaining to the PrivateBancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan and the PrivateBancorp, Inc. Savings and Retirement Plan (formerly known as The PrivateBank and Trust Company Savings and Retirement Plan)
- Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-88289) pertaining to the PrivateBancorp, Inc. Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, Illinois November 10, 2008

# Section 4: EX-31.1 (EXHIBIT 31.1 CEO CERTIFICATION)

#### **CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER**

I, Larry D. Richman, President and Chief Executive Officer of PrivateBancorp, Inc., certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PrivateBancorp, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;
- 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
  - a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;
  - b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
  - c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report based on such evaluation; and
  - d) disclosed in this quarterly report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
- 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
  - a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
  - b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 10, 2008

/s/ Larry D. Richman

Larry D. Richman President and Chief Executive Officer PrivateBancorp, Inc.

# Section 5: EX-31.2 (EXHIBIT 31.2 CFO CERTIFICATION)

#### CERTIFICATIONS

I, Dennis L. Klaeser, Chief Financial Officer of PrivateBancorp, Inc., certify that:

- 1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of PrivateBancorp, Inc.;
- 2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
- 3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this quarterly report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this quarterly report;
  - 4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15(d)-15(f)) for the registrant and have:
    - a) designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this quarterly report is being prepared;
    - b) designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
    - c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this quarterly report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this quarterly report based on such evaluation; and
    - d) disclosed in this quarterly report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and
  - 5. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
    - a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
    - b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting.

Date: November 10, 2008

/s/ Dennis L. Klaeser Dennis L. Klaeser Chief Financial Officer PrivateBancorp, Inc.

# Section 6: EX-32.1 (EXHIBIT 32.1 COMBINED CERTIFICATION)

The following certification is provided by the undersigned Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of PrivateBancorp, Inc. On the basis of such officer's knowledge and belief for the sole purpose of complying with 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

#### CERTIFICATION

In connection with the Quarterly Report of PrivateBancorp, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2008 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on November 10, 2008 (the "Report"), the undersigned, hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

| By:    | /s/ Larry D. Richman    |
|--------|-------------------------|
| Name:  | Larry D. Richman        |
| Title: | President and           |
|        | Chief Executive Officer |
| Date:  | November 10, 2008       |
| By:    | /s/ Dennis L. Klaeser   |
| Name:  | Dennis L. Klaeser       |
| Title: | Chief Financial Officer |
| Date:  | November 10, 2008       |

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request. This certification accompanies the Report and shall not be treated as having been filed as part of the Report.

# Section 7: EX-99.1 (EXHIBIT 99.1 REVIEW REPORT)

#### Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors PrivateBancorp, Inc.

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of PrivateBancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries ("the Company") as of September 30, 2008, and the related consolidated statements of income for the three-month and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007, and the consolidated statements of changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2008 and 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management.

We conducted our review in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). A review of interim financial information consists principally of applying analytical procedures and making inquires of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters. It is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements taken as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the consolidated financial statements referred to above for them to be in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We have previously audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheet of PrivateBancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for the year then ended (not presented herein); and in our report dated February 28, 2008, we expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the information set forth in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2007, is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the consolidated balance sheet from which it has been derived.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Chicago, Illinois November 10, 2008 (Back To Top)